Regular Meeting
Tuesday, October 10, 2023
6:00 p.m.

Unalaska City Hall
Council Chambers
43 Raven Way

Council Members Council Members

Thomas D. Bell Dennis M. Robinson
Darin Nicholson Alejandro _R. Tungul
Daneen Looby To Provide a Sustainable Quality of Life Shari Coleman
Through Excellent Stewardship of Government
UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL

P. O. Box 610 = Unalaska, Alaska 99685
Tel (907) 581-1251 = Fax (907) 581-1417 = www.ci.unalaska.ak.us

Mayor: Vincent M. Tutiakoff, Sr. City Manager: William Homka
City Clerk: Estkarlen P. Magdaong, emagdaong@ci.unalaska.ak.us

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE
The community is encouraged to attend meetings of the City Council:
In person at City Hall
Online via ZOOM (link, meeting ID & password below)
By telephone (toll and toll free numbers, meeting ID & password below)
Listen on KUCB TV Channel 8 or Radio Station 89.7

PUBLIC COMMENT
The Mayor and City Council value and encourage community input at meetings of the City Council. There is a time
limit of 3 minutes per person, per topic. Options for public comment:
¢ In person
e By telephone or ZOOM - notify the City Clerk if you'd like to provide comment using ZOOM features (chat
message or raise your hand); or *9 by telephone to raise your hand; or you may notify the City Clerk during
regular business hours in advance of the meeting
o Written comment is accepted up to one hour before the meeting begins by email, regular mail, fax or hand
delivery to the City Clerk, and will be read during the meeting; include your name

ZOOM MEETING LINK: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83246795029
Meeting ID: 832 4679 5029 / Passcode: 630155

TELEPHONE: Meeting ID: 832 4679 5029 / Passcode: 630155
Toll Free numbers: (833) 548-0276; or (833) 548-0282; or (877) 853-5247; or (888) 788-0099
Non Toll-Free numbers: (253) 215-8782; or (346) 248-7799; or (669) 900-9128

AGENDA

1. Call to order
Roll call
Pledge of Allegiance

Recognition of Visitors

o k~ w b

Awards and Presentations
a. Recognize City Employment Anniversary
e Marichu Miller, Department of Utilities, 15 years
e Timothy Mahoney, Department of Ports and Harbors, 25 years

6. Mayoral Proclamation Declaring October 2023 as Domestic Violence Awareness Month, with
presentation from M. Lynn Crane, Executive Director of Unalaskans Against Sexual Assault and
Family Violence (USAFV)

7. Oath of Office — Kim Hankins, Police Chief
8. Adoption of Agenda
9. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting September 26, 2023

10. City Manager Report

11. Community Input & Announcements Members of the public may provide information to council or
make announcements of interest to the community. Three-minute time limit per person.
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12. Public Comment on Agenda Items Time for members of the public to provide information to Council
regarding items on the agenda. Alternatively, members of the public may speak when the issue comes up on
the regular agenda by signing up with the City Clerk. Three-minute time limit per person.

13. Public Hearing Members of the public may testify about any item set for public hearing. Three-minute time
limit per person.

a.

Ordinance 2023-10: Creating Budget Amendment #1 to the Fiscal Year 2024 Budget,

appropriating $252,224 from the General Fund to create the Emergency Cliff Face
Stabilization on Ballyhoo Road Project; recognizing Local Support Revenue of
$13,090.59 in the General Fund and increasing the PCR Operating Budget by
$13,090.59 for the Senior Exercise Program; and accepting State of Alaska Department
of Health HEC Grant for $78,500 to fund EMS equipment upgrades and data sharing
capabilities with the IFHS clinic

14. Work Session Work sessions are for planning purposes, or studying and discussing issues before the

Council.

a.

FY22 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) Presentation — BDO

e City of Unalaska FY22 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

e City of Unalaska FY22 Federal Single Audit Reports

15. Regular Agenda Persons wishing to speak on regular agenda items must sign up with the City Clerk.
Three-minute time limit per person.

a.

Ordinance 2023-10: 2" Reading, Creating Budget Amendment #1 to the Fiscal Year
2024 Budget, appropriating $252,224 from the General Fund to create the Emergency
Cliff Face Stabilization on Ballyhoo Road Project; recognizing Local Support Revenue of
$13,090.59 in the General Fund and increasing the PCR Operating Budget by
$13,090.59 for the Senior Exercise Program; and accepting State of Alaska Department
of Health HEC Grant for $78,500 to fund EMS equipment upgrades and data sharing
capabilities with the IFHS clinic

Resolution 2023-39: Authorizing the City Manager to enter into an agreement with R&M
Consultants, Inc. for Assessment Services for the Emergency Cliff Face Stabilization
Ballyhoo Road Project in the amount of $47,606

Resolution 2023-40: Authorizing the City Manager to enter into an agreement with
Southeast Roadbuilders for Rock Stabilization Services for the Emergency Cliff Face
Stabilization Ballyhoo Road Project in the amount of $197,418

Canvass Committee Report, October 3, 2023 General Election; and Certification of
Election Results

Resolution 2023-41: Appointing Judges and Clerks for the Run-off Election on October
30, 2023 and Judges to serve on the Canvass Committee

16. Council Directives to City Manager

17. Community Input & Announcements Members of the public may provide information to council or
make announcements of interest to the community. Three-minute time limit per person.

18. Adjournment
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EMPLOYEE
ANNIVERSARY

MARICHU MILLER

* 15 Years *
Department of
Public Works

Congratulations!




EMPLOYEE
ANNIVERSARY

TIM MAHONEY

* 25 Years *

Department of
Ports and Harbors

Congratulations!




City of Unalaska, Alaska
PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS, all people living and working in Unalaska have the right to be safe in their homes, workplaces and
community. Domestic Violence is widespread and devastating to many Alaskan families, and we must combat
these crimes; and

WHEREAS, the physical and emotional scars of domestic violence affect men, women and children across our
state in alarming numbers. Domestic violence violates an individual’s dignity, security and humanity and can
leave lifelong scars on the minds, bodies and spirits of victims; and

WHEREAS, in the United States, approximately one in four women and one in seven men have been victims
of domestic violence, and 15.5 million children are exposed to violence every year; and

WHEREAS, one in three adult women in Alaska have been victims of stalking in their lifetime and one in nine
Alaskan women 60 years of age or older experienced psychological or physical abuse in the past two years;
and

WHEREAS, domestic violence remains a serious crime that crosses all economic, racial, gender, educational,
religious and societal barriers. In Alaska, we acknowledge the disproportional impact that interpersonal
violence has on Alaska Native populations where 80% of Alaska Native women have experienced one or
more forms of violence in their lifetime; and

WHEREAS, as Unalaskans, we must demonstrate with our words and actions that we do not tolerate intimate
partner violence. We will continue to build alliances among community entities, businesses and
governmental, educational and faith-based organizations that will strengthen our families and hold offenders
accountable for their crimes; and

WHEREAS, every October, we recognize the victims and survivors of domestic violence, and remind them
that they are not alone. We also recognize those working and volunteering for USAFV (Unalaskans Against
Sexual Assault and Family Violence), who stand ready to respond to those in crisis day or night; and

WHEREAS, USAFV provides safe shelter, advocacy, personal support and other services to adults and
children impacted by domestic violence in Unalaska and Dutch Harbor; and

WHEREAS, USAFV seeks to prevent future domestic violence by providing education and outreach to people
of all ages; and

WHEREAS, only a coordinated community effort will put a stop to domestic violence.

NOW, THEREFORE, |, , MAYOR PRO TEM OF THE CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA,
DO HEREBY PROCLAIM THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2023 AS DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS MONTH,
AND URGE ALL CITIZENS TO WORKTOWARD THE ELIMINATION OF ALL VIOLENCE WITHIN FAMILIES AND
WITHIN DATING RELATIONSHIPS OF ALL KINDS.

SO PROCLAIMED this 10th day of October 2023.

ATTEST: Mayor Pro Tem

Estkarlen Magdaong
City Clerk
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Unalaska, Alaska

OATH OF OFFICE

I, KIM HANKINS, do solemnly swear that I will honestly, faithfully and impartially
perform the duties of Chief of Police of the City of Unalaska, in true accord with the Constitution
of the United States of America, the laws of the State of Alaska, and the Code of Ordinances of
the City of Unalaska.

I take this oath freely, without the least equivocation, mental reservation or self evasion

of mind whatsoever.

Kim Hankins

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 10" day of October 2023.

Estkarlen Magdaong
City Clerk
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Regular Meeting
Tuesday, September 26, 2023
6:00 p.m.

Unalaska City Hall
Council Chambers
43 Raven Way

Council Members
Thomas D. Bell
Darin Nicholson

Council Members
Dennis M. Robinson

Daneen Looby Alejandro R. Tungul
To Provide a Sustainable Quality of Life Shari Coleman
Through Excellent Stewardship of Government
UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL

P. O. Box 610 = Unalaska, Alaska 99685
Tel (907) 581-1251 = Fax (907) 581-1417 = www.ci.unalaska.ak.us

Mayor: Vincent M. Tutiakoff, Sr. City Manager: William Homka
City Clerk: Estkarlen P. Magdaong, emagdaong@ci.unalaska.ak.us

MINUTES

Call to order. Council Member Tungul called the regular meeting of the Unalaska City Council to
order on September 26, 2023, at 6:09 p.m.

Roll call. The City Clerk called the roll. Council members Bell, Coleman, Looby and Tungul were
present in person while Nicholson, Robinson and Tutiakoff participated remotely. Tungul
announced a quorum established.

Looby read the City’s Mission Statement: To provide a sustainable quality of life through excellent
stewardship of government.

Bell moved to appoint Tungul as Mayor Pro Tem; second by Coleman. Motion passed by
consensus.

Pledge of Allegiance. Tungul led the Pledge of Allegiance.
Recognition of Visitors. Mayor Pro Tem recognized the following people in attendance:

e Cameron Dean, Planning Director
e Patricia Soule, Finance Director
e Carol Atonio, Police Officer

Oaths of Office. City Clerk administered the oath of office for Finance Director Patricia Soule and
Police Officer Carol Atonio.

Deputy Chief Bill Simms introduced and welcomed Police Officer Carol Atonio as her husband,
Sililo Atonio, pinned on her badge.

. Adoption of Agenda. Looby moved to adopt the agenda; second by Coleman. There being no
objection, the agenda was adopted by consensus.

. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting. Coleman moved to approve the proposed minutes of the
September 12, 2023 meeting, with a second by Looby. There being no objection, motion passed by
consensus.
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8. City Manager Report. In addition to the written report, Acting City Manager mentioned that the
presentation of FY22 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report will happen during the October 10,
2023 meeting. ACM also welcomed Planning Director Cameron Dean and Finance Director Patricia
Soule. Fire Chief Kim Hankins will start on October 9, 2023.

9. Community Input & Announcements were given as follows:

e Roger Blakeley, PCR Director announced programs available at the Parks and
Recreation Center.

¢ M. Lynn Crane announced the Unalaska Interagency Cooperative meeting at Unalaska
Public Library on Thursday, September 28, 2023 at noon; Dustin Morris of American
Foundation for Suicide Prevention, Alaska Chapter is in town doing multiple workshops;
Make a Difference Dinner for suicide prevention and awareness on Friday, September
29, 2023 from 6:00-8:00 pm at the Unalaska Highschool Small Gym; to recognize
Orange Shirt Day on Saturday, September 30, 2023, USAFV along with Qawalangin
Tribe will host a free film screening of the documentary Unspoken: America’s Native
American Boarding School at 6:00 pm in the Unalaska Library Community Room.

¢ Natalie Cale from Ounalashka Corporation spoke and provided an update on OCCP,
LLC.

o City Clerk announced General Municipal Election on October 3, 2023 and the Canvass
Committee Meeting at 10:00 am on October 6, 2023.

¢ Frank Kelty gave an update on the fisheries.
10. Public Comment on Agenda Items. None.

11. Public Hearing. Mayor Pro Tem opened the public hearing on Ordinance 2023-09: Amending
Unalaska Code of Ordinances, Title 3 Personnel, Chapter 3.52.010 Personal Leave Accrual Plan

There being no testimony, Mayor Pro Tem closed the public hearing.
12. Regular Agenda

¢ Unfinished Business

i Ordinance 2023-09: 2" Reading, Amending Unalaska Code of Ordinance, Title 3
Personnel, Chapter 3.52.010 Personal Leave Accrual Plan

Coleman moved to adopt Ordinance 2023-09, with a second by Bell.
Acting City Manager provided an overview of the ordinance.
Council discussion.

Roll call vote: Coleman — yes; Bell — yes; Looby — yes; Nicholson — yes; Tungul — yes;
Robinson — yes

Motion passed 6-0
b. New Business

i.  Ordinance 2023-10: Creating Budget Amendment #1 to the Fiscal Year 2024 Budget,
appropriating $252,224 from the General Fund to create the Emergency Cliff Face
Stabilization on Ballyhoo Road Project; recognizing Local Support Revenue of

-2-
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$13,090.59 in the General Fund and increasing the PCR Operating Budget by
$13,090.59 for the Senior Exercise Program; and accepting State of Alaska Department
of Health HEC Grant for $78,500 to fund EMS equipment upgrades and data sharing
capabilities with the IFHS clinic

Coleman made a motion to introduce Ordinance 2023-10 and schedule it for public
hearing and second reading on October 10, 2023; with a second by Looby.

Acting City Manager provided an overview of the ordinance and answered Council
questions.

Fire Chief Ben Knowles provided information and answered Council questions.

Roll call vote: Looby — yes; Coleman — yes; Nicholson — yes; Robinson — yes; Tungul —
yes; Bell — yes

Motion passed 6-0

13. Council Directives to City Manager. None.
14. Community Input & Announcements. None

15. Adjournment. Having completed all items on the agenda, Mayor Pro Tem adjourned the meeting
at 6:49 p.m.

These minutes were approved by the Unalaska City Council on October 10, 2023.

Estkarlen P. Magdaong
City Clerk
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TO:

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

Mayor Tutiakoff and City Council Members

FROM: Marjie Veeder, Acting City Manager
DATE: October 10, 2023

High-Speed Internet: The Information Systems Division is pleased to announce that all City facilities
are now connected to high-speed, fiber optic internet service. This service has been a long time in
coming, and this increased connectivity will have a very positive impact on our day-to-day work.

Classification and Compensation Study for Unrepresented Employees: The work is proceeding and
directors are in the process of reviewing position description questionnaires. We are still on track to
complete the study by the end of the year, or early in 2024.

Removal of Abandoned Vehicles and Scrap Metal: We are proceeding with planning for this project
utilizing Trident’s offer of their supply barges for backhaul off the island. We have learned that there
will be no barges until the summer of 2024, which provides time to assemble all of the elements of a
community-wide program.

Staffing Update: Police Chief Kim Hankins has arrived and began work yesterday. The current number
of open positions by department are:

Department Openings Detail

Administration 1 HR Manager

Clerks 1 Administrative Assistant

DPS 3 Sergeant, Police Officer, Corrections Officer

Fire/EMS 0

DPU 9 Director, Electrical Eng. Tech (offer pending), 2 Lineman,
Lineman Chief, Water Supervisor, 2 Water Operators &
Solid Waste Operator

DPW 3 City Engineer, Light Equipment Mechanic, Installation
Maintenance Worker

Finance 1 Controller

PCR 6 4 Lifeguards, Recreation Program Coordinator, FT
Library Assistant (offer pending)

Planning 2 Administrative Assistant, GIS Administrator

Ports 1 Billing and Scheduling Clerk

Community Extra Mile Awards: This award is presented to citizens within the community who have
gone the extra mile to assist with a city function, event, or specific incident. Nominations for this
award can be made by any member of the City’s Supervisory and Management Staff or by a City
Council Member or the Mayor. Mayor and Council are encouraged to make nominations as they see
fit.

LEPC: LEPC membership guidelines require participation by local elected officials. It would be great to
have a City Council member or the Mayor sign up as a regular member and another elected official
sign up as an alternate. The plan is for quarterly meetings and the first meeting was held in July. Sign-
up can be accomplished at this link: https://form.jotform.com/231555985072059
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CITY OF UNALASKA
UNALASKA, ALASKA

ORDINANCE 2023-10

CREATING BUDGET AMENDMENT #1 TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2024 BUDGET, APPROPRIATING $252,224 FROM
THE GENERAL FUND TO CREATE THE EMERGENCY CLIFF FACE STABILIZATION ON BALLYHOO ROAD
PROJECT; RECOGNIZING LOCAL SUPPORT REVENUE OF $13,090.59 IN THE GENERAL FUND AND
INCREASING THE PCR OPERATING BUDGET BY $13,090.59 FOR THE SENIOR EXERCISE PROGRAM; AND
ACCEPTING STATE OF ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH HEC GRANT FOR $78,500 TO FUND EMS
EQUIPMENT UPGRADES AND DATA SHARING CAPABILITIES WITH THE IFHS CLINIC

BE IT ENACTED BY THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL

Section 1. Classification: This is a non-code ordinance.
Section 2. Effective Date: This ordinance becomes effective upon adoption.
Section 3. Content: The City of Unalaska FY24 Budget is amended as follows:

A. That the following sums of money are hereby accepted and the following sums of money
are hereby authorized for expenditure.
B. The following are the changes by account line item:

Amendment No. 1 to Ordinance 2023-03

Current Requested Revised
I. OPERATING BUDGETS
A. General Fund
Sources:
Appropriated Fund Balance $ - $ 252,224 $ 252,224
Local Support - APIA $ - $ 13,091 $ 13,091
State of Alaska Grant $ - $ 78,500 $ 78,500
$ - $ 343815 § 343,815
Uses:
Transfers to Enterprise Capital Projects $ - $ 252,224 $ 252,224
Parks, Culture and Recreation - Rec Programs $ 953,104 $ 13,091 $ 966,195
Fire & EMS $ 1,759,581 $ 78,500 $ 1,838,081
$ 2,712,685 $ 343815 $ 3,056,500
Il. CAPITAL BUDGETS
A. Port Project Budget
Emergency Cliff Face Stabilization Ballyhoo Road Project
Sources:
Transfers from General Fund $ - $ 252,224 $ 252,224
Uses:
Emergency Cliff Face Stabilization Project $ - $ 225224 § 225,224

PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on October 10, 2023.

Vincent M. Tutiakoff, Sr.
Mayor
Attest:

Estkarlen P. Magdaong
City Clerk
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City of Unalaska
Summary of Budget Amendment and Schedule of Proposed Accounts
FY24 Budget Amendment 1

1) General Fund - Operating Budget
Add $252,224 to Appropriated Fund Balance
Add $13,090.59 to Rec Program Temp Employees for APIA senior exercise program
Add $78,500 to Fire/EMS - Grants for equipment upgrades and IFHS data sharing

2) Port Fund Capital Projects Budget
Add $252,224 to Transfers from General Fund
Add $252,224 to Emergency Cliff Face Stabilization Ballyhoo Road Project budget

Org Object  Project Current Requested Revised
1) General Fund - Operating Budget
Sources:
Appropriated Fund Balance 01010049 49900 b - 252,224.00 b 252,224.00
PCR Private Contributions 01012047 47400 P - 13,090.59 $ 13,090.59
Other Grants-DPS 01011041 42198 b - 78,500.00 b 78,500.00
Uses:
Transfer to Enterprise Capital Projects 01029854 59940 R - 252,224.00 $252,224.00
Rec Programs - Temp Employees 01023251 51200 b 22,000.00 13,090.59 b 35,090.59
Fire/EMS - Grants (Supplies) 01021552 56450 b - 78,500.00 $ 78,500.00

2) Port Fund - Capital Project Budgets
Emergency Cliff Face Stabilization Ballyhoo Road Project

Sources:
Transfer from General Fund 54119848 49100 PH24A $ - $252,224.00 $252,224.00
Uses:
Engineering and Architectural 54127053 53240 PH24A R - 54,806.00 $ 54,806.00
Construction Services 54127053 54500 PH24A b - 151,860.00 5 151,860.00
Contingency 54127053 55912 PH24A - 45,558.00 $ 45,558.00
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MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL

To: Mayor and City Council Members

From: Peggy McLaughlin, Port Director

Through: Marjie Veeder, Acting City Manager

Date: September 26, 2023

Re: Ordinance 2023-10: Creating FY24 Budget Amendment #1, to provide funding

for the Emergency CIiff Face Stabilization Ballyhoo Road Project

SUMMARY: If adopted, Ordinance 2023-10 will create FY24 Budget Amendment #1 to provide
emergency funding for cliff face stabilization on Ballyhoo Road, and transfer funds from GL Fund
01029854-59940 to 54119848-49100-PH24A in an amount not to exceed $252,224. This
proposed amount of emergency funding will fund the planning, equipment, mobilization, labor,
and project oversight required to safely remove the immediate rock hazard on Ballyhoo Road,
City parcel 01-09-200. There are two contractors: R&M Consultants, in charge of geology,
planning, and assessment; and Southeast Road Builders, in charge of implementing methods
and the removal of the rock hazard on Parcel 01-09-200. The second reading for final approval
of the ordinance is requested for October 10, 2023.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: Council has had no formal action for this project, but have been
briefed on the mitigation efforts in process. This request is the first request for formal action.

BACKGROUND: In December of 2022 a severe storm caused community-wide flooding and mud
and rock slides. These hazards included landslides and rock fall on and in the vicinity of Ballyhoo
parcel 01-09-200. Once the water had receded, large rock falls continued. A significant threat was
identified on Ballyhoo Road parcel 01-09-200 in the form of a large overhanging rock wedge with
a potential slip plane. A similar rock hazard fell in 2014 and caused damage to the warehouse on
the same plot. Ultimately, the City was responsible for approximately $315,000 for the 2014
damages.

DISCUSSION: The emergency funding is requested as the threat of rock falls still exists, and
property and human safety are at imminent risk. It is anticipated that the freeze and thaw cycles
of winter could provoke the rock wedge to break loose. Weather is not the only risk. In June 2023,
a forklift-sized rock fell from underneath wedge and along the slip plane. It is clear that action
needs to be taken.

R&M conducted the first assessment in February and provided the City with names of contractors
with scaling and rock anchoring expertise. We contacted each of those companies and had one
response from Southeast Road Builders. We are considering this an emergency project and
consequently are doing our due diligence to avoid sole sourcing, but also understand the urgency
in expediting this project.

There a few layers to the structure of this project.

First, there are two contractors involved, R&M Consultants and Southeast Road Builders. The
proposals are structured with a phased approach. Attached with this memo are 2 proposals from
Southeast Road Builders and one from R&M Consultants.
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The first layer will be to hand-scale loose rock and break free and remove any potential hazards
without aggressive action. This is outlined in the first proposal (Phase 1) from Southeast Road
Builders. The proposal for this phase shows lump sum costs for mobilization and fixed costs and
consumables along with daily rates for crew time for the other tasks. Their proposal states that it
is anticipated to be four days for hand scaling (task 2) and two days for the blasting
expert/manager onsite (task 3). By inputting their assumed number of days multiplied by the daily
rate for tasks 2 and 3, we can assume a total estimated cost of phase 1 to be $75,280.

After the hand-scaling is complete, R&M will reassess the rock over hang and determine whether
or not more aggressive efforts need be taken to secure the rock face. If further rock removal is
required Southeast Road Builders has provided a proposal for blasting and removing additional
rock hazards. The proposal for phase 2 is a little clearer with the days included in the quantity for
tasks 2 and 3. The total estimated cost for phase 2 is $76,580.

Totaling phase 1 work and phase 2 work gets us to $151,860. Staff recommends a contingency
of 30% added, for a total cost of work, with contingency, of $197,418.

Geotechnical expertise shall be provided by R&M Consulting. R&M did the initial assessment of
the rock face in February 2023. R&M will work with the contractor for the duration of the project
to provide hazard removal assessment services during the removal process and an assessment
report to conclusions and recommendations at the completion of the removal effort. Their proposal
is attached (Latitude 54 Hazard Removal Proposal) and is in the amount of $47,606.

We have also requested the addition of $7,200 into the project to cover the initial consultation
done by Southeast Road Builders, which brings the budget amendment request to $252,224.

ALTERNATIVES: Council may choose to approve the budget amendment and fund the project;
or not approve the funding. Council could also choose to put this through the traditional CMMP
process, which is not recommended due to the imminent danger to people and property.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: This mitigation will be funded by the general fund.

LEGAL: There are no immediate legal requirements to this, but failing to address this will likely
result in future liability to the City.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends adoption of Ordinance 2023-10.

PROPOSED MOTION: First reading: | move to introduce Ordinance 2023-10 and schedule it for
second reading and public hearing on October 10, 2023.

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS: | support the Staff Recommendation. It is important to shore up
this cliff face to prevent future damage to people and property.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. SE Road Builders - Phase 1 Proposal
2. SE Road Builders — Phase 2 Proposal
3. R&M Consultants, Inc.
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HC60 Box 4800
Haines, Ak 99827
PHONE: 907-766-2833

FAX: 907-766-2832

CONTRACTOR'S LICENSE NO.: 134313
BUSINESS LICENSE NO.: 1086571

SOUTHEAST
ROADBUILDERS

HAINES, ALASKA
QUOTATION FOR:
International Port of Dutch Harbor (Unalaska)
Attn: Marc Kielmeyer, Project Engineer
Unalaska, Alaska 99692

OWNER: - City of Unalaska
DATE: September 17, 2023

Project:
PHASE | - Latitude 54 Rockfall Mitigation (scaling only)
ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
1 Mobilization L.S. All Req'd | $29,000.00 $29,000.00
2 Daily Rate - scaling/anchors (Site Development) ea. day $6,495.00
3 Blasting/Matting/Scaling Manager (prep for phase 1) ea. day $2,200.00
4 Fixed Costs- (consumables and rentals) L.S. AllReq'd | $15,900.00 $15,900.00
TOTAL AMOUNT OF QUOTATION $44,900.00
L.S.(Lump Sum)/TBD(To Be Determined)/ea.(Each)/C.S.(Contingent Sum)/Tn(ton)/c.y.(cubic yard) Borough Sales Tax Added Where Applicable
NOTES: 1 ea. mobilization - in/out

Without scaling incidental areas (away from wedge), we don't anticipate over 4 days of work, - R&M will direct accordingly
Item #3 - We don't expect this to be over a 2-day task to analyze and provide a risk assessment
INCLUSIONS:
Mobilization Includes crew to/from, freight for all non available materials/supplies from ANCH/ANCH layover
Day rate includes rental vehicle/3 ea. laborers/specialist/hotels/perdiem/equip. operating costs
Scaling at the direction of R&M Consultants (scaling only task)
9 hour day work day anticipated
local support for equipment and available consumables
(Item #3 -Manager will be knowledge of all available resources based upon methods recommended
(matting/blasting/rock bolting/dowels, etc.)
Anchoring system for scaling personnel
EXCLUSIONS:
Authorization for access above site and scaling debris removal by others
Permitting
Performance and Payment Bonding
non daylight work
® This quote may be withdrawn if not signed and returned within 30 days.
e TERMS: Full payment due within 30 days of invoice, unless defined otherwise via subcontact
A FINANCE CHARGE OF .88% per month (which is an annual percentage rate of 10.5%) will be imposed on any portion
of your account not paid within 30 days after billing date.

® A service charge of 2.5% will be imposed on all credit card payments
If this proposal meets your approval, please complete and return. Your signature on one copy returned to us will make this a legal
contract for the performance of the above work and your acceptance of the terms listed.

Company: Phone No.

Billing Address:

Authorized Signer:

(printed name) date:

SIGNATURE:
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HC60 Box 4800
Haines, Ak 99827
PHONE: 907-766-2833

FAX: 907-766-2832

CONTRACTOR'S LICENSE NO.: 134313
BUSINESS LICENSE NO.: 1086571

SOUTHEAST
ROADBUILDERS

HAINES, ALASKA
QUOTATION FOR:
International Port of Dutch Harbor (Unalaska)
Attn: Marc Kielmeyer, Project Engineer
748 Ballyhoo Road
Unalaska, Alaska 99692

OWNER: - City of Unalaska
DATE: September 17, 2023
Project:
Latitude 54 Rockfall Mitigation (Wedge Removal Option - Estimate Only)
Wedge Work Only

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
1 Mobilization* L.S. All Req'd $1,600.00 $1,600.00
2 Set-up (matting-secure site for release) 4.0 day $6,495.00 $25,980.00
3 Professional Services w/ monitoring 4.0 day $3,200.00 $12,800.00
4 Fixed Costs- (consumables, explosives/rentals/matting...) L.S. AllReq'd | $36,200.00 $36,200.00
TOTAL AMOUNT OF QUOTATION $76,580.00
L.S.(Lump Sum)/TBD(To Be Determined)/ea.(Each)/C.S.(Contingent Sum)/Tn(ton)/c.y.(cubic yard) Borough Sales Tax Added Where Applicable
NOTES: *Mobilization - Assumes men "on-site" and paid in Phase 1 - otherwise approximately $25,200.00)

This assumes we have a quick solution and Phase |l immediately transitions from Phase |
Guestimate of 4-days work for wedge only. (netting/drilling/loading/shooting)
See phase | for any scaling or manual rock removal requirements
INCLUSIONS:
Assumes mats or approved protective netting is available in Unalaska
Day rate includes rental vehicle/3 ea. laborers/specialist/hotels/perdiem/equip. operating costs
also includes drilling for explosives as directed by specialist
Blasting magazine, blasting supplies, explosives and initiators are readily available for purchase in Unalaska
9 hour day work day anticipated
Local support for equipment and available consumables
Specialist working with R&M Consultants
Seismographs and vibration monitoring
EXCLUSIONS:
Scaling after release of wedge (uncertain of site conditions beyond, behind or above wedge)
Authorization for access above site by others/Clean-up & removal of scaled and rockfall materials
Permitting, Performance and Payment Bonding
Non daylight work
® This quote may be withdrawn if not signed and returned within 30 days.
® TERMS: Full payment due within 30 days of invoice, unless defined otherwise via subcontract
A FINANCE CHARGE OF .88% per month (which is an annual percentage rate of 10.5%) will be imposed on any portion
of your account not paid within 30 days after billing date.

® A service charge of 2.5% will be imposed on all credit card payments
If this proposal meets your approval, please complete and return. Your signature on one copy returned to us will make this a legal

contract for the performance of the above work and your acceptance of the terms listed.

Company: Phone No.

Billing Address:

Authorized Signer:

(printed name) date:

SIGNATURE:
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R&M CONSULTANTS, INC.
ANCHORAGE | FAIRBANKS | JUNEAU

September 20, 2023 R&M No. 3052.01
Ms. Peggy McLaughlin Via E-mail: pmclaughlin@ci.unalaska.ak.us
Director

International Port of Dutch Harbor
City of Unalaska, Alaska

RE: Unstable Slope Hazard Removal Assessment Services
Latitude 54 Building, Dutch Harbor, Alaska

Dear Ms. McLaughlin,

R&M Consultants, Inc. (R&M) appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal to provide unstable slope hazard removal
assessment services to the International Port of Dutch Harbor, City of Unalaska (Unalaska) in support of a known unstable

slope located immediately behind and adjacent to the Latitude 54 building along Ballyhoo Road at the Port of Dutch Harbor.

We understand that the City of Unalaska is currently in negotiations with Southeast Road Builders to conduct hazard removal
services consisting of rock scaling and possible rock blasting services at the project site. The intent of this effort is to reduce
the hazard and risk that the unstable slope poses to the Latitude 54 facility. At the request of the Port and the City, R&M is
providing this fee estimate to provide hazard removal assessment services during the removal process and an assessment

report with conclusions and recommendations at the completion of the removal effort.

SCOPE OF GEOTECHNICAL HAZARD REMOVAL ASSESMENT SERVICES

R&M will provide the city with on-site geologist/geotechnical engineer with experience in monitoring unstable slope hazard
removal operations. During removal operations, the R&M representative will remain on-site to monitor progress and evaluate
the slope for any emerging or additional hazards. Of particular concern will be monitoring removal operations to ensure that
no overhanging hazards remain and that all areas of differential erosion are addressed. Our scope of work is defined in the

following tasks.

e Task1Report of Hazard Removal Construction Objectives.

o R&M will prepare a report that defines objectives and general geometrics of the hazard removal for use as

a guide during construction.

o Contractor will be fully responsible for means and methods to execute the work and for executing the work

in a safe manner and without damage to existing facilities.

RMCONSULT.COM | 9101 VANGUARD DRIVE, ANCHORAGE, AK 99507 | 907.522.1707
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Unstable Slope Hazard Removal Assessment Services Estimate - Latitude 54 Building

Page 2 of 3

e Tasks 2 and 3 Rock Scaling and Rock Blasting Support. These tasks include on-site monitoring during construction

activities and to assess stability and hazard removal.

e Task 4 Hazard Assessment Reporting. Once hazard removal operations are completed, R&M will prepare a hazard

removal assessment report which will include:
o Summaries of site visit activities, Daily Reports, research, observations, and rock mechanics data;
o Adiscussion of any remaining slope stability concerns and underlying failure mechanisms;

o General conclusions regarding any remaining interpreted slope stability hazards, available mitigation

options, and recommendations for mitigation and/or additional investigation; and
o A photograph log with descriptions depicting conditions referenced in report text.

Field personnel will be under the direct supervision of a Certified Professional Geologist or Professional Civil/Geotechnical
Engineer. All geotechnical findings, conclusions, and recommendations will be prepared under the supervision of a

geotechnical engineer registered as a Professional Civil Engineer in the State of Alaska.

SCHEDULE

R&M can be able to perform the hazard removal assessment within approximately two weeks following notice-to-proceed.

The report will be submitted within three weeks following completion of field work.

ASSUMPTIONS AND CONDITIONS

R&M’s proposal and fee are based on acknowledgement that:

e Both the rock-scaling assessment and rock-blasting assessment portions are based on 4-day completion periods.
Should conditions warrant additional time on-site, R&M can provide the City with additional fee estimates to
complete any increased level of effort.

e Hazard removal assessment activities are conducted prior to significant snowfall and freeze-up.

PRICE

R&M will provide the hazard removal assessment services on a Time and Expenses basis with a not-to-exceed price of
$47,606 In this estimate, we have planned for approximately 221 labor hours, and will not exceed that without prior

authorization.
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Unstable Slope Hazard Removal Assessment Services Estimate - Latitude 54 Building

Page 3 0of 3

CLOSURE

We thank you for the opportunity to propose on this hazard removal assessment effort, and hope our response meets your
expectations. Please do not hesitate to contact me at your convenience if you have questions or require additional

information.

Sincerely,

R&M CONSULTANTS, INC. ACCEPTED BY:

5L

Aaron T. Banks, C.P.G.

Senior Geologist

Attachments: Detailed Cost Estimate (5-pages)

Packet Page Number 19



d Drive » h i . 3 4
R&:M CONSULTANTS, INC. | iZtontSirect 4150 - Fairbanics AK 56701 - 507.452.5270
B A e O e =]

Firm: R&M i i . Date:
Client: City of Unalaska Project Title: Lattitude 54 Hazard Removal Support 9/20/2023
Task Discipline Task Description Labor Expenses Sub-Contractors Task Totals Cost Basis
1 ES Hazard Removal Construction Objective Planning | $ 5,676.00 | $ -S -1 S 5,676.00 T&E
2 ES Rock Scaling Support S 17,622.00 | $ 4,615.80 | $ - S 22,237.80 T&E
3 ES Rock Blasting Support S 11,160.00 | $ 1,692.60 S -1S 12,852.60 T&E
4 ES Hazard Assessement Reporting S 6,840.00 | $ - S -1 S 6,840.00 T&E
$ -1$ -8 -8 -
$ - S - S - S -
$ -8 -8 -8 -
$ - S - S - S -
$ -8 -1$ -1$ -
$ - S - S - S -
Total Project Cost Estimate: S 47,606
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COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: R&M Consultants, Inc. IPROJECT TITLE: Lattitude 54 Hazard Removal Support
TASK NO: 1 TASK DESCRIPTION: Hazard Removal Construction Objective Planning DATE: 9/20/2023
GROUP: ES METHOD OF PAYMENT: O rp ] rpre T&E ] cprr PREPARED BY: A. Banks/T. Ross
Contract Prof 5 Prof 3 Geol 2
SUB-TASK Prof 4 (Geol
NO SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Manager (Geotech) rof 4 (Geol) (Geotech) (Geotech)
L. Story B. Pintner A. Banks B. Mullen A. Brown
Work Planning 2 12 16
TOTAL LABOR HOURS 0 2 12 16 0 0 0 0 0
* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $ 276.00 S 246.00 S 192.00 | $ 180.00  $ 108.00 | $ $ - S ) - s -
LABOR COSTS ($) $ - $ 49200 $ 230400 S  2,880.00 $ - S $ - 8 - s - s -
EXPENSES COMMENTS
[ ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE |1) R&M will prepare a report that defines objectives and general geometrics of the
Project Expenses hazard removal for use as a guide during construction.
TOTAL EXPENSES: S B
R&M Laboratory Testing
FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): S 5,676.00
$ -
$ -
R&M MATERIAL LABORATORY EXPENSES S -
SUB-CONTRACTORS: Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES (w/ markup %) 5.0% $ -
FIRM: [ [ TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES (w/markup %): 5.0% $ -
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COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: R&M Consultants, Inc. IPROJECT TITLE: Lattitude 54 Hazard Removal Support
TASK NO: 2 TASK DESCRIPTION: Rock Scaling Support DATE: 9/20/2023
GROUP: ES METHOD OF PAYMENT: ] ep ] rprE T&E [ cprr PREPARED BY: A. Banks/T. Ross
Contract Prof 5 Prof 3 Geol 2
SUB-TASK Prof 4 (Geol
NO SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Manager (Geotech) rof 4 (Geol) (Geotech) (Geotech)
L. Story B. Pintner A. Banks B. Mullen A. Brown
2.1 Project Management and Coordination 1 4 2
2.2 Mobilization/Demobilization 4 24
2.3 Field Investigation 4 8 48
TOTAL LABOR HOURS 0 5 16 74 0 0 0 0 0
* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $ 276.00 S 246.00 | $ 192.00 | $ 180.00  $ 108.00 | $ $ - S - 1S - s -
LABOR COSTS ($) S - S 1,230.00 | $ 3,072.00 | $§ 13,320.00 S - S $ - $ - $ - $ -
EXPENSES COMMENTS
[ ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE |1) Assumes 4 days of rock scaling support. Additional days on site will be billed at a
Project Expenses rate of 12 hours per day plus per diem.
23 RT be.tween AN'C and DUT : 1 S 1,978.00 | $ 1,978.00 ) A site visit will be made by a Senior Geologist or Geotechnical Engineer to monitor
;: \P/e:‘!):er; (L(t)dlgm% 'I:Vlerls, Incidentals) g i igggg i 1’32388 hazard removal operations.

: ehicle Rentaland rue : : 3) Assumes no delays due to weather/travel. Should a delay occur, we will negotiate
with the City of Unalaska for an equitable resolution. Unforeseen standby will be billed
at a rate of 8 hours per day plus per diem.

TOTAL EXPENSES: $ 4,396

R&M Laboratory Testing

FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): S 17,622.00
$ R
$ R
R&M MATERIAL LABORATORY EXPENSES S -
SUB-CONTRACTORS: Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES (w/ markup %) 5.0% $ 4,615.80
FIRM: [ [ TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES (w/markup %): 5.0% $ -
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COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: R&M Consultants, Inc. IPROJECT TITLE: Lattitude 54 Hazard Removal Support
TASK NO: 3 TASK DESCRIPTION: Rock Scaling Support DATE: 9/20/2023
GROUP: ES METHOD OF PAYMENT: ] ep ] rprE ] T&Ee [ cprr PREPARED BY: A. Banks/T. Ross
Contract Prof 5 Prof 3 Geol 2
SUB-TASK Prof 4 (Geol
NO SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Manager (Geotech) rof 4 (Geol) (Geotech) (Geotech)
L. Story B. Pintner A. Banks B. Mullen A. Brown
3.1 Field Investigation 4 8 48
TOTAL LABOR HOURS 0 4 8 48 0 0 0 0 0
* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $ 276.00 S 246.00 | $ 192.00 | $ 180.00  $ 108.00 | $ $ - S - 1S - s -
LABOR COSTS ($) $ - S 984.00 | $  1,536.00 S  8,640.00  $ - s $ - 8 - 1$ - s -
EXPENSES COMMENTS
[ ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE |1) Assumes 4 days of rock blasting support. Additional days on site will be billed at a
Project Expenses rate of 12 hours per day plus per diem.
2.1 Per Plem (Lodging, Meals, Incidentals) 4 $ 283.00 | $ 1,132.00 |2 Mopbilization/demobilization costs are accounted for under Task 1.
21 Vehicle Rental and Fuel 4 5 120.00 | 480.00 3) Assite visit will be made by a Senior Geologist or Geotechnical Engineer to monitor
hazard removal operations.
4) Unforeseen standby will be billed at a rate of 8 hours per day plus per diem.
TOTAL EXPENSES: $ 1,720
R&M Laboratory Testing
FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): S 11,160.00
$ R
$ R
R&M MATERIAL LABORATORY EXPENSES S -
SUB-CONTRACTORS: Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES (w/ markup %) 5.0% $ 1,692.60
FIRM: [ [ TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES (w/markup %): 5.0% $ -
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COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: R&M Consultants, Inc. IPROJECT TITLE: Lattitude 54 Hazard Removal Support
TASK NO: 4 TASK DESCRIPTION: Rock Blasting Support DATE: 9/20/2023
GROUP: ES METHOD OF PAYMENT: O e ] rppE O] Tae [ cpre PREPARED BY: A. Banks/T. Ross
Contract Prof 5 Prof 3 Geol 2
SUB-TASK Prof 4 (Geol
o SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Manager (Geotech) rof4(Geol) | (Geotech) (Geotech)
L. Story B. Pintner A. Banks B. Mullen A. Brown
Reporting 4 8 24
TOTAL LABOR HOURS 0 4 8 24 0 0 0 0 0 0
* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $ 276.00 | $ 246.00 | $ 192.00  $ 180.00 | $ 108.00 | $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
LABOR COSTS ($) S - S 984.00 | $ 1,536.00 | $ 4,320.00 | $ - S - $ - S - $ - $ -
EXPENSES COMMENTS
[ ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE |1) A letter report will be prepared detailing site conditions, conclusion, and
Project Expenses recommendations.
TOTAL EXPENSES: $ 108
R&M Laboratory Testing
FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): S 6,840.00
$ -
$ -
R&M MATERIAL LABORATORY EXPENSES S -
SUB-CONTRACTORS: Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES (w/ markup %) 5.0% $ -
FIRM: ‘ ‘ TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES (w/markup %): 5.0% $ -
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MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL

To: Mayor and City Council Members

From: Roger Blakeley, PCR Director

Through: Marjie Veeder, Acting City Manager

Date: September 26, 2023

Re: Ordinance 2023-10: Creating FY24 Budget Amendment #1

To receive $13,090.59 from the Aleutian Pribilof Islands Association to pay an
instructor for the Senior Exercise Program

SUMMARY: Ordinance 2023-10 accepts $13,090.59 to fund the Senior Exercise Program.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: In 2019, Council approved a similar request for $7,000 to start
the program. The program was successful, with funding from Aleutian Pribilof Islands Association
(APIA). Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the inability to offer regular instructor led classes in
FY21 this funding request was not made in 2020. Council approved a similar budget amendment
for $7,200 in FY22 and $10,000 in FY23 which allowed the Department of Parks, Culture (PCR)
to continue offering this programming in partnership with APIA.

BACKGROUND: APIA partnered with PCR to develop a senior exercise program. APIA received
a grant to fund the program and works with PCR to provide an instructor. PCR requests a budget
amendment to allocate an additional $13,090.59 to 01023251-51200 (Temporary Employees) to
hire the instructor for this program. This amount reflects the amount of money APIA received to
fund the personnel portion of the program.

PCR will invoice APIA for the hours worked by the instructor and we will receive reimbursement
for those hours up to the $13,090.59 outlined in the APIA grant. The result is $0 net loss to the
city, and gives PCR the ability to provide a much-needed senior exercise class in cooperation
with APIA. The program will end when the grant funds are exhausted.

DISCUSSION: Staff requests $13,090.59 to pay the Instructor for the Senior Exercise Class held
up to three times per week. Without this grant funding PCR would not be able to offer this senior
exercise program to the community.

ALTERNATIVES: Council may choose to approve the budget amendment and fund the program;
or not approve the funding and cancel the program.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: None
LEGAL: None
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends adoption of Ordinance 2023-10.

PROPOSED MOTION: First reading: | move to introduce Ordinance 2023-10 and schedule it for
second reading and public hearing on October 10, 2023.

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS: | support the Staff Recommendation.
ATTACHMENTS: None
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MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL

To: Mayor and City Council Members

From: Ben Knowles, Fire Chief

Through: Marjie Veeder, Acting City Manager

Date: September 26, 2023

Re: Ordinance 2023-10: Creating FY24 Budget Amendment #1

To receiving funding from State of Alaska Department of Health to update life-
saving equipment and increase data sharing capabilities with IFHS

SUMMARY: Accepting grant funding from the State of Alaska, Department of Health, Division of
Public Health — Division of Healthy and Equitable Communities, in the sum of $78,500.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: None

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: The Unalaska Fire Department continues to progress its
level of pre-hospital emergency care for the community by continually updating equipment and
services to the highest level of industry standards. Augmenting funding has been a priority to
ensure adequate funding and keeping a balanced budget. Recently, the fire department was
awarded a no-match grant from the State of Alaska, Department of Health, Division of Public
Health — Division of Healthy and Equitable Communities, in the sum of $78,500.

This is a no-match grant and will allow the fire department to upgrade much needed life-saving
equipment and increase our data sharing capabilities with the IFHS clinic. These funds will also
support the Mobile Integrated Healthcare pilot program. The State will be invoiced directly for
purchases.

Equipment Cost (est.) Justification
Updated respiratory equipment was identified

Updated Laryngoscopes 1$5 000.00 during the pandemic. The need for intubation rose
’ significantly.
Aid to be able to gain peripheral IV access in sick
Phlebotomy Infrared Lights 4s,OO0.00 and dehydrated patients, or those patients with

poor vascular structure, i.e.. Elders, infants, etc...

Vital station for medical trailer. Mounted inside at
Vital Stations $10,000.00 each patient station to be able to easily and quickly
assess vital signs.
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Server update for out dated IT equipment at IFHS
g Clinic. This will allow us to pursue new partnerships
and be able to data share more efficiently across all

platforms increasing the level of continuous care
provided by FIRE/EMS and IFHS.

g Tablets to be able to check-in and record patient
contacts during community general wellness and
pop-up vaccination clinics.

Server Update and Data Sharing 40.000.00

Data Terminals 9,500.00

Est. Total: $78,500

ALTERNATIVES: Council could choose to not accept the grant funding.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: None

LEGAL: None.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval.

PROPOSED MOTION: | move to introduce Ordinance 2023-09 and schedule it for public hearing
and second reading on October 10, 2023.

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS: | concur with the Staff Recommendation.
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Welcome

October 10, 2023
The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Unalaska

Professional standards require us to communicate with you regarding matters related to the
audit, that are, in our professional judgment, significant and relevant to your
responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. On September 13, 2022 we
presented an overview of our plan for the audit of the financial statements of City of
Unalaska, (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, including a summary of

our overall objectives for the audit, and the nature, scope, and timing of the planned audit | Assurance Practice Leader
work. - 907-770-2257 / jmerriner@bdo.com

This communication is intended to elaborate on the significant findings from our audit,
including our views on the qualitative aspects of the City’s accounting practices and
policies, management’s judgments and estimates, financial statement disclosures, and

h red A A Senior Manager
other required matters. "o 909-646-7302/ kmayes@bdo.com

We are pleased to be of service to the City and look forward to meeting with you to discuss
our audit findings, as well as other matters that may be of interest to you, and to answer
any questions you might have.

Respectfully,

OO UsSA

BDO USA, P.C., a Virginia professional service corporation, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by
guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. BDO is the brand name for the BDO network
and for each of the BDO Member Firms.

l:)
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Status of Our Audit

We have substantially completed our audit of the financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022. Our audit was conducted in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
This audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities.

» The objective of our audit was to obtain reasonable - not absolute - assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements.

» The scope of the work performed was substantially the same as that described to you in our earlier Audit Planning communications. We issued unmodified
opinions on the basic financial statements and released our report on October 4, 2023.

» We issued our report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other matters based on an audit of financial statements performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards on October 4, 2023.

» We issued an unmodified opinion on the City’s Single Audit report, including the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) on October 4, 2023.

» In planning and performing our audit of the SEFA, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on its major federal program(s) to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with GAS and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance.

» Our responsibility for other information in documents containing the City’s audited financial statements does not extend beyond the financial information
identified in the audit report, and we are not required to perform procedures to corroborate such other information. However, in accordance with professional
standards, we have read the information included by the City and considered whether such information, or the manner of its presentation, was materially
inconsistent with its presentation in the financial statements. Our responsibility also includes calling to management’s attention any information that we
believe is a material misstatement of fact. We have not identified any material inconsistencies or concluded there are any material misstatements of facts in
the other information that management has chosen not to correct.

» All records and information requested by BDO were freely available for our inspection.
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Results of the Audit

ACCOUNTING PRACTICES, POLICIES, AND ESTIMATES

The following summarizes the more significant required communications related to our
audit concerning the City’s accounting practices, policies, and estimates:

The City’s significant accounting practices and policies are those included in Note 1 to the
financial statements. These accounting practices and policies are appropriate, comply with
generally accepted accounting principles and industry practice, were consistently applied,
and are adequately described within Note 1 to the financial statements.

» A summary of recently issued accounting pronouncements is included in Note 6 to the
City’s financial statements.

» In 2022, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 87 - Leases - Effective for the year-ended
June 30, 2022. This statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain
lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases.
This Statement establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. The City did
discovery of all active leases and used materiality policies to determine whether they
applied to GASB 87, then accounted for those that qualified accordingly.

» There were no other changes in significant accounting policies and practices during 2022.

Significant estimates are those that require management’s most difficult, subjective, or
complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effects of
matters that are inherently uncertain. None of the estimates identified have been
considered significant in the current year. The City’s accounting estimates, including a
description of management’s processes and assumptions used in development of the
estimates, are disclosed in Note 1 of the financial statements.

Accounting Estimates

Net Pension/OPEB Liabilities - For purposes of measuring the City’s OPEB
liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the Alaska Public Employees Retirement System’s (PERS) OPEB
Plans and additions to/deductions from the PERS’s OPEB Plans’ fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS.

Leases - The City used a discount rate of 2% to discount the expected future
payments for leases accounted for under GASB Statement No. 87 when the rate
implicit in the lease was not readily available.

Fair Value Measurements - The City categorizes its fair value measurements
within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting
principles.

Insured Liabilities - The City currently participates in the Alaska Public Entity
Insurance (APEI) pool, which covers property and contents, general, auto
liability, law enforcement legal liability, errors and omissions, earthquake and
flood, marine, and workers compensation

Landfill Closure Liability - Based on engineering studies and estimated inflation
factors; accrued based on landfill usage over time.

» Management did not make any significant changes to the processes or significant
assumptions used to develop accounting estimates in 2022.

The methods used to account for significant or unusual transactions, and related
disclosures, are considered appropriate.
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Results of the Audit

QUALITY OF THE City’s FINANCIAL REPORTING
We are available to discuss the quality of the City’s financial reporting, to include:

Qualitative Aspects Our Conclusions Significant Unusual Financial Statement New Accounting Alternative
of Significant Regarding Significant Transactions Presentation and Pronouncements Accounting
Accounting Policies Accounting Disclosures Treatments
and Practices Estimates
No significant None identified None identified No significant Adopted GASB 87, None identified
changes Leases

changes
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Results of the Audit

CORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS

Refer below for the schedule of corrected misstatements:

Corrected Misstatements

Item # | Account Name and Adjustment Debit Credit D‘E’SCI‘IptIOI'Ile Corrected Misstatements
Description 1) To record sales tax revenue in the correct fund.
1 City Bed Tax $77.155 2) To reduce Revenue and record deferred revenue in the Water Fund for cash
City Sales Tax ; $77.155 received but not earned, as well as record AR and revenue in the Coronavirus
Due to the General Fund $77,155 Relief Fund. o .
Due to Bed Tax $77,155 3) To update the beginning-of-the-year lease entry to true-up lease liabilities and
Equity in Central Treasury - General Fund $77,155 ROU Assets in the Port & Harbors Fund
Equity in Central Treasury - Bed Tax Fund 577,155 4) To update the loss on disposal of General Capital Assets for the Governmental
Activities Statement of Activities
2 Federal Government Receivable -
Coronavirus Relief Fund $400,000
Deferred Revenue - Water Fund $400,000
Federal Government Revenue -
Coronavirus Relief Fund $400,000
Federal Government Revenue - Water
Fund $400,000
3 Port & Harbors Lease Liability $899,734
Port & Harbors ROU Asset $899,734
4 Loss on Disposal of General Capital Assets $113,063
Net Investment in Capital Assets $113,063
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Results of the Audit

UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS

Refer below for the schedule of uncorrected misstatements:

Uncorrected Misstatements

Item # | Account Mame and Adjustment Debit Credit Impact on Description of Uncorrected Misstatements
Description Net Position 1) Proposed adjusting journal entry to accrue for contingent liabilities in FY23.
1 Expense for Contingent Liability $500,000 $500,000 2) Proposed adjusting entry to reclass receivable for Coronavirus Relief Fund.
Contingent Liability $500,000
2 Coronavirus Relief Fund - Deferred
Revenue $6,783
Coronavirus  Relief Fund -
Receivable 56,783
Current year cumulative uncorrected misstatements $506,783
Cumulative effect of prior peried uncorrected misstatements brought
forward from last period 50
Cumulative uncorrected misstatements adjusted for prior period impact $506,783
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Internal Control
Over Financial
Reporting
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Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion(s) on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.

We are required to communicate, in writing, to those charged with governance all material weaknesses and significant deficiencies that have been identified in the
City’s internal control over financial reporting. The definitions of control deficiency, significant deficiency and material weakness follow:

Category Definition

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal

Control Deficiency course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.

A deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to

Significant Deficiency merit attention by those charged with governance.

A deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement

Material Weakness of the City ’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Please refer to the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs for internal control items reported as material weaknesses.

CITY OF UNALASKA AUDIT WRAP UP JUNE 30, 2022 / BDO USA, P.C. / 11
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Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We have communicated to the management of the City control deficiencies and provided suggestions for improvement of those deficiencies that were identified as
a result of our audit that we did not consider to be material weaknesses nor significant deficiencies.

Control Deficiency Comments Recommendation

The loss on disposal of capital assets was not
reconciled to the underlying books and records
resulting in a corrected misstatement.

Capital Asset Schedule

We recommend the capital asset reconciliation schedule to be agreed to the
Reconciliation

underlying books and records during the review and approval process.

iy
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Additional Required
Communications
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Other Required Communications

Following is a summary of other required items, along with specific discussion points as they pertain to the City:

Requirement Discussion Point

Significant changes to planned audit
strategy or significant risks initially
identified

There were no significant changes to the planned audit strategy or significant risks initially identified and previously
communicated to those charged with governance as part of our Audit Planning communications.

Obtain information from those
charged with governance relevant to
the audit

There were no matters noted relevant to the audit, including, but not limited to: violations or possible violations of laws
or regulations; risks of material misstatement, including fraud risks; or tips or complaints regarding the City’s financial
reporting that we were made aware of as a result of our inquiry of those charged with governance.

Nature and extent of specialized
skills or knowledge needed related to
significant risks

There were no specialized skills or knowledge needed, outside of the core engagement team, to perform the planned
audit procedures or evaluate audit results related to significant risks.

Consultations with other accountants

We are not aware of any consultations about accounting or auditing matters between management and other
independent public accountants. Nor are we aware of opinions obtained by management from other independent public
accountants on the application of requirements of an applicable financial reporting framework.

If applicable, significant matters
identified by component auditors

During the component auditor’s procedures, there were no significant matters identified that were deemed necessary to
bring to group management’s attention.

Significant findings and issues arising
during the audit in connection with
the City’s related parties

We have evaluated whether the identified related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately
identified, accounted for, and disclosed and whether the effects of the related party relationships and transactions,
based on the audit evidence obtained, prevent the financial statements from achieving fair presentation.

o=
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Other Required Communications

Following is a summary of other required items, along with specific discussion points as they pertain to the City:

Requirement

Discussion Point

Significant findings or issues arising
during the audit that were discussed,
or were the subject of
correspondence, with management

There were no significant findings or issues arising during the audit that were discussed, or were the subject of
correspondence, with management, other than those reported on the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs..

Disagreements with management

There were no disagreements with management about matters, whether or not satisfactorily resolved, that individually
or in aggregate could be significant to the City’s financial statements or to our auditor’s report.

Significant difficulties encountered
during the audit

There were delays related to the adoption of GASB 87, Leases, and closing of certain accounts in the books and records.
There were no other significant difficulties encountered during the audit.

Matters that are difficult or
contentious for which the auditor
consulted outside the engagement
team

There were no difficult or contentious matters that we consulted with others outside the engagement team that we
reasonably determined to be relevant to those charged with governance regarding their oversight of the financial
reporting process.

If applicable, other matters
significant to the oversight of the
City’s financial reporting process,
including complaints or concerns
regarding accounting or auditing
matters

There are no other matters that we consider significant to the oversight of the City’s financial reporting process that
have not been previously communicated.

Representations requested from
management

Please refer to the management representation letter.

iy
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Independence

Our engagement letter to you dated July 19, 2022, describes our
responsibilities in accordance with professional standards and certain
regulatory authorities and Government Auditing Standards with regard to
independence and the performance of our services. This letter also stipulates
the responsibilities of the City with respect to independence as agreed to by
the City. Please refer to that letter for further information.
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Audit Firm System of Quality Management

An audit firm’s system of quality control (aka system of quality management) is essential to how the firm
conducts audits and is in place to protect investors, shareholders and other users of financial statements.

QUALITY MANAGEMENT STANDARDS

In June 2022, the AICPA Auditing Standards Board (ASB) issued the following interrelated standards on audit
quality management (collectively, the QM standards), which are designed to improve a CPA firm’s risk
assessment and audit quality. The effective date of the QM standards is December 15, 2025.

Statement on Quality Management

Statement on Quality Management

Standards (SQMS) No. 1

A Firm’s System of Quality
Management

Standards (SQMS) No. 2

Engagement Quality Reviews

Statement on Auditing Standards

(SAS) No. 146

Quality Management for an
Engagement Conducted in
Accordance With Generally Accepted
Auditing Standards

2020 BDO AUDIT QUALITY REPORT

CONTINUING
TO BUILD
TRUST

We will continue to provide you with updates

on our progress. Currently, you may find
discussion of BDO’s system of quality control
within our annual , the
most recent of which is accessible

BDO has assessed the requirements of the QM standards and has analyzed our firm’s current system of quality
management to identify changes and improvements necessary for compliance. This includes the identification of
quality objectives, quality risks and the assessment of those quality risks, and responses to address those risks.
We are further working with BDO Global to appropriately integrate processes deployed at a global level into our
firm’s system of quality management.
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At BDO, our purpose is helping people thrive, every day. Together, we are focused on delivering exceptional and sustainable outcomes — for our people, our clients and our communities. Across the U.S., and
in over 160 countries through our global organization, BDO professionals provide assurance, tax and advisory services for a diverse range of clients.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.

BDO USA, P.C., a Virginia professional service corporation, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of
independent member firms. .

Material discussed in this publication is meant to provide general information and should not be acted on without professional advice tailored to your needs.

© 2023 BDO USA, P.C. All rights reserved.
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Unalaska, Alaska

September 14, 2023
Honorable Mayor Tutiakoff, Members of the City Council and Citizens of Unalaska:

State law requires that all cities annually publish a complete set of financial statements presented
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and audited in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America by a firm of licensed certified public
accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial
report of the City of Unalaska, Alaska (the City) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of any material misstatements.

BDO LLP, Certified Public Accountants, has issued an unmodified (clean) opinion on the City's
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022. The independent auditors’ report is located
at the front of the financial section of this report. The independent audit of the financial statements
of the City was part of a broader, federal and state-mandated "Single Audit" designed to meet the
special needs of federal and state granting agencies. The standards governing Single Audit
engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the
financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with
legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the
administration of federal and state awards. These reports will be available in the City's separately
issued Single Audit Report.

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditors’ report
and provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A
complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

Profile of the Government

The City, incorporated as a First Class City in 1942, is located on an island within an archipelago in
the southwestern part of the State of Alaska. The Bering Sea to the north is considered to have the
most productive fisheries in the country. Located nearly 800 miles from Anchorage, the City, which
serves a population of 4,113, currently occupies an area of 215 square miles, of which 46% is
seawater. The City of Unalaska is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal
properties located within its boundaries. It also is empowered by state statute to extend its
corporate limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the governing
council. Annexation authority was exercised once in 1986.

Vi
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The City has operated under the council-manager form of government since 1968. Policy-making and
legislative authority are vested in a city council consisting of the mayor and six council members.
The city council is responsible for, among other things, passing ordinances, adopting the budget,
appointing committees and hiring the city manager. The city manager is responsible for carrying out
the policies and ordinances of the city council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the
government, and for appointing the heads of the various departments. Council members are elected
to serve three-year, staggered terms, with two council members elected each year. The mayor is
also elected to serve a three-year term. The mayor and council members are all elected at large.

The City provides a full range of services including the following: police force; fire protection and
emergency medical services; the construction and maintenance of highways, streets, and other
infrastructure; recreational activities and cultural events; electrical, water, wastewater and solid
waste services; port, harbor and airport terminal services; and limited housing for city employees.
The City is also financially accountable for a legally separate school district, which is reported
separately within the City's financial statements. Additional information on the Unalaska City School
District can be found in note 1.

The city council is required to hold public hearings on the proposed budget and to adopt a final
budget by no later than June 30, the close of the City's fiscal year. This annual budget serves as the
foundation for the City's financial planning and control. The appropriated budget is prepared by
fund, function (e.g. public safety), and department (e.g. police). The city manager is authorized to
transfer appropriations within a function. Transfers of appropriations between functions, however,
require the special approval of the city council.

Local Economy

The City's economy is based primarily on commercial fishing, seafood processing, fleet services and
marine transportation. The Port of Dutch Harbor is the only deep draft port in the Arctic Region that
is ice free year-round. Our Port has been designated a "Port of Refuge” and provides protection and
repair for disabled or distressed vessels as well as ground and warehouse storage and transshipment
opportunities for the thousands of vessels that fish or transit the waters surrounding the Aleutian
Islands on a daily basis.

The City is the home of the western-most container terminal in the United States and is one of the
most productive ports for the transshipment of cargo in Alaska. In addition to product shipped
domestically to and from this regional hub, product is shipped to ports around the world with weekly
shipments headed to Europe and Asia by container ship and freighter. The port serves also as a
fueling hub for the Aleutian Islands and provides fuel storage for the Arctic.

The Port of Dutch Harbor is part of the Alaska Marine Highway System which provides essential
connectivity for people and goods throughout the Aleutian Islands and into mainland Alaska. This

hub activity feeds a marine corridor that connects the State of Alaska and the Arctic Region to the
rest of world.

Vil
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The City is the anchor for commercial fishing activity in the Bering Sea and the Aleutian Islands
(BSAl). According to National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration's latest published report,
Fisheries of the United States 2020 (published in May 2022), the City's Port of Dutch Harbor led the
nation with the greatest quantity of fish landed. For the past 25 years, Dutch Harbor has been rated
either first or second in value of catch. A catch of 800 million pounds was landed in 2020, with a
value of $187 million, positioning the City as the number three port in value in the United States for
income derived from commercial fishing.

Because the City's economy centers on a single industry, commercial seafood, the tax base is subject
to change with fluctuations in fishery harvest levels. One mitigating factor to revenue volatility is
the sustainability and good management of the fishery resources in both the state and federal waters
of the BSAI.

The National Marine Fisheries Service and the State of Alaska are using the successful management
practices of the North Pacific Fisheries Management Council and the State of Alaska Board of
Fisheries as a model to improve management in other fishery regions nationwide.

Long-Term Financial Planning and Major Initiatives

As part of their fiscal sustainability plan, the City is working to establish a Permanent Fund with the
intention that it will provide annual distributions to the City's General Fund for use. While not yet
formally approved, it is expected that the Permanent Fund will have an initial amount of
$40,000,000. In continuing efforts to improve budgeting and long-term capital planning, the council,
once again, set formal goals before the fiscal year 2022 budget process and prior to preparing the
ten-year Capital and Major Maintenance Plan (CMMP). Long-term maintenance and replacement
schedules for capital assets continue to be developed.

The City initiated construction of two new landfill cells. The first cell was put in service in October
2015. A gasification project at the landfill is included in the CMMP. A solid waste gasifier would work
for approximately 86% of Unalaska's total waste stream, and could be used to dispose of bales already
buried in the landfill cells, vastly increasing the current location's projected lifespan.

To comply with new federal regulations, a new water treatment plant in Pyramid Valley was
completed in 2016. This new plant, with a cost of $17 million, provides treatment for
Cryptosporidium, a microorganism that is resistant to chlorine and other disinfectants, and has
caused waterborne disease outbreaks in the lower 48. In 2021, the City began the Pyramid Water
Treatment Plant Chlorine Upgrade project, totaling just under $700,000. We replaced our old
chlorine gas system with a new on-site system which generates liquid chlorine (sodium hypochlorite)
using salt and electricity. EPA standards call for phasing out shipping and handling cylinders of
chlorine gas.

In 2020, the City entered into a Power Purchase Agreement with Ounalashka Corporation/Chena
Power in support of their geothermal power project. Related projects are identified in the CMMP for
FY22 and FY23 totaling $5.7 million, and may expand as more is learned about the power project
itself. This project is the City of Unalaska's estimated portion of reliability upgrades for the City's
electrical distribution system required to accept energy from the Makushin geothermal plant. It
requires connecting multiple self-generating industrial customers to the current distribution system,
installs more robust intermediate level protections, replaces the aging submarine cable at Iliuliuk
Bay, upgrades numerous feeder connections and substations, and improves the current SCADA system
and automated controls. This project includes a set aside for legal and consulting fees associated
with implementation. A more accurate budget will be determined upon the completion of the
interconnection study and after the implications are fully understood. Based on study findings, there
may be a Phase Il project to accomplish the required upgrades.

Vil

Packet Page Number 55



The City is the non-Federal sponsor of the design phase of the Entrance Channel Dredging Project
led by the Army Corps of Engineers. This project has been on the City’s CMMP for many years, and
in 2021 the City signed a Design Agreement with the Corps. The Corps is authorized and federally
funded for the 75/25 Cost Shared effort and produced the project’s plans and specifications for the
-58+2 dredging of the outside bar. Removal of the bar is considered a best practice for maintaining
navigation and safety margins. The Corps issued the RFP in June 2023 and is presently reviewing bid
submittals.

The $8.5 million Library Improvement Project added 1,500 additional square feet and rearranged
most of the existing floor plan to improve operations and patron service. A large conference center
was added with new state of the art technology for speaking and presentation events. The circulation
area was redesigned; several small study/meeting rooms were added; the HVAC was overhauled;
and lighting, furniture and separate children’s area was added. The project was completed in April
2023 and several hundred people attended the grand opening. The project came in $700,000 under
budget, in large part due to a $460,000 library improvement grant awarded by the Rasmussen
Foundation.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) has awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Unalaska in past
years. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy
both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues meets the Certificate of Achievement Program's
requirements and we may be submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated
services from the entire staff of Finance Department. We would like to express our appreciation to
all who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. Credit also must be given to the
mayor and the governing council for their support for maintaining the highest standards of
professionalism in the management of the City of Unalaska's finances.

Respectfully submitted,
CITY OF UNALASKA
William Homka

City Manager
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Special Services
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School Board
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MEMDET .ot e e e Kerry Mahoney
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MEeMDEr .icvvieiin i asvesimasa TR Danielle Williams
LT 1o T P N Amanda Schmahl
Student Representative ......ccccvvvviiniiinnininennnnnn. Tuan Bui
School Officials
Superintendent .......ociiiiiiiiiiiii e Kim Hanisch
Secondary PrinCipal .....ccvevviiniiieiiiiiiiiiiiiniiinnan, Ryan Humphrey
Elementary Principal.....cccooviiiieiiiiiiiiiiiieiiens Cheri Tremarco
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Tel: 907-278-8878 3601 C Street, Suite 600

Fax: 907-278-5779 Anchorage, AK 99503
I B D O www.bdo.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Unalaska, Alaska

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Unalaska (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the accompanying financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We did not audit the financial statements of the Unalaska City School District (the District), the discretely
presented component unit, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position, and where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended. Those statements were audited by other auditors
whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the
District, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are required to be independent of the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 4 of the financial statements, in 2022 the City adopted the provisions of Government
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 87, Leases. Our opinion is not modified with respect
to this matter.

BDO USA, P.C., a Virginia professional carporation, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO
network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.
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Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison schedules for the General Fund, the 1% Sales Tax Special
Revenue Fund, and the Coronavirus Relief Special Revenue Fund, and the schedules of the City’s
proportionate share of the net pensions and net OPEB liability or asset and the City’s contributions be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information
comprises management’s discussion and analysis and the statistical section but does not include the basic
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information
exists, we are required to describe it in our report.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 4, 2023
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

BOO usA, P.C.

Anchorage, Alaska
October 4, 2023
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2022

CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA

Photo Credit: Tim Mahoney
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2022

Management of the City of Unalaska offers readers of the City of Unalaska’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Unalaska for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2022. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with
additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages
VI-IX of this report.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Unalaska exceeded its liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $420,813,815 (net
position).

e The city’s total net position increased by $1,633,481.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Unalaska’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $113,753,211, which is a decrease of $2,146,873 from the
prior year. Of this total amount, $52,346,523, is either nonspendable, committed or assigned for
emergency operations and general fund projects identified in the City’s Capital and Major
Maintenance Plan (CMMP).

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$61,424,435, or 227% of total General Fund expenditures.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Unalaska’s basic financial
statements. The City of Unalaska’s basic financial statements comprise three components:
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financiat
statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide a broad overview of the City of
Unalaska’s finances in a manner similar to that of a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City of Unalaska’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in the
City’s net position will serve as indicators of whether the financial position of the City of Unalaska is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Unalaska that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Unalaska include general
government; public safety; public works; parks, culture, and recreation; community support; and
education. The business-type activities of the City of Unalaska include electric, water, wastewater, solid
waste, ports and harbors, airport terminal, and housing operations.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2022

The government wide financial statements include not only the City of Unalaska itself (known as the
primary government), but also the Unalaska City School District (known as component unit), a legally
separate entity for which the City of Unalaska is financially accountable. Financial information for the
component unit is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary
government itself.

The government wide financial statements can be found on pages 18-19 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Unalaska, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City of Unalaska can be divided into two categories: governmental
funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government wide financial statements. However, unlike the government wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information will be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government wide financial statements. In doing
so, a better understanding of the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions
may be obtained. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Unalaska maintains eight individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, the Coronavirus Relief Special Revenue
Fund, the 1% Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund and the Capital Projects Fund, all of which are considered
major funds. Data from the other four governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds are provided in the
form of combining statements and schedules, which can be found on pages 86-87.

The City of Unalaska adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20-23 of this report.

Proprietary Funds

The City of Unalaska maintains only one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the
same functions presented as business type activities in the government wide financial statements. The
City of Unalaska uses enterprise funds to account for its electric, water, wastewater, solid waste, ports
and harbors, airport terminal, and housing operations.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2022

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for electric,
wastewater, ports and harbors, and solid waste, all of which are considered to be major funds of the City
of Unalaska. Water, Airport Terminal and Housing operations are accounted for in separate funds but are
not presented as major funds.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 24-33 of this report.
Notes to Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found
on pages 34-74 of this report.

Government Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the City of Unalaska, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources by $420,813,815 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

Approximately 61% of the City of Unalaska’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is
still outstanding. The City of Unalaska uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of Unalaska’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Table 1
City of Unalaska’s Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities Business-type activities Totalt
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Current and other assets S 136,911,288 178,374,889 70,021,430 60,350,543 206,932,718 234,725,432
Capital assets 94,569,056 95,053,684 232,820,446 238,813,047 327,309,502 323,866,731
Total assets 5 231,480,344 273,428,573 302,841,876 299,163,590 534,322,220 572,592,163
Deferred outflows of resources 5 1,860,380 2,607,006 2,675,419 3,339,000 4,535,799 5,946,016
Long-term liabilides 5 11,528,058 15,543,372 77,735,342 86,724,555 89,263,400 102,267,927
Other liabilities 4,070,953 52,968,640 7,129,259 2,545,368 11,200,212 55,514,000
Total liabilities  $ 15,599,011 68,512,012 84,864,601 89,269,923 100,463,612 157,781,935
Deferred inflows of resources S 12,292,490 961,315 5,288,102 614,595 17,580,592 1,575,910
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets  § 94,431,841 95,053,684 162,957,588 167,582,699 257,389,429 262,636,383
Restricted 52,346,523 - - - 52,346,523 -
Unrestricted 58,670,859 111,508,568 52,407,004 45,035,383 111,077,863 156,543,951
Net position S 205,449,223 206,562,252 215,364,592 212,618,082 420,813,815 41%,180,334
8
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The balance of unrestricted net position, $111,077,863, may be used to meet the government’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors. At the end of the current and prior fiscal year, the City of Unalaska
is able to report positive balances in both categories of net position, both for the government as a whole,
and for its separate governmental and business type activities.

Deferred outflows of resources decreased $1,410,217 during 2022 and has three components, deferred
outflows of pension related resources, deferred outflows of OPEB related resources, and deferred charge
on refunding. The balance for pension related resources decreased primarily due to the change in the
net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments of $(927,693),
recognition of deferred outflows of resources for changes in proportion and difference between City
contributions and proportionate share of contributions of $564,780, difference between expected and
actual earnings of $21,125, and the change in the net difference between actual and expected
experiences of (72,306). The balance for OPEB related resources decreased due to the recognition of
deferred outflows of resources for changes in assumptions of $(12,673), proportion and differences
between contributions and proportionate share of contributions of $(64,790), change in assumptions of
$13,272, change in City contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $(85,724), and change in
and net difference between projected and actual earnings of $(730,655).

Deferred inflows of resources increased $16,004,682 during 2022 and has three components, deferred
inflows of pension related resources, and deferred inflows of OPEB related resources and lease related
deferred inflows. Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions increased to $7,112,289 from zero in
the prior year primarily due to change in the difference between expected and actual experience. The
balance for OPEB related deferred inflows of resources increased primarily due to the changes in the
difference between actual and expected experience of $(9,103), change in assumptions of $765,231,
change in proportion and differences between City contributions and proportionate share of contributions
of $(6,065,958), and changes in City contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $(144,494).
The balance for deferred inflows related to leases increased $3,241,277 related to the implementation
of GASB Statement 87 Leases.

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.
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Revenues:

Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and

contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General revenues:
Property taxes
General sales tax
Raw seafood tax
Fisheries tax

Investment earnings (loss)

Other
Total revenues
Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Public works

Parks, culture, and recreation
Community support

Education

Interest on lease payments
Electric

Water

Wastewater

Solid waste

Ports and harbors

Airport
Housing
Total expenses
Increase in net position
before transfers
Transfers

Change in net position

Net position. beginning of year

Net position, end of year

Table 2
City of Unalaska’s Changes in Net Position

Governmental actlvities Business-type activittes Tﬁal -

2022 2021 2022 - 2021 2022 2021
720,734 161,718 34,845,590 27,940,889 35,566,324 28,102,607
2,101,240 10,949,949 413,831 1,326,354 2,515,071 12,276,303

150,000 150,000
7,746,723 7,236,948 7,746,723 7.236,948
14,211,123 10,689,627 14,211,123 10,689,627
6,360,295 5,276,466 6,360,295 5,276,466
9,741,847 8,620,564 9,741,847 8,620,564
(3,016,426) 473,850 10,405 1,889 (3,006,021) 475,739
1,446,264 1,437,600 (1,672,029) (225,765) 1,437,600
39,311,800 44,846,722 33,747,797 29,269,132 73,059,597 74,115,854
5,342,948 5,441,013 5,342,948 5,441,013
7,268,511 8,931,368 7,268,511 8,931,368
8,273,262 8,239,458 8,273,262 8,239,458
3,947,824 3,783,470 3,947,821 3,783,470
2,891,089 8,311,556 2,891,089 8,311,556
5,481,889 5,072,372 5,481,889 5,072,372
3,209 3.209
18,074,964 13,953,782 18,074,964 13,953,782
2,793,053 3,197,066 2,793,053 3,197,066
3,501,340 3,685,166 3,501,340 3,685,166
3,087,197 3,136,327 3,087,197 3,136,327
9,433,614 9,257,494 9,433,614 9,257,494
768,853 708,589 768,853 708,589
e I5|58,366 546,522 558,366 546,522
33,208.73 39,779,237 38,217,387 34,484,946 71,426,116 ) 74,264,183
6,103,071 5,067,485 (4,469,590) (5,215,814) 1,633,481 (148,329)
(7,216,100) (900,756) 7,216,100 900,756
(1,113,029) 4,166,729 2,746,510 (4,315,058) 1,633,481 (148,329)
206,562,252 202,395,523 212,618,082 216,933,140 419,180,334 419,328,663
205,449,223 206,562,252 215,364,592 212,618,082 420,813,815 419,180,334
10
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The government’s net position increased $1,633,481 during the current fiscal year. Revenues overall
decreased 1% or $1,056,257. The net decrease includes decreases in operating grants of $9,761,232,
investment income of $3,481,760, and other revenues of $1,663,365, and are offset by increases in
charges for services of $7,463,717 and other taxes and grants of $6,386,383.

Total expenses decreased $2,838,067 from the prior year primarily to a reduction in COVID-19 related
spending, funded by the CARES Act grant. The Electric Utility Fund experienced a significant increase in
operating expenses related to increased fuel costs.

Governmental activities decreased the City of Unalaska’s net position by $1,113,029. A decrease in

investment income $3,490,276 and an increase in transfers to fund capital projects $6,315,344 partially
offset a decline in community support $5,420,467.

Governmental Activities Functional

| Expenses for Fiscal Year 2022

Interest on lease

payments General
Education 0.0% government
16.5% 16.1%

Community
support
8.7%

Public safety
21.9%

Parks, culture, and
recreation
11.9%

Public works
24.9%

11
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
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Business-Type Activities

Net position increased $2,746,510 for Business-type activities (table 2); this is attributable to positive
changes in net position in the Electric Utility Fund $2,304,278 and Ports and Harbors Fund $2,302,326,
and losses in each of the other Enterprise Funds.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Unalaska uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City of Unalaska’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of
Unalaska’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure
of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Unalaska’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $113,753,211, which is a decrease of $2,146,873 from the prior year.
Approximately 97% of this total amount, $110,821,454 constitutes spendable fund balance. The City of
Unalaska has fund balance commitments of $25,000,000 for emergency expenditures and $17,344,932 for
capital projects.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Unalaska. At the end of the current fiscal
year, spendable fund balance of the General Fund was $87,937,511, and the total fund balance was
$90,869,267. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, both spendable fund balance and total fund
balance may be compared to total fund expenditures. Spendable fund balance represents 324% of total
General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 335% of that same amount. The fund
balance of the City of Unalaska’s General Fund increased by $576,088 during this fiscal year.

As a result of the City’s CARES Act and other coronavirus related grant funding during fiscal year 2022,
the fund used to report that activity was classified by management as a major fund and is reported as
such in the governmental funds. Furthermore, as a result of transfers to the Capital Projects Fund, and
the related amount due from other funds, the fund used to report that activity was a major fund in fiscal
year 2022,

Proprietary Funds

The City of Unalaska’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of business-type activities at the end of the year amounted to $52,407,004. The
business-type activities net position increased by $2,746,510.

12
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final budget can be briefly summarized as follows:
General Sales and Seafood Sales taxes outperformed budgeted amounts by $2,962,048 and $2,160,295,
respectively.

Each functional area within the General Fund stayed within their budgets, with Public Safety and Public
Works showing the greatest amount of savings in the amount of $796,781 and $743,310, respectively. The
savings in both departments were primarily attributable to personnel costs.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The City of Unalaska’s net investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities
as of June 30, 2022 amounts to $257,389,429 (net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, and
related debt). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and system, improvements,
machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, highways, bridges, and right of use assets. The City of
Unalaska’s net investment in capital assets changed by $(5,246,954) in the current year.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

General Fund

The Library improvement project continued with current year expenditures of $2,608,594.

The Repeater Site & Radio Upgrade project continued with current expenditures of $708,546.

The Tsunami Siren Upgrade project was completed in fiscal year 2022 with $364,098 in current year
general fund expenditures.

Electric Fund
The Makushin Geothermal project continued with current year expenditures of $1,132,648.

Water Fund,
The Pyramid Water Treatment Micro Turbine project continued with $1,349,148 in current year
expenditures.

The General’s Hill Water Booster Pump project continued with $889,915 in current year expenditures.
The Pyramid WTP Chlorine Upgrades project continued with $562,554 in current year expenditures
$476,810.

Table 3
City of Unalaska Capital Assets
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization)
Governmental activities Business-type activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Land S 31,147,603 31,147,603 3,309,476 3,309,476 34,457,079 34,457,079
Buildings 25,230,279 26,748,205 70,446,467 72,869,337 95,676,746 99,617,542
Infrasctructure 22,669,738 25,759,809 132,257,462 138,755,940 154,927,200 164,515,749
Machinery and equipment 4,249,794 2,665,856 18,718,661 20,100,127 22,968,455 22,765,983
Right to use assets 135,900 - 1,919,963 - 2,055,863 -
Construction in Progress 11,135,742 8,732,211 6,168,417 3,778,167 17,304,159 12,510,378

Total Capital Assets,
Net of Accumulated
Depreciation and Amortization $ 94,569,056 95,053,684 232,820,446 238,813,047 327,389,502 333,866,731

13

Packet Page Number 72



City of Unalaska, Alaska

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2022

Additional information on the City of Unalaska’s capital assets can be found in Note 3 on pages 46-48 of
this report.

Long Term Debt
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Unalaska had revenue bonds and other loans outstanding
of $67,018,234 (Table 4).

Table 4
City of Unalaska Bonds and Loans
_Gavernmental activities Business-type activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Revenue bonds = . 52,673,420 55,147,928 52,673,420 55,147,928
Other contracts and loans - - 14,344,814 15,206,837 14,344,814 15,206,837
Total Bonds and Loans 5 - - 67,018,234 70,354,765 67,018,234 70,354,765

The City of Unalaska’s total debt originating from revenue bonds and loans decreased by $3,336,531 (5%)
during the current fiscal year. State statutes do not limit the amount of debt a governmental entity may
issue. Additional information on the City of Unalaska’s long-term debt can be found in Note 3 on pages
51-55 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates
The City of Unalaska’s budgeted revenues and expenses increased for the upcoming fiscal year due to
inflation.

The average unemployment rate for the Aleutians West Region, which includes Unalaska, was 3.1% for
calendar year 2022, which is a decrease from a rate of 3.8% in calendar year 2021. Management does not
believe either figure is indicative of unemployment within the City’s limits. Since the seafood economy
is robust in Unalaska while other communities that are more reliant on snow crab and salmon may be
experiencing higher unemployment, neither unemployment rate for the region is indicative of
unemployment in Unalaska.

Higher oil prices have positively impacted the City’s sales tax through marine fuel. Fuel sales generate

approximately 40% of the City’s sales tax. Total sales tax was 23% of governmental activities revenue in
fiscal year 2022.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2022

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Unalaska’s finances for all
those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance
Director, City of Unalaska, P.O. Box 610, Unalaska, Alaska 99685.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska
Statement of Net Position

Exhibit A-1

Primary Government

Component Unit

Governmental Business-type Unalaska City
June 30, 2022 Activities Activities Total School District
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Assets
Cash and investments $ 106,744,686 56,629,688 S 163,374,374 S 3,806,949
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
General 19,620 3,446,301 3,465,921 202,974
Interest 425,394 - 425,394 >
Taxes 5,560,457 - 5,560,457
Intergovernmental 9,567,321 269,426 9,836,747
Leases 3,325,946 198,758 3,524,704
Due from other funds - . . 2
Inventories 1,101,756 1,918,707 3,020,463 47,040
Internal balances 1,830,000 (1,830,000) - &
Prepaid items - - 1,130,475
Restricted assets:
Cash held by fiscal agent 4,699,489 4,699,489 o
Cash restricted for health insurance - - - 433,417
Net other postemployment benefits asset 8,336,108 4,689,061 13,025,169 3,095,218
Capital assets:
Assets not being depreciated 42,283,345 9,477,894 51,761,239 42,500
Assets, net of accumulated depreciation 52,285,711 223,342,552 275,628,263 383,122
Total Assets 231,480,344 302,841,876 534,322,220 9,141,695
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charge on refunding - 1,628,956 1,628,956 -
Related to other postemployment benefits 246,422 138,612 385,034 134,692
Related to pensions 1,613,958 907,851 2,521,809 483,302
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,860,380 2,675,419 4,535,799 617,994
Total Assets and Deferred Quifiows of Resources $ 233,340,724 305,517,295 S 538,858,019 S 9,759,689
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position
Liabilities
Accounts payable S 1,978,456 1,740,297 S 3,718,753 $ 106,843
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 534,921 301,781 836,702 1,137,392
Accrued interest - 529,835 529,835 .
Customer deposits 3,442 204,552 207,994 -
Unearned revenue 12,451 400,000 412,451 43,936
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year:
Bonds and loans - 3,446,295 3,446,295
Lease liability 23,699 98,732 122,431
Compensated absences 1,517,983 407,767 1,925,750
Due in more than one year:
Lease liability 113,516 1,838,993 1,952,509 43,545
Landfill closure and postclosure costs - 5,903,729 5,903,729 *
Bonds and loans payable - 63,571,939 63,571,939 .
Net pension liability 11,414,543 6,420,681 17,835,224 2,698,235
15,599,011 84,864,601 100,463,612 4,029,951
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to leases 3,241,277 196,792 3,438,069 .
Related to other postemployment benefits 4,499,348 2,530,886 7,030,234 1,512,478
Related to pensions . 4,551,865 2,560,424 7,112,289 1,910,426
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 12,292,490 5,288,102 17,580,592 3,422,904
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 94,431,841 162,957,588 257,389,429 382,077
Restricted 52,346,523 - 52,346,523 -
Restricted for scholarships and community schools . . . 173,380
Unrestricted 58,670,859 52,407,004 111,077,863 1,751,377
Total Net Position 205,449,223 215,364,592 420,813,815 2,306,834
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position $ 233,340,724 305,517,295 S 538,858,019 S 9,759,689
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Statement of Activities

Exhibit A-2

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Component Unit

Unalaska City
School District

Fees, Operating Capital
Fines & Grants &  Grants & Govern- Business-
Charges for Contri- Contri- mental type
Year Ended June 30, 2022 Expenses Services butions butions Activities Activities Total
Primary Government
Governmental Activities
General government § 5,342,948 $ 519,194 § -5 $ (4,823,754) § - $ (4,823,754) §
Public safety 7,268,511 33,440 2,101,240 (5,133,831) . (5,133,831)
Public works 8,273,262 - . (8,273,262) - (8,273,262)
Parks, culture, and recreation 3,947,821 168,100 (3,779,721) (3,779,721)
Community support 2,891,089 - (2,891,089) . (2,891,089)
Education 5,481,889 - * (5,481,889) - (5,481,889)
Interest on lease payments 3,209 - (3,209) (3,209)
Total Governmental
Activities 33,208,729 720,734 2,101,240 (30,386,755) (30,386,755) -
Business-Type Activities
Electric utility 18,074,964 17,860,678 124,139 150,000 59,853 59,853 .
Water utility 2,793,053 2,663,464 52,501 . (77,088) (77,088)
Wastewater utility 3,501,340 2,584,192 55,025 (862,123) (862,123)
Solid waste 3,087,197 2,844,342 49,358 - (193,497) (193,497)
Ports and Harbors 9,433,614 8,177,400 116,017 (1,140,197) (1,140,197)
Airport 768,853 456,749 9,536 - (302,568) (302,568)
Housing 558,366 258,765 7,255 (292,346) (292,346)
Total Business-Type
Activities 38,217,387 34,845,590 413,831 150,000 (2,807,966) (2,807,966)
Total Primary Government  $71,426,116 $ 35,566,324 § 2,515,071 § 150,000 (30,386,755) (2,807,966) (33,194,721)
Component Unit
Unalaska City School District  $ 8,991,193 § 112,999 S 1,828,131 $§ 12,000 (7,038,063)
General Revenues
Taxes:
Real property tax 4,738,753 4,738,753
Personal property tax 3,007,970 3,007,970
General sales tax 14,211,123 14,211,123 -
Raw seafood sales tax 6,360,295 6,360,295
Fisheries tax 9,741,847 9,741,847
Other taxes 213,577 213,577
Payments in lieu of tax 931,935 931,935 )
Grants not restricted to specific programs 992,100 = 992,100 3,894,112
Investment earnings (loss) (3,016,426) 10,405 (3,006,021) 421
Support from City of Unalaska - = - 3,666,381
Other revenue 139,456 - 139,456 259,560
Loss on disposal of capital assets (830,804) (1,672,029) (2,502,833) .
Transfers (7,216,100} 7,216,100 .
Total General Revenues and Transfers 29,273,726 5,554,476 34,828,202 7,820,474
Change in Net Position (1,113,029) 2,746,510 1,633,481 782,411
Net Position, beginning 206,562,252 212,618,082 419,180,334 1,524,423
Net Position, ending $ 205,449,223  $215,364,592 S 420,813,815 §$ 2,306,834
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit B-1

City of Unalaska, Alaska

Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet

June 30, 2022

Major Funds

General

Coronavirus 1% Sales
Relief Tax Nonmajor Total
Special Special Capital Governmental Governmental
Revenue Revenue Projects Funds Funds

Assets
Cash and investments

S 84,066,500 S

Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts:

$12,221,229 $9,246,888 § 1,210,069 $ 106,744,686

General 19,620 19,620

Interest 425,394 - . 425,394

Taxes 4,099,199 1,155,402 305,856 5,560,457

Intergovernmental 9,037,740 529,581 . . - 9,567,321

Leases 3,325,946 - - - 3,325,946
Inventory 1,101,756 . - 1,101,756
Due from other funds 539,604 . . 539,604
Advances to other funds 1,830,000 1,830,000
Total Assets $ 104,445,759 529,581 513,376,631 $9,246,888 $ 1,515,925 $129,114,784
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources

and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable S 735,479 S 538 $1,242,439 § - $ 1,978,4%
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 534,921 - - - 534,921
Customer deposits 3,442 - - - - 3,442
Due to other funds - 529,581 - - 10,023 539,604
Unearned revenue 9,951 2,500 - - 12,451
Total Liabilities 1,283,793 529,581 3,038 1,242,439 10,023 3,068,874
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to leases 3,241,277 3,241,277
Unavailable revenue - taxes 9,051,422 9,051,422
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 12,292,699 12,292,699
Fund Balances
Nonspendable:

Inventory 1,101,756 1,101,756

Advances to other funds 1,830,000 1,830,000
Committed:

Emergency operations 25,000,000 - - 25,000,000

Compensated absences 1,000,000 - : - 1,000,000

Public safety . - 467,333 467,333

Community support = 5 38,569 38,569

Capital projects - 8,340,483 8,004,449 1,000,000 17,344,932
Assigned 513,076 17,747 5,033,110 - 5,563,933
Unassigned 61,424,435 (17,747) - - 61,406,688
Total Fund Balances 90,869,267 13,373,593 8,004,449 1,505,902 113,753,211
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows

of Resources and Fund Balances $ 104,445,759 529,581 $13,376,631 $9,246,888 S 1,515,925 $129,114,784

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Exhibit B-2

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2022

Total fund balances for governmental funds

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Position is different because:

Capital assets (shown here, net of accumulated depreciation) used in
governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are
not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Shared fisheries business tax $ 4,258,312
Shared fisheries resource landing tax 4,760,389
Real property tax 24,491
Personal property tax 8,230
Net other postemployment benefits asset 8,336,108

Total long-term assets

Deferred outflows of resources for governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds:
Deferred outflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits 246,422

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 1,613,958

Total deferred outflows of resources

Noncurrent liabilities, including the net pension liability and compensated
absences are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are
not reported in the funds:

Net pension liability (11,414,543)
Lease liability (137,215)
Compensated absences (1,517,983)

Total noncurrent liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources for governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds:
Deferred inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits (4,499,348)

Deferred inflows of resources retated to pensions (4,551,865)
(9,051,213)

Total deferred inflows of resources

Total Net Position of Governmental Activities

$113,753,211

94,569,056

17,387,530

1,860,380

(13,069,741)

$205,449,223

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Exhibit B-3

Major Funds

Coronavirus 1% Sales
Relief Tax Nonmajor Total
Special Special Capital Governmental Governmentat
Year Ended June 30, 2022 General Revenue Revenue Projects Funds Funds
Revenues
Taxes:
General sales S 9,039,203 § - S 4,481,024 S - § 690,806 S 14,211,123
Seafood sales 6,360,295 B . E 6,360,295
Real property 4,737,374 B 4,737,374
Personal property 3,007,081 E - . E 3,007,081
Other 213,577 - - - 213,577
Intergovernmental:
Fisheries business tax 3,973,545 3,973,545
Fisheries resource landing tax 4,971,744 4,971,744
PERS on behalf 666,921 666,921
Payment in lieu of taxes 931,935 931,935
Corrections contract 432,187 - . 432,187
Grant revenue - 1,546,672 122,381 - 1,669,053
Other 325,179 - . - 325,179
Charges for services 720,734 . 720,734
Investment income (loss) (3,016,475) 49 - (3,016,426)
Other revenue 139,456 . 139,456
Total Revenues 32,502,756 1,546,721 4,481,024 122,381 690,896 39,343,778
Expenditures
Current:
General government 5,539,472 4 5,539,472
Public safety 7,082,457 - 7,082,457
Public works 5,290,393 . 5,290,393
Parks, culture, and recreation 3,333,755 . . - 3,333,755
Community support 1,134,368 1,546,721 = 210,000 2,891,089
Education 4,699,189 - . : 4,699,189
Debt Service:
Principal on leases 23,236 23,236
Interest on leases 3,209 - - - 3,209
Capital Outlay - 5,084,681 327,070 5,411,751
Total Expenditures 27,106,079 1,546,721 5,084,681 537,070 34,274,551
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 5,396,677 4,481,024 (4,962,300) 153,826 5,069,227
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 669,924 1,996,013 1,000,000 3,665,937
Transfers out (5,490,513) (4,860,000) (331,044) (200,480) (10,882,037)
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) (4,820,589) (4,860,000) 1,664,969 799,520 (7,216,100)
Net Change in Fund Balances 576,088 (378,976) (3,297,331) 953,346 (2,146,873)
Fund Balances, beginning 90,293,179 13,752,569 11,301,780 552,556 115,900,084
Fund Balances, ending S 90,869,267 § $13,373,593  $ 8,004,449 S 1,505,902 $ 113,753,211
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit B-4

City of Unalaska, Alaska

Reconciliation of the Change in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds S (2,146,873)

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, however,
on the Statement of Activities, depreciation expense is recognized
to allocate the cost of these items over their estimated useful lives
and reported as depreciation expense:

Capital outlay $ 5,557,298
Depreciation and amortization expense (5,371,573)
Loss on disposal of capital assets (830,804)
(645,079)
Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current
financial resources and are deferred in the funds:
Increase in Shared fisheries business tax 585,830
Increase in Shared fisheries resource landing tax 210,728
Increase in real property tax 1,379
Increase in personal property tax 889
798,826
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds:
Decrease in compensated absences 153,046
Decrease in other postemployment benefit asset 7,082,539
Decrease in deferred outflows of resources:
Related to other postemployment benefits (529,048)
Related to pensions (217,578)
Decrease in lease liability 23,236
Decrease in pension liability 2,457,800
Increase in deferred inflows of resources:
Related to other postemployment benefits (3,538,033)
Related to pensions (4,551,865)
880,097
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities S  (1,113,029)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit C-1
City of Unalaska, Alaska

Enterprise Funds
Statement of Net Position

Major Funds

Electric Water Wastewater
June 30, 2022 Utility Utility Utility
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current Assets
Cash and investments $ 17,369,686 S 8,507,277 § 4,753,167
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts:
Accounts 1,997,618 217,639 199,697
Leases - - .
Intergovernmental 269,426 - =
Inventory 1,375,735 414,746 25,535
Total Current Assets 21,012,465 9,139,662 4,978,399
Noncurrent Assets
Restricted assets, cash held by fiscal agent 2,234,283 - -
Net other postemployment benefits asset 1,432,769 651,257 651,259
Capital assets, net 50,038,298 21,030,382 32,992,090
Total Noncurrent Assets 53,705,350 21,681,639 33,643,349
Total Assets 74,717,815 30,821,301 38,621,748
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charge on refunding 1,606,210 - -
Related to other postemployment benefits 42,354 19,250 19,252
Related to pensions 277,400 126,090 126,090
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,925,964 145,340 145,342
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 76,643,779 S 30,966,641 S 38,767,090

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Enterprise Funds
Statement of Net Position, continued

Exhibit C-1

Major Funds, continued

Ports Total
Solid Waste and Nonmajor Enterprise
June 30, 2022 Utility Harbors Funds Funds
Assets and Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Current Assets
Cash and investments S 8,832,658 § 15,216,830 $ 1,950,070 S 56,629,688
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts:
Accounts 252,180 770,610 8,557 3,446,301
Leases - 198,758 198,758
Intergovernmental - ] 269,426
Inventory 102,691 1,918,707
Total Current Assets 9,187,529 15,987,440 2,157,385 62,462,880
Noncurrent Assets
Restricted assets, cash held by fiscal agent - 2,465,206 - 4,699,489
Net other postemployment benefits asset 651,259 1,042,014 260,503 4,689,061
Capital assets, net 15,047,298 108,186,943 5,525,435 232,820,446
Total Noncurrent Assets 15,698,557 111,694,163 5,785,938 242,208,996
Total Assets 24,886,086 127,681,603 7,943,323 304,671,876
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charge on refunding - 22,746 - 1,628,956
Related to other postemployment benefits 19,252 30,803 7,701 138,612
Related to pensions 126,090 201,745 50,436 907,851
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 145,342 255,294 58,137 2,675,419
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 25,031,428 $ 127,936,897 § 8,001,460 $ 307,347,295

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit C-1, continued

City of Unalaska, Alaska

Enterprise Funds

Statement of Net Position, continued

Major Funds

Electric Water  Wastewater
June 30, 2022 Utility Utility Utility
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Net Position
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,352,503 256,244 S 44,024
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 99,528 38,365 40,591
Compensated absences 96,768 35,504 39,351
Accrued interest 192,732 37,014 67,462
Current portion of bonds, loans, and
other liabilities 1,484,197 179,463 428,330
Lease liability . - -
Advances from other funds 240,000 - -
Unearned revenue - 400,000 -
Customer deposits 125,277 22,175 19,838
Total Current Liabilities 3,591,005 968,765 639,596
Noncurrent Liabilities
Lease liability > - =
Net pension liability 1,961,876 891,761 891,761
Landfill closure and postclosure costs . - x
Advances from other funds, net of
current portion 1,590,000 = -
Bonds and loans payable, net of
current portion 19,891,120 2,512,478 5,568,290
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 23,442,996 3,404,239 6,460,051
Total Liabilities 27,034,001 4,373,004 7,099,647
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to leases - - -
Related to other postemployment benefits 773,326 351,512 351,512
Related to pensions 782,353 355,614 355,614
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,555,679 707,126 707,126
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 27,983,390 18,111,133 26,995,470
Unrestricted 20,070,709 7,775,378 3,964,847
Total Net Position 48,054,099 25,886,511 30,960,317
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources and Net Position $ 76,643,779 530,966,641 $ 38,767,090

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit C-1, continued

City of Unalaska, Alaska

Enterprise Funds

Statement of Net Position, continued

Major Funds, continued

Ports Total
Solid Waste and Nonmajor Enterprise
June 30, 2022 Utility Harbors Funds Funds
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Net Position
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable S 62,772 S 8,423 S 16,331 S 1,740,297
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 38,829 68,784 15,684 301,781
Compensated absences 60,608 174,947 589 407,767
Accrued interest 20,339 212,288 - 529,835
Current portion of bonds, loans, and
other liabilities 254,232 1,100,073 - 3,446,295
Lease liability - 86,908 11,824 98,732
Advances from other funds . - - 240,000
Unearned revenue - - - 400,000
Customer deposits 8,552 - 28,710 204,552
Total Current Liabilities 445,332 1,651,423 73,138 7,369,259
Noncurrent Liabilities
Lease liability - 1,836,000 2,993 1,838,993
Net pension liability 891,761 1,426,818 356,704 6,420,681
Landfill closure and postclosure costs 5,903,729 - - 5,903,729
Advances from other funds, net of
current portion - - - 1,590,000
Bonds and loans payable, net of
current portion 3,305,010 32,295,041 . 63,571,939
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 10,100,500 35,557,859 359,697 79,325,342
Total Liabilities 10,545,832 37,209,282 432,835 86,694,601
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to leases - - 196,792 196,792
Related to other postemployment benefits 351,512 562,419 140,605 2,530,886
Related to pensions 355,614 568,983 142,246 2,560,424
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 707,126 1,131,402 479,643 5,288,102
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 11,488,056 72,868,921 5,510,618 162,957,588
Unrestricted 2,290,414 16,727,292 1,578,364 52,407,004
Total Net Position 13,778,470 89,596,213 7,088,982 215,364,592

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources and Net Position

$ 25,031,428 $127,936,897 S 8,001,460 $ 307,347,295

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Enterprise Funds

Exhibit C-2, continued

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Major Funds

Electric Water Wastewater

Year Ended June 30, 2022 Utility Utility Utility
Operating Revenues

Charges for services $17,860,678 S 2,663,464 S 2,584,192
Operating Expenses

Operations 12,555,409 1,169,221 1,897,590

General and administrative 949,556 509,670 284,391

Landfill closure and postclosure costs - - -

Depreciation and amortization 3,722,221 1,073,242 1,227,316
Total Operating Expenses 17,227,186 2,752,133 3,409,297
Operating income (loss) 633,492 (88,669) (825,105)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Intergovernmental revenue 124,139 52,501 55,025

Interest income 1,894 - -

Loss on disposal of capital assets (617,469) - =

Interest expense (847,778) (40,920) (92,043)
Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (1,339,214) 11,581 (37,018)
Loss before contributions and transfers (705,722) (77,088) (862,123)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Capital contributions 150,000

Transfers in 2,860,000

Transfers out =
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 3,010,000
Change in net position 2,304,278 (77,088) (862,123)
Net Position, beginning 45,749,821 25,963,599 31,822,440
Net Position, endingL $ 48,054,099 § 25,886,511 S 30,960,317

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit C-2, continued

City of Unalaska, Alaska

Enterprise Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, continued

Major Funds, continued

Ports Total
Solid Waste and Nonmajor Enterprise
Year Ended June 30, 2022 Utility Harbors Funds Funds
Operating Revenues
Charges for services S 2,844,342 S 8,177,400 S 715,514 S 34,845,590
Operating Expenses
Operations 1,700,462 2,296,766 618,703 20,238,151
General and administrative 163,749 1,405,647 228,786 3,541,799
Landfill closure and postclosure costs 284,999 - - 284,999
Depreciation and amortization 879,514 4,398,341 479,202 11,779,836
Total Operating Expenses 3,028,724 8,100,754 1,326,691 35,844,785
Operating income (loss) (184,382) 76,646 (611,177) (999,195)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Intergovernmental revenue 49,358 116,017 16,791 413,831
Interest income - 2,583 5,928 10,405
Loss on disposal of capital assets - (1,054,560) - (1,672,029)
Interest expense (58,473) (1,332,860) (528) (2,372,602)
Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (9,115) (2,268,820) 22,191 (3,620,395)
Loss before contributions and transfers (193,497) (2,192,174) (588,986) (4,619,590)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Capital contributions - - 150,000
Transfers in - 4,494 500 - 7,354,500
Transfers out - - (138,400) (138,400)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 4,494,500 (138,400) 7,366,100
Change in net position (193,497) 2,302,326 (727,386) 2,746,510
Net Position, beginning 13,971,967 87,293,887 7,816,368 212,618,082
Net Position, ending $ 13,778,470 S 89,596,213 S 7,088,982 $215,364,592

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit C-3, continued

City of Unalaska, Alaska

Enterprise Funds
Statement of Cash Flows

Major Funds
Electric Water Wastewater
Year Ended June 30, 2022 Utility Utility Utility

Cash Flows from (for) Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users

$ 16,487,850

$ 2,671,458

$ 2,580,443

Payments to employees (2,386,198)  (1,170,668)  (1,200,211)
Payments to vendors (11,203,321) (753,666)  (1,192,581)
Net cash flows from (for) operating activities 2,898,331 747,124 187,651
Cash Flows from (for) Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers out
Net cash flows from (for) noncapital financing activities
Cash Flows from (for) Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,243,032)  (2,678,705) {539,654)
Payments on advances to other funds (240,000) - -
Principal payments on long term debt and leases (1,439,676) (179,462) (428,330)
Interest received on leases - - -
Interest payments on long term debt and leases (854,848) (43,388) (96,862)
Transfers in 2,860,000 - -
Capital contributions received 150,000 400,000
Net cash flows from (for) capital and related
financing activities (767,556)  (2,501,555)  (1,064,846)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investment income received 1,894 - -
Net cash flows from invested activities 1,894
Net increase (decrease) in cash and investments 2,132,669 (1,754,431) (877,195)
Cash and Investments, beginning 17,471,300 10,261,708 5,630,362

Cash and Investments, ending

$ 19,603,969

S 8,507,277

$ 4,753,167

Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Position:
Cash and investments
Restricted cash

17,369,686
2,234,283

8,507,277

4,753,167

Total Cash and Investments

$ 19,603,969

$ 8,507,277

$ 4,753,167

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit C-3, continued

City of Unalaska, Alaska

Enterprise Funds
Statement of Cash Flows, continued

Major Funds, continued

Total
Ports Nonmajor Total
Solid Waste and  Proprietary Enterprise
Year Ended June 30, 2022 Utility Harbors Funds Funds
Cash Flows from (for) Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users $2,797,4998 S§ 8,134,455 § 708,733 S 33,380,437
Payments to employees (1,066,603) (1,856,482) (359,720) (8,039,882)
Payments to vendors (879,541) (1,980,852) (420,363)  (16,430,324)
Net Cash Flows from (for) Operating Activities 851,354 4,297,121 (71,350) 8,910,231
Cash Flows from (for) Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers out - - (138,400) (138,400)
Net Cash Flows from (for) Noncapital Financing Activities - - (138,400) (138,400)
Cash Flows from (for) Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (131,552) (468,602) - (5,061,545)
Payments on advances to other funds . - - (240,000)
Principal payments on long term debt and leases (254,231) (1,120,021) (11,589) (3,433,309)
Interest received on leases . - 5,928 5,928
Interest payments on long term debt and leases (57,201) (1,340,026} (528) (2,392,853)
Transfers in - 4,494,500 B 7,354,500
Capital contributions received - - - 550,000
Net Cash Flows from (for) Capital and Eelated
Financing Activities (442,984) 1,565,851 (6,189) (3,217,279)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investment income received - 2,583 - 4,477
Net Cash Flows from Invested Activities - 2,583 - 4,477
Net increase (decrease) in cash and investments 408,370 5,865,555 (215,939) 5,559,029
Cash and Investments, beginning 8,424,288 11,816,481 2,166,009 55,770,148
Cash and Investments, ending $ 8,832,658 S 17,682,036 S 1,950,070 $ 61,329,177
Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Position:
Cash and investments $8,832,658 § 15,216,830 $1,950,070 $56,629,688
Restricted cash - 2,465,206 - 4,699,489
Total Cash and Investments $ 8,832,658 S 17,682,036 $ 1,950,070 S 61,329,177

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit C-3, continued

City of Unalaska, Alaska

Enterprise Funds
Statement of Cash Flows, continued

Major Funds

Electric Water Wastewater
Year Ended June 30, 2022 Utility Utility Utility
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Flows from (for) Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) S 633,492 S (88,669) S (825,105)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash flows from (for) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 3,722,221 1,073,242 1,227,316
Change in landfill closure and postclosure costs 4 - -
Noncash expense - State PERS relief 124,139 52,501 55,025
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable (1,150,594) 6,598 (4,136)
Intergovernmental receivable (227,591) - -
Leases receivable - - -
Inventory (86,737) (81,853) 1,150
Other postemployment benefits (1,183,755) (515,707) (558,444)
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources:
Related to deferred charges 115,548 - -
Related to other postemployment benefits 121,624 47,882 43,100
Related to pensions 138,309 26,137 19,516
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 545,995 14,177 (30,963)
Accrued payroll and related liabilities (17,064) (48,034) (31,465)
Customer deposits 5,357 1,183 387
Net pension liability (1,214,405) (361,357) (311,248)
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources:
Related to leases - - %
Related to other postemployment benefits 589,439 265,410 246,903
Related to pensions 782,353 355,614 355,615
Net Cash Flows from (for) Operating Activities S 2,898,331 § 747,124 S 187,651
Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchases of capital assets on account S 679,591 $§ 227,308 §

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit C-3, continued

City of Unalaska, Alaska

Enterprise Funds
Statement of Cash Flows, continued

Major Funds, continued

Ports Total
Solid Waste and  Nonmajor Enterprise
Year Ended June 30, 2022 Utility Harbors Funds Funds
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Flows from (for) Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) $(184,382) S 76,646 S (611,177) S (999,195)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash flows from (for) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 879,514 4,398,341 479,202 11,779,836
Change in landfill closure and postclosure costs 284,999 = 284,999
Noncash expense - State PERS relief 49,358 116,017 16,790 413,830
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable (45,988) (42,945) (2,247)  (1,239,312)
Intergovernmental receivable ' - - (227,591)
Leases receivable . = 179,689 179,689
Inventory (65,326) - . (232,766)
Other postemployment benefits (575,146) (982,904) (227,475)  (4,043,431)
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources:
Related to deferred charges - - - 115,548
Related to other postemployment benefits 44,893 83,324 3,337 344,160
Related to pensions 13,653 4,264 2,004 203,883
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 43,291 2,635 7,877 583,012
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 9,669 35,345 932 (50,617)
Customer deposits (856) - (2,568) 3,503
Net pension liability (225,148) (400,131) 11,911 (2,500,378)
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources:
Related to leases - - (181,655) (181,655)
Related to other postemployment benefits 267,209 437,546 109,784 1,916,291
Related to pensions 355,614 568,983 142,246 2,560,425
Net Cash Flows from (for) Operating Activities S 851,354 $4,297,121 § (71,350) $ 8,910,231
Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchases of capital assets on account S -5 - S - $ 906,899

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Reporting Entity

The City of Unalaska, Alaska (the City), was incorporated in 1942 as a first-class city and operates
under a Council - Manager form of government. The City provides a variety of services including
police and fire protection; electric, water, wastewater, and solid waste services; port, harbor and
airport terminal services; the construction and maintenance of streets and infrastructure; and
recreational activities and cultural events.

As required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, these basic financial statements
present the City and its component unit (an entity for which the City is considered to be financially
accountable). The discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the
government-wide financial statements to emphasize it is legally separate from the City.

Discretely Presented Component Unit - Unalaska City School District

The Unalaska City School District (School District) is responsible for elementary and secondary
education within the City’s jurisdiction. The members of the School District’s governing board are
elected by registered voters of the City. However, the School District is fiscally dependent upon the
City because the City Council approves the School District’s budget, levies taxes to finance
operations (if necessary), must approve any debt issuances, and has assumed an obligation to
provide financial support.

Complete financial statements of the School District can be obtained from the Unalaska City School
District, P.0O. Box 570, Unalaska, Alaska 99685.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and statement of
activities) report information on all of the activities of the primary government and its component
unit. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent
on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from the
legally separate component unit for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers
or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by
a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major

individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year
for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within 45 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences, claims and judgments, and pension and other
postemployment benefits, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property tax, sales tax, licenses, and interest are susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and taxes
become measurable and available when cash is received by the City and are recognized as revenue
at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible
to accrual criteria are met. Expenditure-driven grants, including capital grants, recognize revenue
when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been
met.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:
e The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

e The Coronavirus Relief Special Revenue Fund accounts for the financial impact of federal
funding related to the Coronavirus. This fund did not meet the major fund eligibility
requirements in 2022. However, it is represented as a major fund due to its significance to
the City’s taxpayers.

e The 1% Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund accounts for one-third of the three percent in sales
tax collected by the City to fund capital projects.

e The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the acquisition of capital assets or construction of
major capital projects not being financed by proprietary funds.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:
e The Electric Utility Enterprise Fund accounts for the operations of the City-owned Electric
Utility.

= The Water Utility Enterprise Fund accounts for the operations of the City-owned Water
Utility.

o The Wastewater Utility Enterprise Fund accounts for the operations of the City-owned
Wastewater Utility.

e The Solid Waste Utility Enterprise Fund accounts for the operations of the City-owned
landfill.

e The Ports and Harbors Enterprise Fund accounts for operations at six marine facilities at the
International Port of Dutch Harbor.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditure for
specific purposes (not including expendable trusts or major capital projects).

Capital Project Funds account for the acquisition of capital assets or construction of major capital
projects not being financed by proprietary funds.

Enterprise Funds account for business-type activities.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government’s various
utility functions and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Other operating
income consists primarily of late fees on unpaid balances and connection fees intended to recover
the cost of connecting new customers to the applicable system. Operating expenses for enterprise
funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues
and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position
Deposits and Investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
certificates of deposit with original maturities of three months or less from date of acquisition. In
proprietary funds, the City considers changes in amounts due to/from other funds as cash and cash
equivalent transactions on the statement of cash flows because the proprietary funds are able to
withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or penalty.

Collateralization is required on two types of investments: certificates of deposit over FDIC insurance
limit and repurchase agreements. In order to anticipate market changes and provide a level of
security for all monies, the collateralization level is 102% of market value of principal and accrued
interest.

Investments are reported at fair value. Changes in fair value are included as a component of
investment income.

The City’s budget ordinance requires that all investment earnings that are not legally or
contractually required to be recorded in a specific fund must be recorded in the General Fund. The
amount of investment earnings that would have otherwise been assigned to other funds is not
known.

Receivables and Payables

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “internal balances” on the statement of net position
and as “advances to/from other funds” in the fund level financial statements. In the fund level
financial statements, advances from the General Fund are offset by nonspendable fund balance to
indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable, available financial
resources.

All outstanding current balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds” in the
fund level financial statements. These balances represent the numerous transactions that occur
during the course of operations between individual funds for goods provided or services rendered.
On the statement of cash flows for proprietary funds, these are treated as cash and cash equivalent
transactions.

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for doubtful receivables. The
allowance for doubtful receivables is an estimate of the amount uncollectible based on past
experience.

Property taxes are levied as of January 1 on property values assessed by an appraisal company.
Assessment notices are mailed on or before March 31. Tax bills are mailed on or before June 30.
The first half of the payment is due in August and the second half is due in October. Personal
property supplemental and involuntary tax rolls are not eligible for two payment dates and are due
in full in August. Penalties and interest are assessed the day after the due date.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories are valued at cost using the weighted average method. The costs of governmental and
proprietary fund inventories are recorded as expenditures or expenses when consumed rather than
when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded
as prepaid items. These items are recorded as expenditures or expenses during the period benefitted
by the prepayment.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more
than $50,000 in governmental funds and $10,000 in proprietary funds and an estimated useful life
in excess of two years. All capital assets are reported including those purchased or acquired before
June 30, 1980. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased
or constructed. Donated capital assets or capital assets received in exchange are recorded at their
estimated acquisition value at the date of donation or exchange. Acquisition is the price that would
be paid to acquire an asset with equivalent service potential in an orderly market transaction at the
acquisition date.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

All capital assets acquired or constructed for general governmental and School District purposes are
reported as expenditures in the fund that finances the asset acquisition.

Capital assets of the primary government are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Utility distribution system and improvements 20-40 years

Buildings and improvements 20-20 years

Motor vehicles and motorized equipment 5-10 years

Furniture, machinery, and equipment 5-10 years

Dock and improvements 20-40 years
Deposits Payable

The General Fund holds a refundable customer deposit of $3,442 to cover damage or additional
costs incurred by the City in leasing its recreational facilities.

The Airport Fund holds refundable customer deposits of $11,000 to cover damage or additional costs
incurred by the City in its leasing operations.

The Housing Fund holds refundable customer deposits of $17,710 to cover damage to its rental
properties.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

The Electric Utility Fund, Water Utility Fund, Wastewater Utility Fund, and the Solid Waste Utility
Fund hold refundable customer deposits of $125,277, $22,175, $19,838, and $8,552 respectively, to
cover equipment held by customers and in the event of nonpayment of utility bills.

Compensated Absences

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused annual leave benefits.
All annual leave pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have
matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. During 2022 and in
prior years, the General Fund has liquidated the liability for compensated absences.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and
discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective-interest method.
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs
are reported as expenses or expenditures in the period incurred.

In the governmental fund financial statements, bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, are recognized during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Alaska Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) and additions to/deductions from
PERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS.
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the City’s OPEB liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the Alaska Public Employees Retirement System’s (PERS) OPEB Plans and additions
to/deductions from the PERS OPEB Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, the PERS Plans recognize benefit payments
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statements of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred outflows
of resources consist of deferred charges on debt refunding as well as certain pension and OPEB
related accounts.

in addition to liabilities, the statements of net position and balance sheets will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies
to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that
time. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from five sources: real and personal
property taxes, shared fisheries business taxes, shared fisheries resources landing taxes and leases.
These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts
become available. In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, the City
reports deferred amounts related to leases as well as certain pension and OPEB related accounts.

Net Position

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, net position is reported in three
categories; net investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position.
Net position is reported as restricted when constraints placed on net position use are either
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legistation.

Leases

The City has lessee and lessor relationships regarding buildings and infrastructure. The City
recognizes lease related liabilities in the government-wide and enterprise fund financial statements
as capital assets.

For lessee relationships, at the commencement of a lease, the City initially measures the lease
liability at the present value of the payments expected to be made during the lease term. The
lease asset is initially measured at the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease
payments made and subsequently amortized on a straight-line basis over its useful life.

For lessor relationships, at the commencement of a lease, the City initially measures the lease
receivable at the present value of payments expected to be received during the lease term. The
deferred inflow of resources is initially measured as the lease receivable amount, and subsequently
recognized as revenue over the life of the lease term. The City does not consider leasing activities
to be a significant component of its principal ongoing operations.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

The City bases these amounts on discount rate used, lease term, and lease payments/receipts. The
City calculated the discount rate based on known inputs and incremental borrowing rates. The
lease term is the noncancetlable term of the lease, and the lease payments/receipts are composed
of fixed payments to the lessor or payments received from the lessee. The City determines if a
lease is recognizable based on materiality levels of the fund to which the lease belongs over the
term of the lease agreement.

2. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

Budgetary Information
City

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for
all governmental funds except the Coronavirus Relief Special Revenue Fund and the Capital Projects
Funds, which adopt grant or project-length budgets. Governmental funds with adopted annual
budgets include the General Fund and the remaining Special Revenue Funds. All annual
appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. Enterprise funds are financed through user charges related
to providing goods and services to the general public and have annually adopted operating budgets
and project length capital budgets.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. Budgetary control is
exercised at the function level as stated and presented in the ordinance adopting the budget. The
City Manager is authorized to transfer budget amounts between expenditure categories within any
function; however, any supplemental appropriations that amend the total expenditures of any
function or fund require a City ordinance. Reported budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or
as amended by ordinance.

The City Council made supplemental budgetary appropriations throughout the year, the majority of
which were increases in the Capital Project Funds related to major construction projects. Other
supplemental budgetary appropriations in other funds were not considered material.

The City’s original budget document is available from the City at P.O. Box 610, Unalaska, Alaska
99685-0610 or on the Web at: www.ci.unalaska.ak.us.

Project budgets are adopted for various Capital Project Funds based on the lives of the construction
projects. Expenditure authority is limited to the actual revenue and transfers in.

School District
The adopted School Operating Fund budget is submitted to the City for approval of the local

appropriation, then to the State of Alaska, Department of Education and Early Development for
review to determine compliance with Alaska statutes and Department regulations.
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Equity
Net Position Flow Assumptions

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted
bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as
restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied. It is the City’s policy to consider restricted net position to have been
depleted before unrestricted net position is applied.

Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

Sometimes, the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to
calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in
the governmental fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in
which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the government’s policy to consider restricted
fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund
balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same
purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned
fund balance is applied last.

Fund Balance Policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The government itself can establish
limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an
assignment (assigned fund balance).

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes determined by a formal action of the City’s highest level of decision-making authority.
The city council is the highest level of decision-making authority for the City that can, by adoption
of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the
limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of
another ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the City for specific
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The city council has by
resolution authorized the finance director to assign fund balance, including removal and
modification of assigned amounts. The council may also assign fund balance as it does when
appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the
subsequent year's appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist
temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal
of an assignment.
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3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

Cash and Investments

The City maintains a cash and investment pool for use by all funds.
Deposits

At June 30, 2022, the City’s carrying amount of bank deposits was $3,204,497 and the bank balance
was $4,184,863. The $980,366 difference represents outstanding checks and other reconciling items.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure the City’s deposits may not be
returned to it. As of June 30, 2022, the City’s deposits were covered by federal depository insurance
or by collateral held by the City’s agent or pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent
in the name of the City, and thus had no deposits that were exposed to custodial credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the City’s
investment policy limits the City’s investment portfolio to maturities of less than five years.

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of an investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization. The City is authorized by City Council resolution to invest in, and is
restricted to, the following types of securities:

(1) obligations of the United States and of an agency or instrumentality of the United States;

(2) Certificates of deposit; those over the FDIC insurance - must be secured by eligible collateral
as defined in Section 10.0 of the City’s investment policy;

(3) repurchase and agreements secured by obligations of the Treasury of the United States and
obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United States, including MBS. A Master
Repurchase Agreement must be signed with the bank or dealer, before repurchase
agreements are entered into;

(4) the Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool, Inc. (AMLIP) made in accordance with the
terms of that Pool’s “Common investment Agreement;” and in accordance with AS 37.23.010
37.23.900;
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(5) commercial paper and other short-term taxable instruments that, at the time of investment,
maintain the highest rating by at least two nationally recognized rating services;

(6) obligations of a corporation or municipality - if the obligations are investment grade (rated
BBB or higher by at least one nationally recognized rating service) at the time of investment;

this includes ABS and;

(7) money market funds in which the securities of the funds consist of obligations listed in this
section and otherwise meet the requirements of the investment policy.

Investments shall not be purchased through the use of leveraged funds.

Investments

As of June 30, 2022, the City has the following investments and maturities:

Investment Type

Fair Value Less Than 1 1-5

U.S. government and agency
obligations

S 67,508,765 S 12,279,417 § 55,229,348

Mortgage and asset-backed securities 4,082,851 4,082,851
Corporate obligations 31,329,629 4,135,298 27,194,331
Private debt obligations 2,979,290 2,979,290

Total Investments Subject
to Interest Rate Risk

Money Market Funds
AMLIP

105,900,535 S 16,414,715 S 89,485,820

2,999,936
51,269,406

Total Investments

S 160,169,877

At June 30, 2022, the City’s investments in bonds were rated as follows:

Standard &
Investment Poor’s Moody’s Investor Service
Domestic corporate bonds A to BBB- A1 to BAA3
Foreign corporate bonds A- to BBB- A1 to BAA2
Asset-backed securities AAA AAA

The Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool, Inc. (AMLIP) represents the City’s share of ownership
in the Pool rather than ownership of specific securities. AMLIP is considered to be an external
investment Pool as defined by generally accepted accounting principles. AMLIP is not SEC-registered
and is unrated. Regulatory oversight of the Pool is established by Alaska Statute 37.23. The law sets
forth numerous requirements regarding authorized investments and reporting. The Pool is
incorporated in the State of Alaska as a nonprofit corporation and reports to a board of directors.
Alaska Statute 37.23.050 requires the retention of an investment manager.

44

Packet Page Number 103



City of Unalaska, Alaska

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

The manager is required to produce monthly disclosure statements on the Pool. The Pool also has
retained an investment adviser who monitors the performance of the investment manager to ensure
compliance with investment policies. All participation in the Pool is voluntary. The Pool must
maintain a dollar-weighted average maturity of 90 days or less, and only purchase instruments
having remaining maturities of 397 days or less. On a monthly basis, the investments in the Pool are
reviewed for fair value by an independent pricing service. As of June 30, 2022, the fair value of the
investments in the Pool approximates amortized cost and is equal to the value of Pool shares.

Fair Value Measurements

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs. The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30,
2022;

e U.S. Government Obligations are valued at market value based on quoted prices in active
markets (Level 1 inputs)

o U.S. Agency Obligations, Corporate obligations, Mortgage and Asset-Backed Securities, and
Private Debt Obligations are valued using quoted prices for identical securities in inactive
markets (Level 2 inputs)

o Money Market Funds and the City's Investment in AMLIP are measures at net asset value, which
Management believes is approximate of fair value.

Investment Type Fair Value Level 1 Level 2
U.S. government obligations S 64,896,148 S 64,896,148 S -
U.S. agency obligations 2,612,617 - 2,612,617
Mortgage and asset-backed securities 4,082,851 - 4,082,851
Corporate obligations 31,329,629 - 31,329,629
Private debt obligations 2,979,290 - 2,979,290
Total Investments Subject

to Interest Rate Risk 105,900,535 S 64,896,148 S 41,004,387
Money Market Funds 2,999,936
AMLIP 51,269,406
Total Investments S 160,169,877
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Accounts Receivable

The City reports general accounts receivable on its Statement of Net Position net of allowances for
uncollectible accounts. At June 30, 2022, gross receivables and allowances were as follows:

General accounts receivable Gross Allowance Net Receivable
General Governmental Activities S 19,620 S - S 19,620
Business Type Activities 3,496,448 (50,147) 3,446,301

S 3,516,068 S (50,147) S 3,465,921
Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Balance Balance June

Governmental Activities July 1,2021 Increase Decrease 30, 2022
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land S 31,147,603 § - S S 31,147,603

Construction in progress 8,732,211 5,411,751 (3,008,220) 11,135,742
Total capital assets not being

depreciated 39,879,814 5,411,751 (3,008,220) 42,283,345
Capital assets being depreciated

and amortized:

Buildings 63,138,618 - - 63,138,618

Infrastructure 54,820,889 376,699 (596,923) 54,600,665

Machinery and equipment 11,648,023 2,110,365 - 13,758,388

Right to use assets - 160,451 - 160,451
Total capital assets being

depreciated and amortized 129,607,530 2,647,515 (596,923) 131,658,122
Less accumulated depreciation

and amortization for:

Buildings 36,390,413 1,517,926 - 37,908,339

Infrastructure 29,061,080 3,302,669 (432,822) 31,930,927

Machinery and equipment 8,982,167 526,427 - 9,508,594

Right to use assets - 24,551 - 24,551
Total accumulated

Depreciation and amortization 74,433,660 5,371,573 (432,822) 79,372,411
Capital assets being depreciated

and amortized, net 55,173,870  (2,724,058) (164,101) 52,285,711
Total Governmental Activities

Capital Assets, net S 95,053,684 S 2,687,693 S (3,172,321) § 94,569,056
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The following is a summary of the amount of right-to-use leased assets by major classes of
underlying assets for the year ended June 30, 2022 as the result of the implementation of GASB 87.

Leased Assets:

Buildings S 160,451
Less accumulated amortization (24,551)
Total leased buildings, net S 135,900

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to the departments and functions of the
primary government as follows:

General government S 209,533
Public safety 344,795
Public works 3,258,335
Parks, culture, and recreation 776,210
Education 782,700
Total Depreciation and Amortization Expense - Governmental Activities $ 5,371,573

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.
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Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
Business-Type Activities 2021 Increase Decrease 2022
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land S 3,309,476 $ - S - § 3,309,476
Construction in progress 3,778,167 4,608,948 (2,218,697) 6,168,418
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 7,087,643 4,608,948 (2,218,697) 9,477,894
Capital assets being depreciated
and amortized:
Buildings 103,522,721 261,600 103,784,321
Infrastructure 228,951,627 - - 228,951,627
Machinery and equipment 37,281,585 1,225,518 (195,084) 38,312,019
Right to use assets - 2,034,503 - 2,034,503
Total capital assets being
depreciated and amortized 369,755,933 3,521,621 (195,084) 373,082,470
Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization for:
Buildings 30,653,384 2,684,470 - 33,337,854
Infrastructure 90,195,687 6,498,478 - 96,694,165
Machinery and equipment 17,181,458 2,482,348 (70,447) 19,593,359
Right to use assets 114,540 - 114,540
Total accumulated
depreciation and amortization 138,030,529 11,779,836 (70,447) 149,739,918
Capital assets being depreciated
and amortized, net 231,725,404  (8,258,215) (124,637) 223,342,552

Total Business-type Activities
Capital Assets, net

$238,813,047 § (3,649,267)

S (2,343,334) $232,820,446

The following is a summary of the amount of right-to-use leased assets by major classes of underlying
assets for the year ended June 30, 2022 as the result of the implementation of GASB 87:

Leased Assets:
Infrastructure

Less accumulated amortization

$ 2,034,503
(114,540)

Total leased infrastructure, net

S 1,919,963
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Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to the following business-type functions as
follows:

Electric Utility S 3,722,221
Water Utility 1,073,242
Wastewater Utility 1,227,316
Solid Waste Utility 879,514
Ports and Harbors 4,398,341
Airport 289,407
Housing 189,795
Total $11,779,836

Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers
Due to/from Other Funds

Current interfund receivables and payables are shown as “Due from other funds” or “Due to other
funds” in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. These balances at June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Due From Due To

Other Funds Other Funds

General Fund S 539,604 S -
Coronavirus Relief Special Revenue Fund - 529,581
Nonmajor governmental funds 2 10,023
Total S 539,604 S 539,604

Advances to/from Other Funds

On April 27, 2004, the City Council approved a long-term advance from the General Fund to the
Electric Utility Fund in the amount of $2,800,000 to be paid back in twenty annual instaliments,
interest free. Payments are due on May 1 of each year.
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On February 11, 2020, the City Council approved a long-term advance from the General Fund to the
Electric Utility Fund in the amount of $1,884,250 to be paid back in fourteen annual installments,

interest free. Payments are due on May 1 of each year.
These balances at June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Advances to
Other Funds

Advances from
Other Funds

General Fund S 1,830,000 S
Electric Utility Enterprise Fund:
Current portion 240,000
Long-term portion - 1,590,000
Total Interfund Advances S 1,830,000 S 1,830,000

Interfund Transfers

A summary of transfers between funds of the City for the year ended June 30, 2022 follows:

Transfers From

Capital Nonmajor Nonmajor
General 1% Sales  Projects Governmental Enterprise
Transfers To Fund Tax Fund Funds Funds Total
General Fund S -5 -$ 331,044 S 200,480 S 138,400 669,924
Capital Projects
Fund 1,996,013 1,996,013
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
Electric Utility
Enterprise Fund 2,860,000 - - - 2,860,000
Ports & Harbors
Enterprise Fund 3,494,500 1,000,000 - - - 4,494,500
Total Transfers  $ 5,490,513 $ 4,860,000 S 331,044 § 200,480 S 138,400 $ 11,020,437

Transfers from the Capital Projects Fund, Street Nonmajor Governmental Funds, and Nonmajor
Enterprise Funds to the General fund represent unused capital project funds that were returned to
the General Fund during the year. Transfers from the 1% Sales Tax Fund and General Fund represent
transfers for capital projects.
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Leases
Leases Receivable

As of June 30, 2022, the City had sixteen active leases of Tidelands and airport space in which the
City was the lessor. The City recognized $120,528 in lease revenue for governmental activities and
$181,654 in lease revenue for business-type activities. Lease interest revenue related to these
leases totaled $313,822 for governmental activities and $5,928 for business-type activities.

As of June 30, 2022, the City’s receivable for these leases totaled $3,325,946 and $198,758 for
governmental activities and business-type activities, respectively. The City shows a deferred inflow
of resources related to leases that will be recognized as revenue over the lease terms. As of June
30, 2022, the balance of the deferred inflows of resources related to leases totaled $3,241,277 and
$196,792 for governmental activities and business-type activities, respectively.

Leases Payable
As of June 30, 2022, the City had six active leases in which the City was the lessee and recognized
an initial lease liability totaling $160,451 for governmental activities and $2,043,503 for business-

type activities during the current fiscal year. As of June 30, 2022, the value of the lease payable
totaled $137,215 for governmental activities and $1,937,725 for business-type activities.

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.
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The future principal and interest lease payments as of June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Governmental Activities

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 23,699 $ 2,744 26,443
2024 24,173 2,270 26,443
2025 24,657 1,787 26,444
2026 25,150 1,294 26,444
2027 4,053 791 4,844
2028-2032 21,514 2,705 24,219
2033-2037 13,969 562 14,531
Total ) 137,215 ) 12,153  § 149,368

Business-Type Activities

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 98,734 $ 37,960 $ 136,694
2024 91,656 35,970 127,626
2025 90,452 34,121 124,573
2026 92,278 32,295 124,573
2027 94,140 30,432 124,572
2028-2032 443,413 123,397 566,810
2033-2037 252,073 90,521 342,594
2038-2042 278,561 64,034 342,595
2043-2047 307,832 34,763 342,595
2048-2052 188,586 5,551 194,137
Total S 1,937,725 S 489,044 S 2,426,769
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Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt at June 30, 2022 is comprised of the following:

Balance at Balance at Due
Governmental July 1, June 30, within one
Activities 2021 Additions  Retirements 2022 year
Lease liability 160,451 23,236 137,215 23,699
Net pension liability 13,872,343 2,457,800 11,414,543
Compensated absences 1,671,029 45,365 198,411 1,517,983 1,517,983
Governmental Activities
Long-Term Debt $15,543,372 § 205,816 S 2,679,447 $13,069,741 S 1,541,682
Balance at Balance at Due
July 1, June 30, within one
Business-Type Activities 2021 Additions  Retirements 2022 year
Revenue Bonds:
$20,415,000 2015 Series
One Electric bonds due
in annual installments of
$1,130,000 to
$1,785,000 plus interest
at 3.5% to 4.0% through
2035 $18,275,000 $ - $ 1,105,000 $17,170,000 $ 1,130,000
$29,655,000 2017 Series
One Port bonds due in
annual installments of
$795,000 to $1,935,000
plus interest at 3.75% to
5% through 2043 28,250,000 754,999 27,495,001 795,000
$2,745,000 2020 Series
One Electric bonds due
in annual installments of
$215,000 to $310,000
plus interest of 5%
through 2030 2,540,000 205,000 2,335,000 215,000
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Balance at Balance at Due
Business-Type Activities, July 1, June 30, within one
continued 2021 Additions  Retirements 2022 year

Revenue Bonds, Continued:

$2,345,000 2020 Series
One Port bonds due in
annual installments of
$225,000 to $315,000
plus interest at 5%
through 2029 2,345,000 - 210,000 2,135,000 225,000

Loans Payable:

State of Alaska Drinking
Water loan due in
annual installments of
$179,463 plus interest
at 1.5% beginning in
through 2037 S 2,871,403 S - S 179,462 S 2,691,941 S 179,463

State of Alaska Clean
Water loan due in
annual installments of
$428,330 plus interest
at 1.5% through 2035 6,424,950 - 428,330 5,996,620 428,330

State of Alaska Clean
Water loan due in
annual installments of
$254,232 plus interest
at 1.5% through 2036 3,813,473 - 254,233 3,559,240 254,232

Bond premiums 3,737,928 - 199,509 3,538,419 219,270

Army Corp of Engineers
breakwater improvement
project 2,097,013 - - 2,097,013

Lease liability 2,034,503 96,778 1,937,725 98,732

Landfill closure and post-
closure liability 5,618,730 284,999 - 5,903,729

Net pension liability 8,921,059 - 2,500,378 6,420,681
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Balance at Balance at Due

Business-Type Activities, July 1, June 30, within one

continued 2021 Additions  Retirements 2022 year

Compensated absences 461,369 48,420 102,022 407,767 407,767
Business-type Activities

Long-Term Debt $85,355,925 $2,367,922 $ 6,035,711 $81,688,136 $ 3,952,794

The $2,097,013 payable to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers for the Breakwater Improvement
Project has been excluded from the schedule below as the timing of payment has not been
determined.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for business-type activities revenue bonds and loans
are as follows:

Year Ending Revenue Bonds Loans

June 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 2,365,000 S 2,151,844 $ 4,516,844 $ 862,025 $ 184,280 $ 1,046,305
2024 2,445,000 2,061,737 4,506,737 862,025 171,312 1,033,337
2025 2,550,000 1,952,425 4,502,425 862,025 158,344 1,020,369
2026 2,665,000 1,823,050 4,488,050 862,025 145,376 1,007,401
2027 2,820,000 1,687,175 4,507,175 862,025 132,408 994,433
2028-2032 15,255,000 6,220,200 21,475,200 4,310,123 467,523 4,777,646
2033-2037 10,485,000 3,220,125 13,705,125 3,627,553 128,070 3,755,623
2038-2042 8,615,000 1,447,800 10,062,800 - - .
2042-2047 1,935,001 77,400 2,012,401

$49,135,001 $20,641,756 $69,776,757 $12,247,801 S 1,387,313 $ 13,635,114

Advance Refunding of Debt

In July 2020, the City issued $250,000 of 2020 Series One A general obligation bonds with an average
interest rate of 5.000% to advance refund $245,000 of outstanding 2010A tax exempt General
Obligation Harbor Improvement bonds with interest rates ranging from 2.000% to 5.000% per annum.
The net proceeds of $251,855 (after payment of $2,592 in issuance costs) was used to purchase U.S.
government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent
to provide for all future debt service payments on the Series 2010A tax exempt bonds. As a result,
the Series 2010A tax exempt bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds
has been removed from the financial statements. As of June 30, 2021, the amount of defeased debt
has been fully refunded. The City advance refunded the 2010A tax exempt General Obligation
Harbor Improvement bonds and obtained an economic gain (difference of the present value of the
debt service payments on the new and old debts) of $1,592.
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In July 2020, the City issued $2,345,000 of 2020 Series One B general obligation bonds with an
average interest rate of 5.000% to advance refund $2,730,000 of outstanding 2010 Series B-1 taxable
Build America Bond General Obligation Harbor Improvement Bonds with interest rates ranging from
5.995% to 6.341% per annum. The net proceeds of $2,800,914 (after payment of $27,291 in issuance
costs) was used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the Series
2010 Series B-1 taxable bonds. As a result, the Series 2010 Series B-1 taxable bonds are considered
to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the financial statements.
As of June 30, 2021, the amount of defeased debt has been fully refunded.

The City advance refunded the 2010 Series B-1 taxable Build America Bond General Obligation
Harbor Improvement Bonds to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 9 years by
$450,943, and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present value of the debt service
payments on the old and new debt) of $416,476.

in July 2020, the City issued $2,745,000 of 2020 Series One C general obligation bonds with an
average interest rate of 5.000% to advance refund $3,365,000 of outstanding 2010 Series B taxable
Recovery Zone Economic Development Bond Electric Utility Revenue Bond with interest rates
ranging from 4.925% to 5.432% per annum. The net proceeds of $3,730,391 (after payment of
$35,957 in issuance costs) was used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were
deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service
payments on the Series 2010 Series B taxable bonds. As a result, the Series 2010 Series B taxable
bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the
financial statements. As of June 30, 2021, the amount of defeased debt has been fully refunded.

The City advance refunded the 2010 Series B taxable Recovery Zone Economic Development Bond
Electric Utility Revenue Bond to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 10 years by
$431,545, and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present value of the debt service
payments on the old and new debt) of $411,331.

Defeasance of Debt

In 2017, the City defeased general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of the new bonds in an
irrevocable trust account to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds.
Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in
the City’s financial statements. At June 30, 2022, no defeased bonds remain outstanding.

Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

General Information About the Plan

The City participates in the Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS). PERS is a cost-
sharing multiple-employer plan which covers eligible State and local government employees, other
than teachers. The Plan was established and is administered by the State of Alaska Department of

Administration. Benefit and contribution provisions are established by State law and may be
amended only by the State Legislature.
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The Plan is included in a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements
and other required supplemental information. That report is available via the internet at
https://drb.alaska.gov/docs/reports/. Actuarial valuation reports, audited financial statements,
and other detailed plan information are also available on this website.

The Plan provides for retirement, death and disability, and postemployment healthcare benefits.
There are three tiers of employees, based on entry date. For all tiers within the Defined Benefit
(DB) plan, full retirement benefits are generally calculated using a formula comprised of a multiplier
times the average monthly salary (AMS) times the number of years of service. The multiplier is
increased at longevity milestone markers for most employees. Peace/Fire employees accrue
benefits at an accelerated rate. The tiers within the Plan establish differing criteria regarding
normal retirement age, early retirement age, and the criteria for calculation of AMS, COLA
adjustments, and other postemployment benefits (OPEB). A complete benefit comparison chart is
available at the website noted above.

The PERS DB Plan was closed to new entrants effective July 1, 2006. New employees hired after
that date participate in the PERS Defined Contribution (DC) Plan described later in these notes.

Historical Context and Special Funding Situation

In April 2008, the Alaska Legislature passed legislation converting the previously existing PERS plan
from a DB agent-multiple-employer plan to a DB cost-sharing plan with an effective date of July 1,
2008. In connection with this conversion, the State of Alaska passed additional legislation which
statutorily capped the employer contribution rate, established a state funded “on-behalf”
contribution (subject to funding availability), and required that employer contributions be
calculated against all PERS eligible wages, including wages paid to participants of the PERS Tier IV
defined contribution plan described later in these notes. The Alaska Legislature has the power and
authority to change the aforementioned statute through the legislative process.

Alaska Statute 39.35.280 requires the State of Alaska to contribute to the Plan an amount such that,
when combined with the employer contribution, is sufficient to pay the Plan’s past service liability
contribution rate as adopted by the Alaska Retirement Management Board (ARM Board). As such,
the Plan is considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB, and management has

recorded all pension related liabilities, deferred inflows/outflows of resources, and disclosures on
this basis.

The City recorded the related on-behalf contributions as revenue and expense or expenditures as
prescribed by GAAP, pursuant to the relevant basis of accounting based on fund type.

Employee Contribution Rates

Regular employees are required to contribute 6.75% of their annual covered salary. Peace officers
and firefighters are required to contribute 7.50% of their annual covered salary.

Employer and Other Contribution Rates

There are several contribution rates associated with the pension contributions and related
liabilities. These amounts are calculated on an annual basis.
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Employer Effective Rate: This is the contractual employer pay-in rate. Under current legislation,
the amount calculated for the statutory employer effective contribution rate is 22% on eligible
wages. This 22% rate is calculated on all PERS participating wages, including those wages
attributable to employees in the DC plan. Contributions derived from the DC employee payroll is
referred to as the Defined Benefit Unfunded Liability or DBUL contribution.

ARM Board Adopted Rate: This is the rate formally adopted by the Alaska Retirement Management
Board. This rate is actuarially determined and used to calculate annual Plan funding requirements,
without regard to the statutory rate cap or the GASB accounting rate. Effective July 1, 2015, the
Legislature requires the ARM Board to adopt employer contribution rates for past service liabilities
using a level percent of pay method over a closed 25-year term which ends in 2039. This change
results in lower ARM Board Rates than previously adopted.

State Contribution Rate: This is the rate paid in by the State as an on-behalf payment under the
current statute. The statute requires the State to contribute, based on funding availabitity, an on-
behalf amount equal to the difference between the ARM Board Rate and the Employer Effective
Rate. In the governmental fund financial statements, on-behalf contribution amounts have been
recognized as additional revenues and expenditures. In the proprietary funds and government-wide
financial statements, the on-behalf amounts reflect revenue and expense only during the
measurement period in which the Plan recognizes the payments, resulting in a significant timing
difference between the cash transfers and revenue and expense recognition.

Contribution rates for the year ended June 30, 2022 were determined in the June 30, 2020 actuarial
valuations. The City’s contribution rates for the 2022 fiscal year were as follows:

State

Employer ARM Board Contribution

Effective Rate Adopted Rate Rate
Pension 15.54% 26.99% 8.11%
Postemployment healthcare (ARHCT) 6.46% 3.12% -%
Total Contribution Rates 22.00% 30.11% 8.11%

In 2022, the City was credited with the following contributions to the pension plan:

Measurement Period City Fiscal Year
July 1, 2020 July 1, 2021
to to
June 30, 2021 June 30, 2022
Employer contributions (including DBUL) S 1,684,249 S 1,719,676
Nonemployer contributions (on-behalf) 1,116,591 1,040,243
Total Contributions S 2,800,840 S 2,759,919

In addition, employee contributions to the Plan totaled $166,941 during the City’s fiscal year.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2022, the City reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability
(NPL) that reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the City. The amount
recognized by the City for its proportional share, the related State proportion, and the total portion
of the net pension liability that was associated with the City were as follows:

City proportionate share of NPL $ 17,835,224
State’s proportionate share of NPL associated with the City 2,417,998
Total Net Pension Liability S 20,253,222

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2021 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2020 rolled forward to June 30, 2021 to calculate the net pension liability
as of that date. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
City’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions
of all participating entities, including the State, actuarially determined. At the June 30, 2021
measurement date, the City’s proportion was 0.48617 percent, which was an increase of 0.09992
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the City recognized pension expense of $5,996,736 and on-behalf
revenue of $3,467 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2022, the City reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following
sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources  of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience S - S (79,014)
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments - (7,033,275)
Changes in proportion and differences between City

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 802,133
City contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,719,676

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions $ 2,521,809 $ (7,112,289)
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The $1,719,676 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction in the net
pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Year Ending June 30,

2023 S (911,322)
2024 (1,611,047)
2025 (1,742,708)
2026 (2,045,079)
2027 -
Thereafter -
Total Amortization S (6,310,156)

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.
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Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, using the
actuarial assumptions listed below, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled
forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2021:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Amortization method Unfunded Accrued Actuarial Liability, level percent of pay basis
Inflation 2.50% per year

Salary increases For peace officer/firefighter, increases range from 7.75% to 2.75%

based on service. For all others, increases range from 6.75% to 2.75%
based on service.

Allocation methodology Amounts for the June 30, 2021 measurement date were allocated to
employers based on the ratio of the present value of projected future
contributions for each employer to the total present value of projected
future contributions for the Plan for the fiscal years 2023 to 2039.

Investment rate of return  7.38%, net of pension plan investment expenses. This is based on an
average inflation rate of 2.50% and a real rate of return of 4.88%.

Mortality Pre-commencement and post-commencement mortality rates were
based upon the 2013-2017 actual mortality experience. Pre-
commencement mortality rates were based on 100% of the RP-2014
employee table, benefit-weighted, rolled back to 2006, and projected
with MP-2017 generational improvement. Post-commencement
mortality rates were based on 91% of male and 96% of female rates of
the RP-2014 healthy annuitant table, benefit-weighted, rolled back to
2006, and projected with MP-2017 generational improvement. Deaths
are assumed to be occupational 75% of the time for peace
officers/firefighters, 40% of the time for all others.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation (latest available) were
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2013 to June 30,
2017, resulting in changes in actuarial assumptions effective for the June 30, 2018 actuarial
valuation adopted by the Board to better reflect expected experience. The assumptions used in the
June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation are the same as those used in the June 30, 2019 valuation, except
the amount included in the Normal Cost for administrative expenses was updated to reflect the
most recent two years of actual administrative expenses paid from defined benefit pension plan
assets.
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Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic rates of return, excluding the inflation component
of 2.50%, for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June
30, 2021 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class Target Allocation Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return

Broad domestic equity 28% 6.63%
Global equity (non-U.S.) 19% 5.41%
Aggregate bonds 22% 0.76%
Opportunistic 6% 4.39%
Real assets 13% 3.16%
Private equity 12% 9.29%
Cash equivalents -% 0.13%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.38%. The discount rate used did
not change from the prior measurement date. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that employer and State contributions will continue to follow the current
funding policy, which meets State statutes. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using
the discount rate of 7.38%, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one
percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Current
Proportional 1% Decrease Discount 1% Increase
Share (6.38%) Rate (7.38%) (8.38%)
City’s proportionate share
of the net pension
liability 0.48617% S 26,416,541 S 17,835,224 S 10,625,892
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued PERS financial report.

Defined Contribution (DC} Pension Plan

Employees hired after July 1, 2006 participate in PERS Tier IV, a DC plan. This Plan is administered by
the State of Alaska, Department of Administration in conjunction with the DB plan noted above. Benefit
and contribution provisions are established by State law and may be amended only by the State
Legislature. The Alaska Retirement Management Board may also amend contribution requirements.
Included in the Plan are individual pension accounts, a retiree medical insurance plan and a separate
Health Reimbursement Arrangement account that will help retired members pay medical premiums
and other eligible medical expenses not covered by the medical plan. This Plan is included in the
comprehensive annual financial report for PERS, and at the following website
https://drb.alaska.gov/docs/reports/.

Contributions to the DC plan consist solely of employer and employee contributions with no special
funding or other nonemployer contributions. In addition, actual remittances to the PERS system require
that the City contribute at 22%. After deducting the DC plan contributions (and related OPEB
contributions), the remaining remittance (the DBUL) is deposited into the DB plan as noted earlier.

Benefit Terms

Employees are immediately vested in their own contributions and vest 25% with two years of service,
plus an additional 25% per year thereafter for full vesting at five years of service. Nonvested employer
contributions are forfeited upon termination of employment from the Plan. Such forfeitures were
applied in the year ended June 30, 2022 to cover a portion of the City’s employer match contributions.
For the year ended June 30, 2022, forfeitures reduced pension expense by $36,898.

Employee Contribution Rate

Employees are required to contribute 8% of their annual covered salary. This amount goes directly to
the individual’s account.

Employer Contribution Rate

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the City was required to contribute 5% of covered salary into the
Plan.

The City and employee contributions to PERS for pensions for the year ended June 30, 2022 were
$514,097 and $822,553, respectively. The City contribution amount was recognized as pension
expense/expenditures.
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Defined Benefit OPEB Plans

As part of its participation in PERS, the City participates in the following cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit OPEB plans: Alaska Retiree Healthcare Trust (ARHCT), Retiree Medical
Plan (RMP) and Occupational Death and Disability Plan (ODD).

The ARHCT, a healthcare trust fund, provides major medical coverage to retirees of the DB plan.
The ARHCT is self-funded and self-insured. The ARHCT was closed to all new members effective July
1, 2006. Benefits vary by Tier level. The RMP provides major medical coverage to retirees of the
PERS DC Plan (Tier 1V). The RMP is self-insured. Members are not eligible to use the Plan until they
have at least 10 years of service and are Medicare age eligible. The ODD provides death benefits for
beneficiaries of plan participants and long-term disability benefits to all active members within
PERS. The Plans are administered by the State of Alaska, Department of Administration. The OPEB
plans are included in the comprehensive annual financial report for PERS, at the following website
https://drb.alaska.gov/docs/reports/.

Employer Contribution Rates

Employer contribution rates are actuarily determined and adopted by and may be amended by the
Board. Employees do not contribute.

Employer contribution rates for the year ended June 30, 2022 were as follows:

In 2022, the City was credited with the following contributions to the OPEB plans:

Other Peace/Fire
Alaska Retiree Healthcare Trust 6.46% 6.46%
Retiree Medical Plan 1.07% 1.07%
Occupational Death and Disability 0.31% 0.68%
Total Contribution Rates 7.84% 8.21%

In 2022, the City was credited with the following contributions to the OPEB plans:

Measurement Period City Fiscal Year

July 1, 2020 July 1, 2021

to to

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2022

Employer contributions - ARHCT S 215,815 S 158,862
Employer contributions - RMP 125,807 110,016
Employer contributions - ODD 38,626 39,804
Total Contributions S 380,248 S 308,682
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OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Asset, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB Plans

At June 30, 2022, the City reported an asset for its proportionate share of the net OPEB asset (NOA)
that reflected a reduction for State OPEB support provided to the City. The amount recognized by
the City for its proportional share, the related State proportion, and the total were as follows:

City’s proportionate share of NOA - ARHCT S 12,524,058
City’s proportionate share of NOA - RMP 181,953
City’s proportionate share of NOA - ODD 319,158
Total City’s Proportionate Share of Net OPEB Asset S 13,025,169
State’s proportionate share of the ARHCT NOA associated with the City 1,636,260
Total Net OPEB Asset S 14,661,429

The total OPEB liabilities (asset) for the June 30, 2021 measurement date were determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020 rolled forward to June 30, 2021 to calculate the net OPEB
liabilities (asset) as of that date. The City’s proportion of the net OPEB liabilities (asset) is based
on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to the OPEB plans relative to the
projected contributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined.

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021

Measurement Measurement
Date Employer Date Employer
Proportion Proportion Change
City’s proportionate share of the
net OPEB liabilities (asset):

ARHCT 0.38620% 0.48820% 0.10200%
RMP 0.69495% 0.67787% (0.01708)%
ODD 0.73636% 0.72416% (0.01220)%

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the City recognized OPEB expense (benefit) of $(4,754,246). Of
this amount, $(567,721) was recorded for on-behalf revenue and expense for support provided by
the ARHCT plan. OPEB expense (benefit) and on-behalf revenue is listed by plan in the table below:

OPEB Expense On-behalf
Plan (Benefit) Revenue
ARHCT ) (4,958,706) S (567,721)
RMP 170,126 -
OoDD 34,334
Total S (4,754,246) S (567,721)
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At June 30, 2022, the City reported deferred outftows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB plans from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of Resources ARHCT RMP ODD Total
Difference between expected and actual

experience S - §$ 13,528 § - § 13,528
Changes in assumptions ® 56,554 - 56,554

Changes in proportion and differences
between City contributions and

proportionate share of contributions - 2,542 3,728 6,270
City contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 158,862 110,016 39,804 308,682
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Related to OPEB Plans S 158,862 S 182,640 S 43,532 S§ 385,034
Deferred Inflows of Resources ARHCT RMP 0DD Total
Difference between expected and actual

experience S (131,523) S (8,651) § (87,172) S (227,346)
Changes in assumptions (473,287) (108,134) (2,425) (583,846)
Difference between projected and actual

investment earnings (5,860,589) (162,781) (51,178) (6,074,548)

Changes in proportion and differences
between City contributions and
proportionate share of contributions (135,223) (2,270) (7,001) (144,494)

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB Plans S (6,600,622) S (281,836) S (147,776) S (7,030,234)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB plans resulting from City
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction in the net
OPEB liabilities (assets) in the year ending June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB
expense as follows:

Year Ending June 30, ARHCT RMP ODD Total
2023 $(2,112,984) S (44,603) S (28,037) S (2,185,624)
2024 (1,349,674) (44,678) (28,004) (1,422,356)
2025 (1,449,269) (46,322) (28,541) (1,524,132)
2026 (1,688,695) (51,507) (30,249) (1,770,451)
2027 - (6,155) (15,565) (21,720)
Thereafter : (15,947) (13,652) (29,599)
Total Amortization $ (6,600,622) S (209,212) $ (144,048) S (6,953,882)
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Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability (asset) for each plan for the measurement period ended June 30, 2021 was
determined by actuarial valuations as of June 30, 2020, using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement, and rolled forward to the measurement date

of June 30, 2021:

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Inflation

Salary increases

Allocation methodology

Investment rate of return

Healthcare cost trend rates

Mortality
(ARHCT, RMP and ODD Plans)

(ODD Plan)

Participation (ARHCT)

Entry Age Normal
Unfunded Accrued Actuarial Liability, level percent of pay basis
2.50% per year

Graded by service, from 7.75% to 2.75% for Peace Officer/
Firefighter. Graded by service from 6.75% to 2.75% for all others.

Amounts for the June 30, 2021 measurement date were allocated
to employers based on the ratio of the present value of projected
future contributions for each employer to the total present value
of projected future contributions to the Plan for fiscal years 2023
to 2039.

7.38%, net of postemployment healthcare plan investment
expenses. This is based on an average inflation rate of 2.50% and a
real rate of return of 4.88%.

Pre-65 medical: 6.5% grading down to 4.5%
Post-65 medical: 5.4% grading down to 4.5%
Prescription drug: 7.5% grading down to 4.5%
EGWP: 7.5% grading down to 4.5%

Pre-commencement and post-commencement mortality rates were
based upon the 2013-2017 actual mortality experience. Post-
commencement mortality rates were based on 91% of the male
rates and 96% of the female rates of the RP-2014 healthy annuitant
table, benefit-weighted, rolled back to 2006, and projected with
MP-2017 generational improvement. The rates for pre-
commencement mortality were 100% of the RP-2014 employee
table, benefit-weighted, rolled back to 2006, and projected with
MP-2017 generational improvement.

Deaths are assumed to be occupational 75% of the time for peace
officers/firefighters, 40% of the time for all others. Disability
mortality in accordance with the RP-2014 Disabled Table, benefit-
weighted, rolled back to 2006, and projected with MP-2017
generational improvement.

100% of system paid members and their spouses are assumed to
elect the healthcare benefits paid as soon as they are eligible.

20% of nonsystem paid members and their spouses are assumed to
elect the healthcare benefits as soon as they are eligible.
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The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation were based on the results
of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2017, resulting in
changes in actuarial assumptions effective for the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation adopted by the
Board to better reflect expected experience. The assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 actuarial
valuation are the same as those used in the June 30, 2019 valuation with the following exceptions:

1. Per capita claims costs were updated to reflect recent experience.

2. Retired member contributions were updated to reflect the 5% decrease from calendar year
(CY) 20 and CY 21.

3. The amount included in the Normal Cost for administrative expenses was updated to reflect
the most recent two years of actual administrative expenses paid for postretirement
healthcare plan assets.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments for each plan was determined
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of postretirement healthcare plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. The best estimates of arithmetic rates of return,
excluding the inflation component of 2.50% for each major asset class included in the OPEB plan’s
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2021 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class Target Allocation Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return

Broad domestic equity 28% 6.63%
Global equity (non-U.S.) 19% 5.41%
Aggregate bonds 22% 0.76%
Opportunistic 6% 4.39%
Real assets 13% 3.16%
Private equity 12% 9.29%
Cash equivalents -% 0.13%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability (asset) for each plan as of June 30, 2021
was 7.38%. This discount rate used did not change from the prior measurement date. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employer and State contributions
will continue to follow the current funding policy which meets State statutes. Based on those
assumptions, the fiduciary net position for each plan was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments
to determine the total OPEB liability (asset) for each plan.
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Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) calculated
using the discount rate of 7.38%, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the respective
plan’s net OPEB liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one
percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate:

Current
Proportional 1% Decrease Discount 1% Increase
Share (6.38%) Rate (7.38%) (8.38%)
City’s proportionate share of the
net OPEB liability (asset):

ARHCT 0.48820% S (8,190,546) S (12,524,058) $ (16,122,717)
RMP 0.67787% S 118,755 S (181,953) $§  (409,079)
ODD 0.72416% S  (305,609) § (319,158) S  (329,948)

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) calculated
using the healthcare cost trend rates as summarized in the 2020 actuarial valuation reports as well
as what the City’s proportionate share of the respective plan’s net OPEB liability (asset) would be
if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower or one
percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Current

Healthcare

Proportional Cost Trend
Share 1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase

City’s proportionate share of the
net OPEB liability (asset):

ARHCT 0.48820% S (16,543,984) S (12,524,058) S (7,673,054)
RMP 0.67787% S  (441,589) S (181,953) $ 171,819
0ODD 0.72416% S n‘a $ n‘a $ n/a

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about each OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued PERS financial report.

Defined Contribution OPEB Plans
PERS DC Pension Plan participants (PERS Tier IV) also participate in the Health Reimbursement
Arrangement Plan (HRA Plan). The HRA Plan allows for medical care expense to be reimbursed from

individual savings accounts established for eligible persons. The HRA Plan became effective July 1,
2006 at which time contributions by employers began.
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Contribution Rate

AS 39.30.370 establishes this contribution amount as “three percent of the average annual employee
compensation of all employees of all employers in the plan”. As of July 1, 2021, for actual remittance,
this amount is calculated as a flat rate for each full-time or part-time employee per pay period and
approximates $2,168 per year for each full-time employee, and $1.39 per hour for part-time
employees.

Annual Postemployment Healthcare Cost

In fiscal year 2022, the City contributed $260,569 in DC OPEB costs. These amounts have been
recognized as expense/expenditures.

4, Change in Accounting Principle

In 2022, the City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 87 Leases, which among other
accounting and reporting criteria, requires the City to recognize the lease liability/asset (and
related deferred inflow/outflow accounts), as of the beginning of the City’s fiscal year. GASB 87
establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are
financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under GASB 87, a lessee is required to recognize
a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease
receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of
information about leasing activities. The effect on beginning net position of adopting GASB 87 in
the City’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022 is zero, since the balances for
leases receivable and deferred inflow of resources related to leases are the same. As a result of the
implementation of this statement, the City has recorded no opening balance adjustments.

5. Other Information

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets,
third-party liability, and errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries
commercial insurance. The City’s insurance is on a per-occurrence basis.

The City currently participates in the Alaska Public Entity Insurance (APEI) pool, which covers
property and contents, general, auto liability, law enforcement legal liability, errors and omissions,
earthquake and flood, marine, and workers compensation. APEl is a public entity risk pool that
reinsures risk above certain levels, thereby relieving the members of the need for additional
assessments. The Association’s bylaws provide for the assessment of supplemental contributions
from members in the event that losses and expenses for any coverage year exceed the annual
contributions and income earned on such contributions for the year. The Association made no
supplemental assessments during the year ended June 30, 2022.

Claims on insurance have not exceeded coverage in any of the last three years.

70

Packet Page Number 129



City of Unalaska, Alaska

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care

State and federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its current landfill
when it stops accepting solid waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions
at the landfill for thirty years after closure. To properly account for these estimated closure and
postclosure care costs, the City is recording as an operating expense in each period an amount based
on landfill capacity used each year of operation. During 2022, the estimated closure and postclosure
care costs were reevaluated and adjusted to reflect conditions as of June 30, 2022. As of June 30,
2022, the City has an accrued liability associated with these estimated closure and postclosure care
costs of $5,903,729, based on the use of 61% of the estimated capacity of the landfill. It is estimated
the City will recognize additional $9,571,359 of expense and liability between July 2022, and the
year 2051, the date the landfill is expected to reach full capacity. These amounts are based on what
it would cost to perform all the closure and postclosure care functions in 2022. Actual costs of
closure and postclosure care may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in
laws and regulations.

Alaska state law requires that the City provide financial assurances annually for the closure and
postclosure care of the landfill. Currently, no assets of the City are restricted for payment of closure
and postclosure care costs. Future inflation costs and additional costs that might arise from changes
in closure and postclosure requirements (due to change in technology or more rigorous
environmental regulations, for example) may need to be covered by charges to future landfill users,
taxpayers, or both.

Contingencies

Under the terms of state and federal grants, periodic audits may be performed by funding agencies
and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the terms of the
grants. Such audits could require reimbursement to the grantor agencies.

In the normal course of its activities, the City is involved in various claims and pending litigation.
Management believes that the outcome of the matters discussed in the preceding paragraphs will
not have a material adverse effect on the financial statements of the City. Accordingly, no provision
for losses has been recorded.

Commitments
Encumbrances outstanding at year-end, including purchase orders, contracts, and other

commitments for the expenditure of monies, are reported as committed or assigned fund balances
in the governmental funds. Outstanding encumbrances at June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Governmental funds:

General Fund S 513,076

Coronavirus Relief Fund 17,747

Capital Projects Fund 5,033,110

Total governmental funds S 5,563,933
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Proprietary funds:
Electric Utility Fund S 438,488
Water Utility Fund 239,589
Wastewater Utility Fund 99,620
Solid Waste Utility Fund 9,183
Ports and Harbors Fund 230,044
Total proprietary funds S 1,016,924

In 2021, the City entered into a 30-year Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with Ounalashka/Chena
Power, LLC (OCCP) whereby the City committed to purchase a minimum of 100 million kWh of power
annually. The agreement between the City and OCCP is contingent on OCCP obtaining financing to
construct their Geothermal site locally. As of the date of these financial statements, financing has
not yet been obtained by OCCP and it is unknown when the Geothermal site will become operational.

6. New Accounting Pronouncements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several new accounting standards
with upcoming implementation dates (effective dates are adjusted for the issuance of GASB
Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance). The
following new accounting standards were implemented by the City for 2022 reporting:

GASB Statement No. 87 - Leases - Effective for year-end June 30, 2022. This Statement addresses
accounting and financial reporting for certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously
were classified as operating leases. This Statement establishes a single model for lease accounting
based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset.
The City analyzed all active leases to determine which leases applied to GASBS 87 and accounted
for those leases accordingly.

GASB Statement No. 89 - Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction
Period - Effective for year-end June 30, 2022. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred
before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost
is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. The
City evaluated the impacts of GASBS 89 and determined that the Standard had no impact to the
City’s financial statements for the current fiscal year.

GASB Statement No. 92 - Omnibus 2020 - Provisions of this Statement related to the effective date
of Statement No. 87 and Implementation Guide 2019-3, reinsurance recoveries, and terminology
used to refer to derivative instruments are effective upon issuance. The effective date for all other
provisions of the Statement are to be implemented for year-end June 30, 2022. This Statement
addresses a variety of topics such as leases, the applicability of Statement No. 73 and Statement
No. 74 for reporting assets accumulated for postemployment benefits, the applicability of
Statement No. 84 to postemployment benefit arrangements, the measurements of liabilities and
assets related to asset retirement obligations in a government acquisition, reporting of public entity
risk pools, referencing to nonrecurring fair value measurements, and terminology used to refer to
derivative instruments. The City evaluated the impacts of GASBS 92 and determined that the
Standard had no impact to the City’s financial statements for the current fiscal year.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

GASB Statement No. 93 - Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates - The provisions of this Statement,
except for paragraph 11b, 13 and 14, are required to be implemented for year-end June 30, 2021.
The requirements in paragraph 11b, 13 and 14 are required to be implemented for year-end June
30, 2022. This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting implications that result from
the replacement of an interbank offered rate (IBOR). The City evaluated the impacts of GASBS 93
and determined that the Standard had no impact to the City’s financial statements for the current
fiscal year.

GASB Statement No. 97 - Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans - Effective for year-end June
30, 2022, except the portion of the pronouncement related to component unit criteria, which is
effective for year-end June 30, 2020. This statement modifies certain guidance contained in
Statement No. 84 and enhances the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting
and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans
(Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through
those plans. The City evaluated the impacts of GASBS 97 and determined that the Standard had no
impact to the City’s financial statements for the current fiscal year.

GASB Statement No. 98 - The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report - Effective for year-end June
30, 2022. Earlier application is encouraged. This Statement establishes the term annual
comprehensive financial report and its acronym ACFR. That new term and acronym replace instances
of comprehensive annual financial report and its acronym in generally accepted accounting
principles for state and local governments. The City evaluated the impacts of GASBS 98 and
determined that the Standard had no impact to the City’s financial statements for the current fiscal
year.

The GASB has issued several new accounting standards with upcoming implementation dates
(effective dates adjusted for the issuance of GASB Statement No. 95). Management has not fully
evaluated the potential effects of these statements, and actual impacts have not yet been
determined. The statements are as follows:

GASB Statement No. 91 - Conduit Debt Obligations - Effective for year-end June 30, 2023. This
Statement provides a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminates
diversity in practice associated with commitments extended by issuers, arrangements associated
with conduit obligations, and related note disclosures. This Statement clarifies the definition of a
conduit debt obligation and establishes standards for related accounting and financial reporting.

GASB Statement No. 94 - Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements - Effective for year-end June 30, 2023. The primary objective of this Statement is to
improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public
partnership arrangements (PPPs) and also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting
for availability payment arrangements (APA).

GASB Statement No. 96 - Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements - Effective for
year-end June 30, 2023. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting
for subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users.
This Statement, among other things, defines a SBITA, establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-
use subscription asset (an intangible asset) and a corresponding subscription liability, provides
capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, and requires note disclosures
regarding a SBITA.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements

GASB Statement No. 99 - Omnibus 2022 - Provisions of this Statement related to extension of the
use of LIBOR, accounting for SNAP distributions, disclosures of nonmonetary transactions, pledges
of future revenues by pledging governments, classification of certain provisions in Statement No.
34, as amended, and terminology updates related to Statement No. 53 and Statement No. 63 are
effective upon issuance. The effective date for the provisions of this Statement related to leases,
PPPs, and SBITAs are to be implemented for year-end June 30, 2023. The effective date for the
provisions of this Statement related to financial guarantees and the classification and reporting of
derivative instruments within the scope of Statement No. 53, are to be implemented for year-end
June 30, 2024.

GASB Statement No. 100 - Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 62 - Effective for year-end June 30, 2024. Earlier application is encouraged. The
primary objective of this Statement is to enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements
for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant,
consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or assessing accountability.

GASB Statement No. 101 - Compensated Absences - Effective for year-end June 30, 2025. Earlier
application is encouraged. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs
of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement guidance for
compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition and measurement
guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Exhibit D-1

Budget Variance with
Year Ended June 30, 2022 Original Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues
Taxes
General sales $ 6,000,000 $ 6,000,000 $ 9,039,203 $ 3,039,203
Seafood sales 4,200,000 4,200,000 6,360,295 2,160,295
Real property 4,750,000 4,750,000 4,737,374 (12,626)
Personal property 2,350,000 2,350,000 3,007,081 657,081
Other 75,000 82,200 213,577 131,377
Intergovernmental
Fisheries business tax 3,300,000 3,300,000 3,973,545 673,545
Fisheries resource landing tax 3,900,000 3,900,000 4,971,744 1,071,744
PERS on behalf 457,294 457,294 666,921 209,627
Payment in lieu of taxes 900,000 900,000 931,935 31,935
Debt reimbursement - - 432,187 432,187
Other 914,605 920,605 325,179 (595,426)
Charges for services 241,350 241,350 720,734 479,384
Investment income (loss) 1,800,000 1,800,000 (3,016,475) (4,816,475)
Other revenue 208,800 208,800 139,456 (69,344)
Total Revenues 29,097,049 29,110,249 32,502,756 3,392,507
Expenditures
General government 5,848,833 5,848,833 5,539,472 309,361
Public safety 7,713,765 7,968,188 7,082,457 885,731
Public works 6,401,901 6,401,901 5,290,393 1,111,508
Parks, culture, and recreation 3,605,438 3,612,638 3,333,755 278,883
Community support 1,134,368 1,134,368 1,134,368 -
Education 4,699,189 4,699,189 4,699,189
Debt Service:
Principal on leases 23,236 (23,236)
Interest on leases 3,209 (3,209)
Total Expenditures 29,403,494 29,665,117 27,106,079 2,559,038
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (306,445) (554,868) 5,396,677 5,951,545
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of assets 2,500 2,500 - (2,500)
Transfers in - - 669,924 669,924
Transfers out (5,390,513) (5,443,436) (5,490,513) (47,077)
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) (5,388,013) (5,440,936) (4,820,589) 620,347
Net Change in Fund Balance $(5,694,458) § (5,995,804) 576,088 § 6,571,892
Fund Balance, beginning 90,293,179

Fund Balance, ending

$ 90,869,267

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Coronavirus Relief Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Exhibit D-2

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues
Grant revenue S 1,069,850 S 1,167,416 S 1,546,672 $ 379,256
Investment income - 49 49
Total Revenues 1,069,850 1,167,416 1,546,721 379,305
Expenditures
Community support 1,069,850 1,167,416 1,546,721 (379,305)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures - . -
Net Change in Fund Balances S S - - $ -

Fund Balance, beginning

Fund Balance, ending
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1% Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund

City of Unalaska, Alaska

Exhibit D-3

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Original and Final

Budget Actual Variance
Revenues
Taxes S 3,000,000 S 4,481,024 S 1,481,024
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 3,000,000 4,481,024 1,481,024
Other Financing Uses - transfers out (4,860,000) (4,860,000)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance, beginning

Fund Balance, ending

78

$ (1,860,000)

(378,976) S 1,481,024

13,752,569

$ 13,373,593
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2022

1. Budgetary Comparison Schedule

The budgetary comparison schedules are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
2. Public Employees’ Retirement System Pension Plan

Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

This table is presented based on the Plan measurement date. For June 30, 2022, the Plan
measurement date is June 30, 2021.

Changes in Assumptions:

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation (latest available) were
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2013 to June 30,
2017, resulting in changes in actuarial assumptions effective for the June 30, 2018 actuarial
valuation adopted by the Board to better reflect expected experience. The assumptions used in
the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation are the same as those used in the June 30, 2019 valuation,
except the amount included in the Normal Cost for administrative expenses was updated to reflect
the most recent two years of actual administrative expenses paid from defined benefit pension
plan assets.

In 2020, the discount rate was lowered from 8% to 7.38%.
Amounts reported reflect a change in assumptions between 2016 and 2017 in the method of
allocating the net pension liability from actual contributions to present value of projected future

contributions.

Schedule of the City’s Contributions

This table is based on the City’s contributions for each fiscal year presented. These contributions
have been reported as a deferred outflow of resources on the Statement of Net Position.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Notes to Required Supplementary Information, continued

3. Public Employees’ Retirement System OPEB Plans

Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Asset and Liability

This table is presented based on the Plan measurement date. For June 30, 2022, the Plan
measurement date is June 30, 2021.

Changes in Assumptions:

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation were based on the results
of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2017, resulting in
changes in actuarial assumptions effective for the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation adopted by
the Board to better reflect expected experience. The assumptions used in the June 30, 2020
actuarial valuation are the same as those used in the June 30, 2019 valuation with the following
exceptions:

1. Per capita claims costs were updated to reflect recent experience.

2. Retired member contributions were updated to reflect the 5% decrease from calendar
year (CY) 20 to CY 21.

3. The amount included in the Normal Cost for administrative expenses was updated to
reflect the most recent two years of actual administrative expenses paid for
postretirement healthcare plan assets.

Iin 2020, the discount rate was lowered from 8% to 7.38%.
In 2020, an Employer Group Waiver Plan (EGWP) was implemented effective January 1, 2019. This
arrangement replaced the Retiree Drug Subsidy (RDS) under Medicare Part D and resulted in larger

projected subsidies to offset the cost of prescription drug coverage.

GASB requires ten years of information be presented. However, until a full ten years of information
is available, the City will present only those years for which information is available.

Schedule of the City’s Contributions
These tables are based on the City’s contributions for each fiscal year presented. These
contributions have been reported as a deferred outflow of resources on the Statement of Net

Position.

GASB requires ten years of information be presented. However, until a full ten years of information
is available, the City will present only those years for which information is available.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet

Exhibit F-1

Street
Paving Total
Special Revenue Funds Capital Nonmajor
E911 Tobacco Projects  Governmental
June 30, 2022 Bed Tax Enhancement Tax Fund Funds
Assets
Cash and investments S - $ 53,655 S 156,414 $ 1,000,000 S 1,210,069
Taxes receivable 48,592 20,792 236,472 - 305,856
Total Assets S 48,592 S 74,447 $ 392,886 $ 1,000,000 $ 1,515,925
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Due to other funds $ 10,023 S S S - 10,023
Fund Balances
Committed:
Public safety - 74,447 392,886 - 467,333
Community support 38,569 - - E 38,569
Capital projects - - 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total Fund Balances 38,569 74,447 392,886 1,000,000 1,505,902
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 48,592 § 74,447 § 392,886  $1,000,000 $ 1,515,925
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances

Exhibit F-2

Street
Paving Total
Special Revenue Funds Capital Nonmajor
E911 Tobacco Projects  Governmental
Year Ended June 30, 2022 Bed Tax Enhancement Tax Fund Funds
Revenues
Taxes $ 223,563 S 74,447 $392,886 S S 690,896
Expenditures
Community support 210,000 - 210,000
Capital projects - 327,070 327,070
Total Expenditures 210,000 - - 327,070 537,070
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 13,563 74,447 392,886 (327,070) 153,826
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 1,000,000 1,000,000
Transfers out (200,480) (200,480)
Net Other Financing Sources 799,520 799,520
Net Change in Fund Balances 13,563 74,447 392,886 472,450 953,346
Fund Balances, beginning 25,006 527,550 552,556
Fund Balances, ending $ 38,569 74,447 $ 392,886 $ 1,000,000 $ 1,505,902
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Bed Tax Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Exhibit F-3

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget Actual Variance
Revenues
Taxes $ 125,000 $ 223,563 S 98,563
Expenditures
Community support 210,000 210,000
Net Change in Fund Balance $  (85,000) 13,563 S 98,563

Fund Balance, beginning

Fund Balance, ending

88
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Exhibit G-1

City of Unalaska, Alaska

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Combining Statements of Net Position

Total
Nonmajor
Enterprise
June 30, 2022 Airport Housing Funds
Current Assets
Cash and investments $ 1,764,452 S 185,618 $ 1,950,070
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts 4,907 3,650 8,557
Lease receivable 198,758 - 198,758
Total Current Assets 1,968,117 189,268 2,157,385
Noncurrent Assets
Net other postemployment benefits asset 152,494 108,009 260,503
Capital assets, net 1,800,709 3,724,726 5,525,435
Total Noncurrent Assets 1,953,203 3,832,735 5,785,938
Total Assets 3,921,320 4,022,003 7,943,323
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Related to other postemployment benefits 3,083 4,618 7,701
Related to pensions 28,529 21,907 50,436
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 31,612 26,525 58,137
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources S 3,952,932 $ 4,048,528 $ 8,001,460
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 5 13,813 S 2,518 S 16,331
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 8,921 6,763 15,684
Compensated absences 364 225 589
Lease liability 11,824 . 11,824
Customer deposits 11,000 17,710 28,710
Total Current Liabilities 45,922 27,216 73,138
Noncurrent Liabilities
Lease liability 2,993 - 2,993
Net pension liability 205,248 151,456 356,704
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 208,241 151,456 359,697
Total Liabllities 254,163 178,672 432,835
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to leases 196,792 - 196,792
Related to other postemployment benefits 52,511 88,094 140,605
Related to pensions 74,040 68,206 142,246
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 323,343 156,300 479,643
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 577,506 334,972 912,478
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 1,785,892 3,724,726 5,510,618
Unrestricted 1,589,534 (11,170) 1,578,364
Total Net Position 3,375,426 3,713,556 7,088,982
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position $ 3,952,932 $ 4,048,528 S 8,001,460
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses

and Changes in Net Position

Total
Nonmajor
Enterprise
Year Ended June 30, 2022 Airport Housing Funds
Operating Revenues
Charges for services S 456,749 S 258,765 S 715,514
Operating Expenses
Operations 478,918 139,785 618,703
General and administrative - 228,786 228,786
Depreciation and amortization 289,407 189,795 479,202
Total Operating Expenses 768,325 558,366 1,326,691
Operating loss (311,576) (299,601) (611,177)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Intergovernmental revenue 9,536 7,255 16,791
Interest income 5,928 - 5,928
Interest expense (528) - (528)
Net Nonoperating Revenues 14,936 7,255 22,191
Loss before transfers (296,640) (292,346) (588,986)
Transfers out - (138,400) (138,400)
Change in net position (296,640) (430,746) (727,386)
Net Position, beginning 3,672,066 4,144,302 7,816,368
Net Position, ending $ 3,375,426 $ 3,713,556 $ 7,088,982
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Exhibit G-3

Total
Nonmajor
Enterprise
Year Ended June 30, 2022 Airport Housing Funds
Cash Flows for Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users $ 452,536 S 256,197 S 708,733
Payments to employees (201,549) (158,171) (359,720)
Payments to vendors (272,707) (147,656) (420,363)
Net Cash Flows for Operating Activities (21,720) (49,630) (71,350)
Cash Flows for Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers out (138,400) (138,400)
Net Cash Flows for Noncapital Financing Activities (138,400) (138,400)
Cash Flows for Capital and Related Financing Activities
Interest received on leases 5,928 5,928
Principal payments on leases and long term debt (11,589) (11,589)
Interest paid on leases (528) (528)
Net Cash Flows for Capital and Related Financing Activities (6,189) (6,189)
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (27,909) (188,030) (215,939)
Cash and Investments, beginning 1,792,361 373,648 2,166,009
Cash and Investments, ending $ 1,764,452 S 185,618 $ 1,950,070

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Flows for
Operating Activities

Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
cash flows from (for) operating activities:

S (311,576)

$ (299,601)

S (611,177)

Depreciation and amortization 289,407 189,795 479,202
Noncash expense - State PERS relief 9,536 7,254 16,790
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable (2,247) (2,247)
Leases receivable 179,689 . 179,689
Other postemployment benefits (133,459) (94,016) (227,475)
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources: -
Related to other postemployment benefits 6,156 (2,819) 3,337
Related to pensions (2,539) 4,543 2,004
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 8,084 (207) 7,877
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 3,191 (2,259) 932
Customer deposits . (2,568) (2,568)
Net pension liability 2,287 9,624 11,911
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources:
Related to leases (181,655) - (181,655)
Related to other postemployment benefits 37,366 72,418 109,784
Related to pensions 74,040 68,206 142,246
Net Cash Flows for Operating Activities S (21,7200 S (49,630) $ (71,350)
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Statistical Section (Unaudited)
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Statistical Section
June 30, 2022

Statistical Section

This part of the City of Unalaska’s annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and
required supplementary information says about the government’s overall financial health.

Table of Contents
Page(s)

Financial Trends 97-103
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the

government’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.
Revenue Capacity 104-109
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government’s most

significant sources of revenue.
Debt Capacity 110-114
These schedules presents information to help the reader assess the affordability of the

government’s current levels of outstanding debt and the government’s ability to

issue additional debt in the future.
Demographic and Economic Information 115-117
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader

understand the environment within which the government’s financial activities take

place.
Operating Information 118-119
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand

how the information in the government’s financial report relates to the services the

government provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: The City’s annual comprehensive financial reports for the previous 10 years, District files, and
public records from various local and state agencies.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Governmental Activities Tax Revenues by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Table 3

E911 Penalty
Raw Seafood Real Personal Enhancement  and Interest
Fiscal Year Sales Tax Tax Property Taxes  Property Taxes Bed Tax Tobacco Tax on Taxes Total
2013 13,272 S 4,784 S 3,446 S 1,541 S 189 S S L S 102 S 23,334
2014 12,554 4,450 3,469 1,741 118 - 118 22,450
2015 12,220 4,982 3,857 1,852 189 88 23,188
2016 11,846 5,123 4,163 1,900 210 32 23,274
2017 11,306 4,657 4,230 1,965 189 38 22,385
2018 10,738 4,475 4,355 1,697 169 72 21,506
2019 11,084 4,761 4,554 1,970 155 158 22,682
2020 10,798 5,328 4,487 2,591 166 237 23,607
2021 10,613 5,276 4,769 2,440 77 . - 107 23,282
2022 13,399 6,354 4,712 2,949 224 390 74 216 28,318
Figure 1: General Governmental Tax Revenues
(accrual basis of accounting) (amounts expressed in thousands)
$30,000 - )
Enhancement Tax
Tobacco Tax
$25,000 @Fenalty and Inferest on Taxes
mBed Tax
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Governmental Expenditures
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 6

Figure 2A: Governmental Expenditures
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Figure 2B: Governmental Expenditures by
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

General Governmental Tax Revenues by Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Table 7

E911 Penalty
Raw Seafood Real Personal tnhancement  and Interest
Hiscal Year sales lax lax Property |axes Property |axes Bed tax lobacco 1ax lax on laxes lotal
2013 S 13,272 1 4,784 S 3,446 S 1,541 S 189 S ] $ 102 23,334
2014 12,554 4,450 3,469 1,741 118 118 22,450
2015 12,220 4,982 3,857 1,852 189 88 23,188
2016 11,846 5,123 4,163 1,900 210 32 23,274
2017 11,306 4,657 4,230 1,965 189 38 22,385
2018 10,738 4,475 4,355 1,697 169 72 21,506
2019 11,084 4,761 4,554 1,970 155 158 22,682
2020 10,798 5,328 4,487 2,591 166 237 23,607
2021 10,613 5,276 4,769 2,440 77 - - 107 23,282
2022 13,322 6,354 4,712 2,949 301 390 74 217 28,319
Figure 3: General Governmental Tax Revenues
(modified accrual basis of accounting)
(amounts expressed in thousands)
$30,000 i Penalty and Interest
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Table 9
City of Unalaska, Alaska
City Tax Rates

All Governments
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(1) (2) (3)

Total City City City
Millage Sales Tax Raw Seafood
Fiscal Year Rate Rate (2) Tax Rate (3)
2013 10.50 3.00 2.00
2014 10.50 3.00 2.00
2015 10.50 3.00 2.00
2016 10.50 3.00 2.00
2017 10.50 3.00 2.00
2018 10.50 3.00 2.00
2019 10.50 3.00 2.00
2020 10.50 3.00 2.00
2021 10.50 3.00 2.00
2022 9.00 3.00 2.00

(1) The rate is per thousand dollars of assessed value. There are no restrictions or mandates on the rate
nor is there a separate component for debt service.

(2) Per Ordinance Section 6.40.020.

(3) Per Ordinance Section 6.44.020.

Note: There are no overlapping governmental units.
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Table 14
City of Unalaska, Alaska
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands, except per capita amount)

Percentage of

Estimated
General Actual Taxable

Obligation Value of
Fiscal Year Bonds Property Per Capita
2013 S 5,460 0.98 % S 1,242
2014 4,698 0.77 985
2015 3,954 0.62 843
2016 3,114 0.52 700
2017 2,243 0.35 496
2018 1,333 0.22 308
2019 387 0.09 82
2020 - 0.00 N/A
2021 - 0.00 N/A
2022 - 0.00 N/A
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Table 16
City of Unalaska, Alaska

Legal Debt Margin Information
June 30, 2021

There is no legal debt margin for municipalities in the State of Alaska.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 18

Aleutians
West Region
Personal Aleutians
Income West Region Aleutians
(amounts per Capita Unalaska West Region
Unalaska expressed in Personal School Unemployment
Calendar Year Population (1) thousands) (2) Income (2) Enrollment (3) (4)

2013 4,516 S 202,105 S 36,673 415 8.8 %
2014 4,517 304,806 53,010 407 4.8
2015 4,440 299,746 52,569 396 3.8
2016 4,448 316,823 56,105 375 3.3
2017 4,341 301,733 53,010 389 3.7
2018 4,333 311,245 54,385 400 3.5
2019 4,724 320,998 56,296 421 3.1
2020 4,254 338,947 59,674 412 4.5
2021 4,195 228,938 65,812 387 3.7
2022 4,561 & * 354 3.8

* Data unavailable or incomplete.

Sources:
(1) Alaska Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development

(2) U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis: Statistics are kept for the region, not for the City of Unalaska.

(3) Unalaska City School District: Official fall count of calendar year.
(4) Alaska Department of Labor: Statistics are kept for the region, not for the City of Unalaska.

Figure 13A: Population Trend
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Table 19
City of Unalaska, Alaska

Principal Employers

Alaska Department of Labor can no longer give out any information related to employers in Alaska due to new
federal regulations.
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Federal Single Audit Reports
Year Ended June 30, 2022

The report accompanying these financial statements was issued by
BDO USA, P.C, a Virginia professional corporation, and the U.S. member of A

BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

The Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council
City of Unalaska, Alaska

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the City of Unalaska, Alaska (the City), which comprise the City’s financial
statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 4, 2023. Our
report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the Unalaska
City School District, as described in our report on the City’s financial statements. This report
includes our consideration of the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those
other auditors. However, this report, insofar as it relates to the results of the other auditors, is
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

BDO USA, P.C., a Virginia professional corporation, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.

1
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We and the other auditors identified certain
deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as items 2022-001, 2022-002, and 2022-003 that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests did not disclose instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

City’s Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City’s
response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. The City’s response was not subjected to the other auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on the response.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

BOO UWsA,P.C.

Anchorage, Alaska
October 4, 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program;
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

The Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council
City of Unalaska, Alaska

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Unalaska’s, Alaska (the City) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of the City’s major federal programs for the year ended June
30, 2022. The City’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion for Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of
the City's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements
applicable to the City’s federal programs.

BDO USA, P.C., a Virginia professional carporation, is the U.5. member of BDO international Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.

3
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance
will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered
material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the City’s
compliance with the requirements of the each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

* [dentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the City’s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the City’s internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Other Matter

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance which are required
to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2022-004, 2022-005 and 2022-
006. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to these matters.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City’s
response to the noncompliance findings identified in our compliance audit described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The City’s response was not subjected
to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on the response.
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The City is responsible for preparing a corrective action plan to address each audit finding
included in our auditor’s report. The City’s corrective action plan was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on it.

Other Matter - Federal Expenditures Not Included in the Compliance Audit

The City's basic financial statements include the operations of the City’s discretely presented
component unit, the Unalaska City School District (the District), which expended $777,632 in
federal awards which is not included in the City’s schedule of expenditures of federal awards
during the year ended June 30, 2022. Our compliance audit, described in the “Opinion on Each
Major Federal Program,” does not include the operations of the District because the District
engaged other auditors to perform an audit of compliance.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance and, therefore, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we
did identify certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be
material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2022-004, 2022-005 and 2022-
006 to be material weaknesses.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City’s
response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The City’s response was not subjected
to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on the response.
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The City is responsible for preparing a corrective action plan to address each audit finding
included in our auditor’s report. The City’s corrective action plan was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on it.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated
October 4, 2023, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit
was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and
is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

BOTO usA, P.C

Anchorage, Alaska
October 4, 2023
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City of Unalaska

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Federal Pass-Through

Assistance Entity Provided
Federal Grantor / Pass-Through Grantor / Listing Identifying toSub-  Total Federal
Program or Cluster Title Number Number recipients Expenditures
Department of Treasury
Passed through the State of Alaska
Department of Commerce and Economic Development
COVID 19 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019 20-CRF-216 S . 427,251
Passed through the State of Alaska
Department of Commerce and Economic Development
COVID 19 - Coronavirus State and
Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 21.027 AKO0137 . 1,113,290
Total Department of Treasury - 1,540,541
National Endowment for the Humanities
Institute of Museumn and Library Services
Passed through the State of Alaska
Department of Education and Early Development
Grants to States 45.310 EASY22-056 - 6,000
Grants to States 45.310 1LC22-013 - 1,163
Total Assistance Listing 45.310 . 7,163
Total National Foundation on the Arts and Humanities - 7,163
Department of Health and Social Services
Center for Disease Control and Prevention
Passed through the State of Alaska
Department of Health and Social Services
Epidemiology & Laboratory Capacity for Infectious Diseases 93.323 C0621-570-L - 6,132
Total Department of Health and Social Services - 6,132
U.S Department of Commerce
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
Passed through the State of Alaska
Department of Military and Veterans Affairs
Meteorologic and Hydrologic Modernization Development 11.467 20NOAA-GY21 - 122,380
Total Department of Health and Social Services - 122,380
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards S - S 1,676,216

See accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

7
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2022

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal
award activity of the City of Unalaska, Alaska (the City) under programs of the federal government
for the year ended June 30, 2022. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with
the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City, it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of
the City.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.
Negative amounts, if any, shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the
normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

3. Reporting Entity

The City of Unalaska, Alaska for purposes of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, includes
all the funds of the primary government as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and GASB Statement No. 39, Determining
Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units - an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14.
It does not include the component unit of the City of Unalaska, the Unalaska City School District.
This component unit also receives federal awards, but separately satisfies the audit requirements
of the Uniform Guidance, if applicable.

4, Indirect Cost Rate

The City has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2022

[ Section | - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements
Type of report the auditor issued on whether
the financial statements audited were prepared
in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? _X_yes __no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? __yes _X_(none reported)
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? ___yes X _no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? X yes __nho
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes _X_(none reported)

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major federal programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? _X _yes no

Identification of major federal programs:

Assistance Listing

Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster Agency
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal U.S. Department of the Treasury
21.027 Recovery Funds
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $ 750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? _X _yes __no
9
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, continued
Year Ended June 30, 2022

[

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings |

Finding 2022-001  Grant Revenue Reconciliations - Material Weakness in Internal Control

Over Financial Reporting

Criteria Government Auditing Standards states that management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control to help ensure that
appropriate goals and objectives are met; using resources efficiently,
economically, effectively, and equitably, and safeguarding resources;
following laws and regulations; and ensuring that management and financial
information is reliable and properly reported. Internal controls over
financial reporting should allow management to prevent or detect and
correct misstatements on a timely basis.

Condition Reconciliations and related details provided on grant revenue and deferred
revenue contained material inaccuracies.

Cause Internal controls were not established to ensure that grant revenue was
recorded based on expenditures during the year. In addition, internal controls
were not established to ensure that cash receipts were accurately reconciled
to deferred revenue.

Effect or potential BDO identified a material adjustment to grant revenue in the Coronavirus
effect Relief Special Revenue Fund and a material adjustment to deferred revenue
in the Water Enterprise Fund.

Recommendation Management should prepare a close schedule and perform timely
reconciliations with appropriate grant revenue and deferred revenue details
that agree to the reconciliations. Management should ensure reconciliations
are performed accurately and reviewed in a timely manner. Applicable
accounts should be reconciled, and necessary adjusting entries recorded, at
least quarterly.

Views of responsible Management agrees with the finding. Management plans to prepare a close

officials and schedule and timely perform reconciliations with grant revenue and deferred
planned corrective revenue details.
actions

Finding 2022-002 Sales Tax Revenue Recognition - Material Weakness in Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting

Criteria Government Accounting Standards Board Statement 54 (GASBS 54) states that
the General Fund should be used to account for and report all financial
resources not accounted for in another fund. Special revenue funds are used
to account for and report the proceeds of special revenue sources that are
restricted or committed to expenditure for specific purposes other than debt
service or capital projects (GASBS 54, paragraphs 29 - 30).

10
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, continued
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Condition Sales Tax Revenue is reported under the General Fund and the 1% Sales Tax
Special Revenue Fund. However, management recorded an amount of sales
tax in the Bed Tax Special Revenue Fund that was material to the opinion unit
in which the Bed Tax Special Revenue Fund is classified.

Cause A business entity used a bed tax reporting form to report its sales tax revenue
to the City during 2022. Because the entity used the incorrect form, the City
recorded the tax revenue in the Bed Tax Special Revenue Fund, rather than
the General Fund and 1% Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund. The amount of sales
tax incorrectly recorded as proceeds in the Bed Tax Special Revenue Fund was
material to the fund’s opinion unit.

Effect or potential BDO identified a material adjustment to bed tax revenue in the Bed Tax
effect Special Revenue Fund.

Recommendation Management should establish internal controls to ensure that proceeds of
special revenue sources and general revenue sources are recorded accurately
in the applicable fund.

Views of responsible Management agrees with the finding. Management will establish internal
officials and controls to ensure that proceeds of special revenue sources and general
planned corrective revenue sources are recorded accurately in the applicable fund.
actions

Finding 2022-003 Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 87 (GASBS 87) -
Material Weakness in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Criteria GASBS 87 states that a lessee should measure the lease liability at the present
value of payments expected to be made during the lease term. A lessee
additionally should measure a lease asset as the sum of, among other criteria,
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability (GASBS 87,
paragraphs 21 and 30). Leases should be recognized using and measured using
the facts and circumstances that existed at the beginning of the period of
implementation (GASBS 87, paragraph 94).

Condition As part of its initial implementation of GASBS 87 to account for the City’s two
leases in the Port and Harbors Enterprise Fund, management failed to measure
the lease liability using the facts and circumstances that existed at the
beginning of the period of implementation of GASBS 87. Management
measured its lease liability and lease asset (ROU Asset) by discounting future
payments based on a payment amount that was significantly lower than the
applicable payment amount at the beginning of the period of implementation.

Cause Internal controls were not established to ensure that lease amortization
schedules were accurate and reflected up-to-date inputs to initially measure
the lease liability and ROU asset applicable to the Port and Harbors Fund.

11

Packet Page Number 192



City of Unalaska, Alaska

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, continued
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Effect or potential BDO identified a material adjustment to the initial measurement of lease

effect liability and ROU Asset recorded in the Ports and Harbors Enterprise Fund as a
result of management’s use of the incorrect future payment to measure the
lease liability and ROU asset.

Recommendation Management should prepare a close schedule and perform reconciliations with
appropriate lease amortization schedules that agree to the lease agreements.
Management should ensure reconciliations are performed accurately and
reviewed in a timely manner. Applicable schedules should be reconciled, and
necessary adjusting entries recorded, at least quarterly.

Views of responsible Management agrees with the finding. Management will prepare a close
officials and schedule and timely perform reconciliations with appropriate lease
planned corrective amortization schedules that agree to the lease agreements.
actions

| Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs |
Finding 2022-004 Timely Submission of Financial Reports - Material Weakness in Internal
control over Financial Reporting and Material Noncompliance

Agency U.S. Department of Treasury

Program ALN: No. 21.027 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds - COVID-19

Award No. AKO137

Award Year 2022

Criteria or 2 CFR subtitle A Chapter Il part 200 subpart F section 200.512 states that “(1)
Specific The audit must be completed and the data collection form described in
Requirement paragraph (b) of this section and reporting package described in paragraph (c)

of this section must be submitted within the earlier of 30 calendar days after
receipt of the auditor’s report(s), or nine months after the end of the audit
period. If the due date falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or Federal holiday, the
reporting package is due the next business day.”

Condition The Federal data collection form and reporting package were not filed on time.

Cause There were limited personnel resources at the City to assist in the timely
completion of the City’s audit.

Effect or potential  Federal funds could potentially be expended on unallowable activities and for
effect unallowed costs, and outside the period of performance.

Questioned Costs None.

Context The Form SF-SAC is due nine months after the fiscal year-end. The form for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 was filed late.

Recommendation The City should prepare for its fiscal year audit before year end to ensure that
it is able to assist in the execution of the audit.

12
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, continued

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Views of responsible Management agrees with the finding. The City recently hired a Finance Director

officials and

and is working to fill the Controller position. Being fully staffed will assist in

planned corrective the timely completion of the City’s audit.

actions

Finding 2022-005

Agency
Pass-through
Entity
Program
Award No.
Award Year

Criteria or
Specific
Requirement

Condition

Cause

Effect or potential

effect

Questioned Costs

Context

Recommendation

Views of responsible

officials and

Procurement, Suspension, and Debarment - Material Weakness in Internal
Control and Material Noncompliance

U.S. Department of Treasury

State of Alaska Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic
Development

ALN: No. 21.027 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds - COVID-19
AKO0137

2022

In accordance with 2 CFR section 200.320, the City is required to have and use
documented procurement policies consistent with the standards of the CFR
for any method of procurement used in the acquisition of property or services
required under the American Rescue Plan Act. '

Personnel at the City of Unalaska, acting under the local emergency in effect
for FY22 did not follow procurement policies consistent with 2 CFR 200.320
for small purchases in FY22,

The City of Unalaska relaxed procurement policies per Resolution 2020-16
passed by the City Council on March 18, 2020. The relaxed procurement
policies were not consistent with procurement policies per 2 CFR 200.320.

The City was not in compliance with 2 CFR section 200.320 during 2022. Goods
and services procured by the City under the program may not be the most
cost-effective or appropriate for the City.

None.

We tested the procurement for one sample selected in FY22. BDO was unable
to obtain documentation for rate or quote solicitation for the selected sample
and upon inquiry, identified that procurement policies at the City were
relaxed during FY22.

Procurement policies should be updated and documented so that they are at
least as restrictive as the policies required per the Code of Federal Regulation.

Management agrees with the finding. Management will review procurement
policies and update as needed to ensure they are at least as restrictive as the

planned corrective policies required per the Code of Federal Regulation.

actions

13
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City of Unalaska, Alaska

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, continued

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Finding 2022-006

Agency
Pass-through
Entity
Program
Award No.
Award Year

Criteria or

Specific
Requirement

Condition

Cause

Effect or potential
effect

Questioned Costs

Context

Recommendation

Views of responsible

officials and

Procurement, Suspension, and Debarment - Material Weakness in Internal
Control and Material Noncompliance

U.S. Department of Treasury

State of Alaska Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic
Development

ALN: No. 21.027 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds - COVID-19
AKO137

2022

Internal control policies should be established to document that an entity with
which the City plans to enter into a covered transaction is not debarred,
suspended, or otherwise excluded for covered transactions under the Uniform
Guidance.

The City did not retain documentation that vendors were not debarred,
suspended, or otherwise disbarred.

During FY22, the City did not have internal control policies in place to ensure
that adequate documentation was maintained over vendors with which the
City entered into covered transactions.

The lack of documentation can impede the City’s management to monitor
compliance with the requirement.

None.

Auditor were unable to verify internal controls over sampled procurements
because no documentation was retained. Auditor verified that the vendor was
not suspended or disbarred.

We recommend that management retain evidence of review that prospective
vendors and suppliers are not on the suspension and debarment list for
covered transactions under Uniform Guidance.

Management agrees with the finding. Management will retain evidence of
review that prospective vendors and suppliers are not on the suspension and

planned corrective debarment list for covered transactions under Uniform Guidance.

actions

14
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Unalaska, Alaska

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

Management Contact Person

William Homka, City Manager
(907) 581-1602
bhomka@oci.unalaska.ak.us

2022-001: Grant Revenue Reconciliations — Material Weakness in Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting

e Management plans to prepare a close schedule and timely perform reconciliations with grant
revenue and deferred revenue details. On a quarterly basis Management will ensure
reconciliations are accurate and timely, reconciling applicable accounts and recording
necessary adjusting entries.

e Anticipated completion: December 2023

2022-002: Sales Tax Revenue Recognition — Material Weakness in Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting

e Management will establish internal controls to ensure that proceeds of special revenue
sources and general revenue sources are recorded accurately in the applicable fund.

e Anticipated completion: December 2023

2022-003: Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 87 (GASB 87) — Material
Weakness in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

e Management will prepare a close schedule and timely perform reconciliations with appropriate
lease amortization schedules that agree to the lease agreements. On a quarterly basis

Management will ensure reconciliations are accurate and timely, reconciling applicable
schedules and recording necessary adjusting entries.

e Anticipated completion: December 2023

2022-004: Timely Submission of Financial Reports — Material Weakness in Internal control
over Financial Reporting and Noncompliance

e The City recently hired a Finance Director and is working to fill the Controller position. Being
fully staffed will assist in the timely completion of the City’s audit.

e Anticipated completion: December 2023

15
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CITY OF UNALASKA
43 Raven Way - P.O. Box 610
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Unalaska, Alaska

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN, CONTINUED

2022-005: Procurement, Suspension, and Debarment ~ Material Weakness in Internal
Control and Material Noncompliance

¢ Management will review procurement policies and update as needed to ensure they are at
least as restrictive as the policies required per the Code of Federal Regulation.

e Anticipated completion: December 2023

2022-006: Procurement, Suspension, and Debarment — Material Weakness in Internal
Control and Material Noncompliance

e Management will retain evidence of review that prospective vendors and suppliers are not on
the suspension and debarment list for covered transactions under Uniform Guidance.

o Anticipated completion: December 2023

16
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CITY OF UNALASKA
UNALASKA, ALASKA

RESOLUTION 2023-39

A RESOLUTION OF THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH R&M CONSULTANTS, INC. FOR ASSESSMENT
SERVICES FOR THE EMERGENCY CLIFF FACE STABILIZATON BALLYHOO ROAD
PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF $47,606

WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska has determined the cliff face behind the Latitude 54 building on
Ballyhoo Road to be a significant hazard to property and to human life; and

WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska identified the hazard after a significant weather event and
contracted with R&M Consultants, Inc. (R&M) to provide initial risk assessment services; and

WHEREAS, R&M concluded that the cliff face requires mitigation to stabilize the cliff face; and

WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska created an emergency project and the City Council funded the
project; and

WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska worked with R&M to develop a plan for mitigation of the cliff face
that includes reassessing the site throughout the project; and

WHEREAS, R&M is qualified to provide this oversite and reassessment; and

WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska has negotiated a fair and reasonable price for services to be
provided.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Unalaska City Council authorizes the City
Manager to enter into an agreement with R&M Consultants, Inc. for assessment services for the
Cliff Face Stabilization Ballyhoo Road Project in the amount of $47,606.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on October
10, 2023.

Mayor Pro Tem

ATTEST:

Estkarlen P. Magdaong
City Clerk
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MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL

To: Mayor and City Council Members

From: Peggy McLaughlin, Port Director

Through: Marjie Veeder, Acting City Manager

Date: October 10, 2023

Re: Resolution 2023-39 and Resolution 2023-40

SUMMARY: The adoption of Resolution 2023-39 will authorize the City Manager to sign an
agreement with R&M Consulting Inc. in the amount of $47,606 for on-going assessment during
the rock stabilization project. Resolution 2023-40 will authorize the City Manager to sign an
agreement with Southeast Roadbuilders in the amount of $151,860 for the stabilization of the cliff
face at the Latitude 54 building on Ballyhoo Road.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: On September 26, 2023, Council had first reading of a budget
amendment for this project, Ordinance 2023-10, and advanced it to public hearing and second
reading tonight.

BACKGROUND: In December of 2022 a severe storm caused community-wide flooding and mud
and rock slides. These hazards included landslides and rock fall on and in the vicinity of parcel
01-09-200 on Ballyhoo Road. Once the water had receded, large rock falls continued. A significant
threat was identified on Ballyhoo Road parcel 01-09-200 in the form of a large overhanging rock
wedge with a potential slip plane. A similar rock fell in 2014 and caused damage to the warehouse
on the same parcel. Ultimately, the City was responsible for approximately 25% of the damages
in the amount of $315,000.

DISCUSSION: The emergency funding was requested through Ordinance 2023-10, FY24 Budget
Amendment #1. The emergency funding was approved based on the contracts that are presented
in Resolutions 2023-39 and 2023-40. The authorization of these funds will allow the project to
begin.

The threat of rock falls still exists, and property and human safety are at imminent risk. It is
anticipated that the freeze and thaw cycles of winter could provoke the rock wedge to break loose.
Weather is not the only risk. In June 2023, a forklift-sized rock fell from underneath wedge and
along the slip plane. It is clear that action needs to be taken, and taken before we hit winter
weather later this year.

R&M Consultants, Inc. (R&M) conducted the first assessment in February 2023 and provided the
City with names of contractors with hand scaling and rock anchoring expertise. We contacted
each of those companies and had one response from Southeast Roadbuilders. We are
considering this an emergency project and consequently are doing our due diligence to avoid sole
sourcing, but also understand the urgency in expediting this project.

There a few layers to the structure of this project.

There are two contractors involved, R&M and Southeast Roadbuilders. The proposals are
structured with a phased approach. Attached with this memo are two proposals from Southeast
Roadbuilders and one from R&M.

-
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The first layer will be to hand-scale loose rock and break free and remove any potential hazards
without aggressive action. This is outlined in the first proposal (Phase 1) from Southeast
Roadbuilders. The proposal for this phase shows lump sum costs for mobilization and fixed costs
and consumables along with daily rates for crew time for the other tasks. Their proposal states
that it is anticipated to be four days for hand scaling (task 2) and two days for the blasting
expert/manager onsite (task 3). By inputting their assumed number of days multiplied by the daily
rate for tasks 2 and 3, we can assume a total estimated cost of phase 1 to be $75,280.

After the hand-scaling is complete, R&M will reassess the rock over hang and determine whether
or not more aggressive efforts need be taken to secure the rock face. If further rock removal is
required, Southeast Roadbuilders has provided a proposal for blasting and removing additional
rock hazards. The proposal for phase 2 is a little clearer with the days included in the quantity for
tasks 2 and 3. The total estimated cost for phase 2 is $76,580.

Totaling phase 1 work and phase 2 work gets us to $151,860. Staff recommends a contingency
of 30% be added, for a total cost of work, with contingency, of $197,418.

Geotechnical expertise shall be provided by R&M. R&M did the initial assessment of the rock face
in February 2023. R&M will work with the contractor for the duration of the project to provide
hazard removal assessment services during the removal process and an assessment report with
conclusions and recommendations at the completion of the removal effort. R&M'’s proposal is
attached and is in the amount of $47,606.

Weather permitting, the project is estimated to be completed in 8-10 days.

ALTERNATIVES: Council may choose to approve the resolutions; or not to approve the
resolutions. Council could also choose to put this through the traditional CMMP process, which is
not recommended due to the imminent danger to people and property.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The total cost of this project including contingency is $245,024 and
is funded by the General Fund.

LEGAL: There are no immediate legal requirements to this, but failing to address this will likely
result in future liability to the City.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends adoption of Resolution 2023-39 and Resolution
2023-40.

PROPOSED MOTION: Separate motions will be needed for each resolution:

I move to adopt Resolution 2023-39.
I move to adopt Resolution 2023-40.

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS: | support the Staff Recommendation. It is important to shore up
this cliff face to prevent future damage to people and property.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Southeast Roadbuilders — Phase 1 Proposal
2. Southeast Roadbuilders — Phase 2 Proposal
3. Proposal from R&M Consultants, Inc.
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R&M CONSULTANTS, INC.
ANCHORAGE | FAIRBANKS | JUNEAU

September 20, 2023 R&M No. 3052.01
Ms. Peggy McLaughlin Via E-mail: pmclaughlin@ci.unalaska.ak.us
Director

International Port of Dutch Harbor
City of Unalaska, Alaska

RE: Unstable Slope Hazard Removal Assessment Services
Latitude 54 Building, Dutch Harbor, Alaska

Dear Ms. McLaughlin,

R&M Consultants, Inc. (R&M) appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal to provide unstable slope hazard removal
assessment services to the International Port of Dutch Harbor, City of Unalaska (Unalaska) in support of a known unstable

slope located immediately behind and adjacent to the Latitude 54 building along Ballyhoo Road at the Port of Dutch Harbor.

We understand that the City of Unalaska is currently in negotiations with Southeast Road Builders to conduct hazard removal
services consisting of rock scaling and possible rock blasting services at the project site. The intent of this effort is to reduce
the hazard and risk that the unstable slope poses to the Latitude 54 facility. At the request of the Port and the City, R&M is
providing this fee estimate to provide hazard removal assessment services during the removal process and an assessment

report with conclusions and recommendations at the completion of the removal effort.

SCOPE OF GEOTECHNICAL HAZARD REMOVAL ASSESMENT SERVICES

R&M will provide the city with on-site geologist/geotechnical engineer with experience in monitoring unstable slope hazard
removal operations. During removal operations, the R&M representative will remain on-site to monitor progress and evaluate
the slope for any emerging or additional hazards. Of particular concern will be monitoring removal operations to ensure that
no overhanging hazards remain and that all areas of differential erosion are addressed. Our scope of work is defined in the

following tasks.

e Task1Report of Hazard Removal Construction Objectives.

o R&M will prepare a report that defines objectives and general geometrics of the hazard removal for use as

a guide during construction.

o Contractor will be fully responsible for means and methods to execute the work and for executing the work

in a safe manner and without damage to existing facilities.

RMCONSULT.COM | 9101 VANGUARD DRIVE, ANCHORAGE, AK 99507 | 907.522.1707
Packet Page Number 201



Unstable Slope Hazard Removal Assessment Services Estimate - Latitude 54 Building

Page 2 of 3

e Tasks 2 and 3 Rock Scaling and Rock Blasting Support. These tasks include on-site monitoring during construction

activities and to assess stability and hazard removal.

e Task 4 Hazard Assessment Reporting. Once hazard removal operations are completed, R&M will prepare a hazard

removal assessment report which will include:
o Summaries of site visit activities, Daily Reports, research, observations, and rock mechanics data;
o Adiscussion of any remaining slope stability concerns and underlying failure mechanisms;

o General conclusions regarding any remaining interpreted slope stability hazards, available mitigation

options, and recommendations for mitigation and/or additional investigation; and
o A photograph log with descriptions depicting conditions referenced in report text.

Field personnel will be under the direct supervision of a Certified Professional Geologist or Professional Civil/Geotechnical
Engineer. All geotechnical findings, conclusions, and recommendations will be prepared under the supervision of a

geotechnical engineer registered as a Professional Civil Engineer in the State of Alaska.

SCHEDULE

R&M can be able to perform the hazard removal assessment within approximately two weeks following notice-to-proceed.

The report will be submitted within three weeks following completion of field work.

ASSUMPTIONS AND CONDITIONS

R&M’s proposal and fee are based on acknowledgement that:

e Both the rock-scaling assessment and rock-blasting assessment portions are based on 4-day completion periods.
Should conditions warrant additional time on-site, R&M can provide the City with additional fee estimates to
complete any increased level of effort.

e Hazard removal assessment activities are conducted prior to significant snowfall and freeze-up.

PRICE

R&M will provide the hazard removal assessment services on a Time and Expenses basis with a not-to-exceed price of
$47,606 In this estimate, we have planned for approximately 221 labor hours, and will not exceed that without prior

authorization.
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Unstable Slope Hazard Removal Assessment Services Estimate - Latitude 54 Building

Page 3 0of 3

CLOSURE

We thank you for the opportunity to propose on this hazard removal assessment effort, and hope our response meets your
expectations. Please do not hesitate to contact me at your convenience if you have questions or require additional

information.

Sincerely,

R&M CONSULTANTS, INC. ACCEPTED BY:

5L

Aaron T. Banks, C.P.G.

Senior Geologist

Attachments: Detailed Cost Estimate (5-pages)
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R&:M CONSULTANTS, INC. | iZtontSirect 4150 - Fairbanics AK 56701 - 507.452.5270
B A e O e =]

Firm: R&M i i . Date:
Client: City of Unalaska Project Title: Lattitude 54 Hazard Removal Support 9/20/2023
Task Discipline Task Description Labor Expenses Sub-Contractors Task Totals Cost Basis
1 ES Hazard Removal Construction Objective Planning | $ 5,676.00 | $ -S -1 S 5,676.00 T&E
2 ES Rock Scaling Support S 17,622.00 | $ 4,615.80 | $ - S 22,237.80 T&E
3 ES Rock Blasting Support S 11,160.00 | $ 1,692.60 S -1S 12,852.60 T&E
4 ES Hazard Assessement Reporting S 6,840.00 | $ - S -1 S 6,840.00 T&E
$ -1$ -8 -8 -
$ - S - S - S -
$ -8 -8 -8 -
$ - S - S - S -
$ -8 -1$ -1$ -
$ - S - S - S -
Total Project Cost Estimate: S 47,606
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COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: R&M Consultants, Inc. IPROJECT TITLE: Lattitude 54 Hazard Removal Support
TASK NO: 1 TASK DESCRIPTION: Hazard Removal Construction Objective Planning DATE: 9/20/2023
GROUP: ES METHOD OF PAYMENT: O rp ] rpre T&E ] cprr PREPARED BY: A. Banks/T. Ross
Contract Prof 5 Prof 3 Geol 2
SUB-TASK Prof 4 (Geol
NO SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Manager (Geotech) rof 4 (Geol) (Geotech) (Geotech)
L. Story B. Pintner A. Banks B. Mullen A. Brown
Work Planning 2 12 16
TOTAL LABOR HOURS 0 2 12 16 0 0 0 0 0
* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $ 276.00 S 246.00 S 192.00 | $ 180.00  $ 108.00 | $ $ - S ) - s -
LABOR COSTS ($) $ - $ 49200 $ 230400 S  2,880.00 $ - S $ - 8 - s - s -
EXPENSES COMMENTS
[ ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE |1) R&M will prepare a report that defines objectives and general geometrics of the
Project Expenses hazard removal for use as a guide during construction.
TOTAL EXPENSES: S B
R&M Laboratory Testing
FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): S 5,676.00
$ -
$ -
R&M MATERIAL LABORATORY EXPENSES S -
SUB-CONTRACTORS: Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES (w/ markup %) 5.0% $ -
FIRM: [ [ TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES (w/markup %): 5.0% $ -
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COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: R&M Consultants, Inc. IPROJECT TITLE: Lattitude 54 Hazard Removal Support
TASK NO: 2 TASK DESCRIPTION: Rock Scaling Support DATE: 9/20/2023
GROUP: ES METHOD OF PAYMENT: ] ep ] rprE T&E [ cprr PREPARED BY: A. Banks/T. Ross
Contract Prof 5 Prof 3 Geol 2
SUB-TASK Prof 4 (Geol
NO SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Manager (Geotech) rof 4 (Geol) (Geotech) (Geotech)
L. Story B. Pintner A. Banks B. Mullen A. Brown
2.1 Project Management and Coordination 1 4 2
2.2 Mobilization/Demobilization 4 24
2.3 Field Investigation 4 8 48
TOTAL LABOR HOURS 0 5 16 74 0 0 0 0 0
* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $ 276.00 S 246.00 | $ 192.00 | $ 180.00  $ 108.00 | $ $ - S - 1S - s -
LABOR COSTS ($) S - S 1,230.00 | $ 3,072.00 | $§ 13,320.00 S - S $ - $ - $ - $ -
EXPENSES COMMENTS
[ ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE |1) Assumes 4 days of rock scaling support. Additional days on site will be billed at a
Project Expenses rate of 12 hours per day plus per diem.
23 RT be.tween AN'C and DUT : 1 S 1,978.00 | $ 1,978.00 ) A site visit will be made by a Senior Geologist or Geotechnical Engineer to monitor
;: \P/e:‘!):er; (L(t)dlgm% 'I:Vlerls, Incidentals) g i igggg i 1’32388 hazard removal operations.

: ehicle Rentaland rue : : 3) Assumes no delays due to weather/travel. Should a delay occur, we will negotiate
with the City of Unalaska for an equitable resolution. Unforeseen standby will be billed
at a rate of 8 hours per day plus per diem.

TOTAL EXPENSES: $ 4,396

R&M Laboratory Testing

FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): S 17,622.00
$ R
$ R
R&M MATERIAL LABORATORY EXPENSES S -
SUB-CONTRACTORS: Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES (w/ markup %) 5.0% $ 4,615.80
FIRM: [ [ TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES (w/markup %): 5.0% $ -
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COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: R&M Consultants, Inc. IPROJECT TITLE: Lattitude 54 Hazard Removal Support
TASK NO: 3 TASK DESCRIPTION: Rock Scaling Support DATE: 9/20/2023
GROUP: ES METHOD OF PAYMENT: ] ep ] rprE ] T&Ee [ cprr PREPARED BY: A. Banks/T. Ross
Contract Prof 5 Prof 3 Geol 2
SUB-TASK Prof 4 (Geol
NO SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Manager (Geotech) rof 4 (Geol) (Geotech) (Geotech)
L. Story B. Pintner A. Banks B. Mullen A. Brown
3.1 Field Investigation 4 8 48
TOTAL LABOR HOURS 0 4 8 48 0 0 0 0 0
* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $ 276.00 S 246.00 | $ 192.00 | $ 180.00  $ 108.00 | $ $ - S - 1S - s -
LABOR COSTS ($) $ - S 984.00 | $  1,536.00 S  8,640.00  $ - s $ - 8 - 1$ - s -
EXPENSES COMMENTS
[ ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE |1) Assumes 4 days of rock blasting support. Additional days on site will be billed at a
Project Expenses rate of 12 hours per day plus per diem.
2.1 Per Plem (Lodging, Meals, Incidentals) 4 $ 283.00 | $ 1,132.00 |2 Mopbilization/demobilization costs are accounted for under Task 1.
21 Vehicle Rental and Fuel 4 5 120.00 | 480.00 3) Assite visit will be made by a Senior Geologist or Geotechnical Engineer to monitor
hazard removal operations.
4) Unforeseen standby will be billed at a rate of 8 hours per day plus per diem.
TOTAL EXPENSES: $ 1,720
R&M Laboratory Testing
FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): S 11,160.00
$ R
$ R
R&M MATERIAL LABORATORY EXPENSES S -
SUB-CONTRACTORS: Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES (w/ markup %) 5.0% $ 1,692.60
FIRM: [ [ TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES (w/markup %): 5.0% $ -
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COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: R&M Consultants, Inc. IPROJECT TITLE: Lattitude 54 Hazard Removal Support
TASK NO: 4 TASK DESCRIPTION: Rock Blasting Support DATE: 9/20/2023
GROUP: ES METHOD OF PAYMENT: O e ] rppE O] Tae [ cpre PREPARED BY: A. Banks/T. Ross
Contract Prof 5 Prof 3 Geol 2
SUB-TASK Prof 4 (Geol
o SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Manager (Geotech) rof4(Geol) | (Geotech) (Geotech)
L. Story B. Pintner A. Banks B. Mullen A. Brown
Reporting 4 8 24
TOTAL LABOR HOURS 0 4 8 24 0 0 0 0 0 0
* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $ 276.00 | $ 246.00 | $ 192.00  $ 180.00 | $ 108.00 | $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
LABOR COSTS ($) S - S 984.00 | $ 1,536.00 | $ 4,320.00 | $ - S - $ - S - $ - $ -
EXPENSES COMMENTS
[ ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE |1) A letter report will be prepared detailing site conditions, conclusion, and
Project Expenses recommendations.
TOTAL EXPENSES: $ 108
R&M Laboratory Testing
FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): S 6,840.00
$ -
$ -
R&M MATERIAL LABORATORY EXPENSES S -
SUB-CONTRACTORS: Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES (w/ markup %) 5.0% $ -
FIRM: ‘ ‘ TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES (w/markup %): 5.0% $ -
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CITY OF UNALASKA
UNALASKA, ALASKA

RESOLUTION 2023-40

A RESOLUTION OF THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH SOUTHEAST ROADBUILDERS FOR ROCK
STABILIZATION SERVICES FOR THE EMERGENCY CLIFF FACE STABILIZATON
BALLYHOO ROAD PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF $197,418

WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska has determined the cliff face behind the Latitude 54 building on
Ballyhoo Road to be a significant hazard to property and to human life; and

WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska identified the hazard after a significant weather event and
consulted with geologists to provide an initial risk assessment; and

WHEREAS, the consultant concluded that the cliff face requires mitigation to stabilize; and

WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska created an emergency project and the City Council funded the
project; and

WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska sought proposals from expert contractors in rock scaling and
stabilization; and

WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska received one proposal from a qualified contractor; and

WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska has negotiated a fair and reasonable price for services to be
provided.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Unalaska City Council authorizes the City
Manager to enter into an agreement with Southeast Roadbuilders for rock stabilization services
for the Cliff Face Stabilization Ballyhoo Road Project in the amount of $197,418.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on October
10, 2023.

Mayor Pro Tem

ATTEST:

Estkarlen P. Magdaong
City Clerk
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MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL

To: Mayor and City Council Members

From: Peggy McLaughlin, Port Director

Through: Marjie Veeder, Acting City Manager

Date: October 10, 2023

Re: Resolution 2023-39 and Resolution 2023-40

SUMMARY: The adoption of Resolution 2023-39 will authorize the City Manager to sign an
agreement with R&M Consulting Inc. in the amount of $47,606 for on-going assessment during
the rock stabilization project. Resolution 2023-40 will authorize the City Manager to sign an
agreement with Southeast Roadbuilders in the amount of $151,860 for the stabilization of the cliff
face at the Latitude 54 building on Ballyhoo Road.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: On September 26, 2023, Council had first reading of a budget
amendment for this project, Ordinance 2023-10, and advanced it to public hearing and second
reading tonight.

BACKGROUND: In December of 2022 a severe storm caused community-wide flooding and mud
and rock slides. These hazards included landslides and rock fall on and in the vicinity of parcel
01-09-200 on Ballyhoo Road. Once the water had receded, large rock falls continued. A significant
threat was identified on Ballyhoo Road parcel 01-09-200 in the form of a large overhanging rock
wedge with a potential slip plane. A similar rock fell in 2014 and caused damage to the warehouse
on the same parcel. Ultimately, the City was responsible for approximately 25% of the damages
in the amount of $315,000.

DISCUSSION: The emergency funding was requested through Ordinance 2023-10, FY24 Budget
Amendment #1. The emergency funding was approved based on the contracts that are presented
in Resolutions 2023-39 and 2023-40. The authorization of these funds will allow the project to
begin.

The threat of rock falls still exists, and property and human safety are at imminent risk. It is
anticipated that the freeze and thaw cycles of winter could provoke the rock wedge to break loose.
Weather is not the only risk. In June 2023, a forklift-sized rock fell from underneath wedge and
along the slip plane. It is clear that action needs to be taken, and taken before we hit winter
weather later this year.

R&M Consultants, Inc. (R&M) conducted the first assessment in February 2023 and provided the
City with names of contractors with hand scaling and rock anchoring expertise. We contacted
each of those companies and had one response from Southeast Roadbuilders. We are
considering this an emergency project and consequently are doing our due diligence to avoid sole
sourcing, but also understand the urgency in expediting this project.

There a few layers to the structure of this project.

There are two contractors involved, R&M and Southeast Roadbuilders. The proposals are
structured with a phased approach. Attached with this memo are two proposals from Southeast
Roadbuilders and one from R&M.

-
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The first layer will be to hand-scale loose rock and break free and remove any potential hazards
without aggressive action. This is outlined in the first proposal (Phase 1) from Southeast
Roadbuilders. The proposal for this phase shows lump sum costs for mobilization and fixed costs
and consumables along with daily rates for crew time for the other tasks. Their proposal states
that it is anticipated to be four days for hand scaling (task 2) and two days for the blasting
expert/manager onsite (task 3). By inputting their assumed number of days multiplied by the daily
rate for tasks 2 and 3, we can assume a total estimated cost of phase 1 to be $75,280.

After the hand-scaling is complete, R&M will reassess the rock over hang and determine whether
or not more aggressive efforts need be taken to secure the rock face. If further rock removal is
required, Southeast Roadbuilders has provided a proposal for blasting and removing additional
rock hazards. The proposal for phase 2 is a little clearer with the days included in the quantity for
tasks 2 and 3. The total estimated cost for phase 2 is $76,580.

Totaling phase 1 work and phase 2 work gets us to $151,860. Staff recommends a contingency
of 30% be added, for a total cost of work, with contingency, of $197,418.

Geotechnical expertise shall be provided by R&M. R&M did the initial assessment of the rock face
in February 2023. R&M will work with the contractor for the duration of the project to provide
hazard removal assessment services during the removal process and an assessment report with
conclusions and recommendations at the completion of the removal effort. R&M'’s proposal is
attached and is in the amount of $47,606.

Weather permitting, the project is estimated to be completed in 8-10 days.

ALTERNATIVES: Council may choose to approve the resolutions; or not to approve the
resolutions. Council could also choose to put this through the traditional CMMP process, which is
not recommended due to the imminent danger to people and property.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The total cost of this project including contingency is $245,024 and
is funded by the General Fund.

LEGAL: There are no immediate legal requirements to this, but failing to address this will likely
result in future liability to the City.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends adoption of Resolution 2023-39 and Resolution
2023-40.

PROPOSED MOTION: Separate motions will be needed for each resolution:

I move to adopt Resolution 2023-39.
I move to adopt Resolution 2023-40.

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS: | support the Staff Recommendation. It is important to shore up
this cliff face to prevent future damage to people and property.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Southeast Roadbuilders — Phase 1 Proposal
2. Southeast Roadbuilders — Phase 2 Proposal
3. Proposal from R&M Consultants, Inc.
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HC60 Box 4800
Haines, Ak 99827
PHONE: 907-766-2833

FAX: 907-766-2832

CONTRACTOR'S LICENSE NO.: 134313
BUSINESS LICENSE NO.: 1086571

SOUTHEAST
ROADBUILDERS

HAINES, ALASKA
QUOTATION FOR:
International Port of Dutch Harbor (Unalaska)
Attn: Marc Kielmeyer, Project Engineer
Unalaska, Alaska 99692

OWNER: - City of Unalaska
DATE: September 17, 2023

Project:
PHASE | - Latitude 54 Rockfall Mitigation (scaling only)
ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
1 Mobilization L.S. All Req'd | $29,000.00 $29,000.00
2 Daily Rate - scaling/anchors (Site Development) ea. day $6,495.00
3 Blasting/Matting/Scaling Manager (prep for phase 1) ea. day $2,200.00
4 Fixed Costs- (consumables and rentals) L.S. AllReq'd | $15,900.00 $15,900.00
TOTAL AMOUNT OF QUOTATION $44,900.00
L.S.(Lump Sum)/TBD(To Be Determined)/ea.(Each)/C.S.(Contingent Sum)/Tn(ton)/c.y.(cubic yard) Borough Sales Tax Added Where Applicable
NOTES: 1 ea. mobilization - in/out

Without scaling incidental areas (away from wedge), we don't anticipate over 4 days of work, - R&M will direct accordingly
Item #3 - We don't expect this to be over a 2-day task to analyze and provide a risk assessment
INCLUSIONS:
Mobilization Includes crew to/from, freight for all non available materials/supplies from ANCH/ANCH layover
Day rate includes rental vehicle/3 ea. laborers/specialist/hotels/perdiem/equip. operating costs
Scaling at the direction of R&M Consultants (scaling only task)
9 hour day work day anticipated
local support for equipment and available consumables
(Item #3 -Manager will be knowledge of all available resources based upon methods recommended
(matting/blasting/rock bolting/dowels, etc.)
Anchoring system for scaling personnel
EXCLUSIONS:
Authorization for access above site and scaling debris removal by others
Permitting
Performance and Payment Bonding
non daylight work
® This quote may be withdrawn if not signed and returned within 30 days.
e TERMS: Full payment due within 30 days of invoice, unless defined otherwise via subcontact
A FINANCE CHARGE OF .88% per month (which is an annual percentage rate of 10.5%) will be imposed on any portion
of your account not paid within 30 days after billing date.

® A service charge of 2.5% will be imposed on all credit card payments
If this proposal meets your approval, please complete and return. Your signature on one copy returned to us will make this a legal
contract for the performance of the above work and your acceptance of the terms listed.

Company: Phone No.

Billing Address:

Authorized Signer:

(printed name) date:

SIGNATURE:
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HC60 Box 4800
Haines, Ak 99827
PHONE: 907-766-2833

FAX: 907-766-2832

CONTRACTOR'S LICENSE NO.: 134313
BUSINESS LICENSE NO.: 1086571

SOUTHEAST
ROADBUILDERS

HAINES, ALASKA
QUOTATION FOR:
International Port of Dutch Harbor (Unalaska)
Attn: Marc Kielmeyer, Project Engineer
748 Ballyhoo Road
Unalaska, Alaska 99692

OWNER: - City of Unalaska
DATE: September 17, 2023
Project:
Latitude 54 Rockfall Mitigation (Wedge Removal Option - Estimate Only)
Wedge Work Only

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
1 Mobilization* L.S. All Req'd $1,600.00 $1,600.00
2 Set-up (matting-secure site for release) 4.0 day $6,495.00 $25,980.00
3 Professional Services w/ monitoring 4.0 day $3,200.00 $12,800.00
4 Fixed Costs- (consumables, explosives/rentals/matting...) L.S. AllReq'd | $36,200.00 $36,200.00
TOTAL AMOUNT OF QUOTATION $76,580.00
L.S.(Lump Sum)/TBD(To Be Determined)/ea.(Each)/C.S.(Contingent Sum)/Tn(ton)/c.y.(cubic yard) Borough Sales Tax Added Where Applicable
NOTES: *Mobilization - Assumes men "on-site" and paid in Phase 1 - otherwise approximately $25,200.00)

This assumes we have a quick solution and Phase |l immediately transitions from Phase |
Guestimate of 4-days work for wedge only. (netting/drilling/loading/shooting)
See phase | for any scaling or manual rock removal requirements
INCLUSIONS:
Assumes mats or approved protective netting is available in Unalaska
Day rate includes rental vehicle/3 ea. laborers/specialist/hotels/perdiem/equip. operating costs
also includes drilling for explosives as directed by specialist
Blasting magazine, blasting supplies, explosives and initiators are readily available for purchase in Unalaska
9 hour day work day anticipated
Local support for equipment and available consumables
Specialist working with R&M Consultants
Seismographs and vibration monitoring
EXCLUSIONS:
Scaling after release of wedge (uncertain of site conditions beyond, behind or above wedge)
Authorization for access above site by others/Clean-up & removal of scaled and rockfall materials
Permitting, Performance and Payment Bonding
Non daylight work
® This quote may be withdrawn if not signed and returned within 30 days.
® TERMS: Full payment due within 30 days of invoice, unless defined otherwise via subcontract
A FINANCE CHARGE OF .88% per month (which is an annual percentage rate of 10.5%) will be imposed on any portion
of your account not paid within 30 days after billing date.

® A service charge of 2.5% will be imposed on all credit card payments
If this proposal meets your approval, please complete and return. Your signature on one copy returned to us will make this a legal

contract for the performance of the above work and your acceptance of the terms listed.

Company: Phone No.

Billing Address:

Authorized Signer:

(printed name) date:

SIGNATURE:
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CITY OF UNALASKA
UNALASKA, ALASKA

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTION

THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL hereby certifies the results of the General Municipal Election
held October 3, 2023, as presented by the Election Board and Canvass Committee, as follows:

OFFICES / CANDIDATES / QUESTIONS VOTE TALLY
CITY COUNCIL SEAT CC-B
Thomas Bell ... 166
Brenda BaKer .......coooviiii e 142
WV INS oo 9
CITY COUNCIL SEAT CC-E
Dennis M. RObINSON .....couvveieeeee e, 141
ANthony LONGO......uveiiiiiiiiiecce e, 178
AT 1 (ST ] TP 4
SCHOOL BOARD SEAT SB-B
VoINS e 108
Brian RaNKIN ...c..ooene e 17
NICOIE BiCe ...cneeeeeeeeeeeeee e 13

(top two votes listed)

SCHOOL BOARD SEAT SB-C

Amanda Schmahl ......coooveeiie e, 289

AT 1 (ST ] TSR 7
SCHOOL BOARD SEAT SB-E

Trever Shaishnikoff ........cooooveoiie e, 295

A A g (ST 1T 4

The Unalaska City Council, with this certification, hereby declares the following:

1.

THOMAS BELL is elected to City Council Seat CC-B, for a 3-year term expiring October
2025.

ANTHONY LONGO is elected to City Council Seat CC-E for a 3-year term expiring
October 2025.

NO CANDIDATE received in excess of 40% of the vote for School Board Seat SB-B.

AMANDA SCHMAHL is elected to School Board Seat SB-C for a 2-year term expiring
October 2025.

TREVER SHAISHNIKOFF is elected to School Board Seat SB-E for a 3-year term expiring
October 2026.

-
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The City Clerk is authorized to deliver a copy of this Certificate of Election to every person elected.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on October
10, 2023.

Mayor Pro Tem

ATTEST:

Estkarlen P. Magdaong
City Clerk
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MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL

To: Mayor and City Council Members

From: Estkarlen P. Magdaong, City Clerk

Date: October 10, 2023

Re: Canvass Committee Report; and Certification of Election Results

SUMMARY: Pursuant to code, the City Council is to publicly declare and certify the election
results on the first Tuesday following the election. The Canvass Committee recommends that
Council certify the results as presented.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: This procedure is followed annually.

BACKGROUND and DISCUSSION: The General Municipal Election was held on October 3,
2023, following which the Election Board reconciled ballots and completed a tally of the ballots
cast on Election Day.

The Canvass Committee met on October 6, 2023 to canvass the absentee, special needs and
questioned ballots, and to compile final election results.

Presented to Council tonight is the Canvass Committee Report containing the final results, tallying
both Election Day ballots and the ballots counted by the Canvass Committee.

ALTERNATIVES: None.

RECOMMENDATION: The City Clerk and the Canvass Committee recommend certification of
the election results as presented.

PROPOSED MOTION: | move to certify the results of the October 3, 2023 General Election as
presented by the Election Board and the Canvass Committee.

ATTACHMENTS:

e Canvassing Committee Report

e Canvass Committee Tally

o Election Day Ballot Reconciliation Statement

e Tabulator results from Election Day and Canvass Committee
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CITY OF UNALASKA
UNALASKA, ALASKA

CANVASSING COMMITTEE REPORT
OCTOBER 3, 2023 GENERAL ELECTION

The Canvass Committee members, appointed by City Council Resolution 2022-36, consist of
Council Member Shari Coleman, Deputy City Clerk Alicia Aguilar and City Clerk Estkarlen
Magdaong, Chair.

The Election Board completed a tally of all regular ballots cast at the polls on October 3, 2023,
and supplied their reports to the Canvass Committee.

The Canvass Committee met on October 6, 2023, at 10:00 a.m. to canvass ballots not counted

on Election Day, consisting of early and absentee ballots (cast both in person and by electronic

transmission), special needs ballot and questioned ballots, and makes the following report.
RECAP OF BALLOTS

ELECTION DAY

Ballots Counted on Election Day wmssseisasssssvinsamisimissmimsssiaimsmmms 308
Questioned Ballots .................. s ammsimms i amss aiasmsimisessimm 7
Special Needs Ballot ..o 1
Subtotal ..o 316
EARLY AND ABSENTEE
Early and Absentee Ballots (in person) ............coocviiiiiiiiiiiiie e 16
Early and Absentee Ballots (electronic transmission)...................c.ccoooiiiinn.. 2
Special Needs Ballots ..o 0
Questioned Ballots ...........cccooiiiiiiiiii e 0
Subtotal................ooooiinnn L RS 18
Total Ballots Cast.............ccoooeeeiiii 334
Less Questioned Ballots Found Unqualified ..................... 6
Total Qualified & Counted Ballots..............cc..cuuuuceeeen. 328

Pursuant to UCO 4.04.020, a person may vote in a city election only if qualified to vote in state
elections under AS 15.05.010; has been a resident of the city for 30 days immediately preceding
the election; is registered to vote in state elections at a residence address within the city at least
30 days before the city election at which the person seeks to vote; and is not disqualified under
Article V of the State Constitution.

There were 18 ballots cast by early and absentee voters, all of which were confirmed by the City
Clerk to be cast by qualified voters.

There were 7 questioned ballots cast on Election Day, 1 was determined to have been cast by a
qualified voter. Of the 6 questioned ballots not counted, 3 were registered to vote in other Alaska
communities, and 3 were not registered at all. The 6 questioned ballots were not opened or
counted.
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There was a total of 328 qualified ballots cast in the local election and counted.

The Canvass Committee tallied the Early and Absentee Ballots (18), the Questioned-Qualified
Ballot (1), and the Special Need Ballot (1) for a total of 20 ballots. The results, combined with the
votes cast at the polls, are attached to this report.

There were 1,810 voters on the precinct register, which documents all voters registered at an
address in our community at least 30 days before Election Day. The total number of votes cast
by qualified voters was 328, which is a 18% voter turnout.

The Canvassing Committee recommends certification of the election results.

DATED this 6™ day of October 2023.

Shari Coleman

Alicia Aguflar

fegagiony
EstKatlen Mdgdaong ¢

Chair

Packet Page Number 218



City of Unalaska October 3, 2023 General Election
Canvass Committee Tally - October 6, 2023

COUNCIL SEATB
Thomas Bell
Brenda Baker

Write-ins

COUNCIL SEATE
Dennis M. Robinson
Anthony Longo
Write-ins

SCHOOL BOARD SEATB
Write-ins

Brian Rankin

Nicole Bice

SCHOOL BOARD SEATE
Trever Shaishnikoff
Write-ins

ELECTION DAY

Ballots Cast 308
Questioned Ballots (not on register) 7
Special Needs Ballots 1
316
QUESTIONED BALLOTS
Not Qualified to Vote (not counted) 6
Qualified to Vote (counted) 1
7
EARLY AND ABSENTEE BALLOTS
In Person Ballots 16
Email, Fax, Mail Ballots 2
Special Needs Ballots 0
Questioned Ballots 0
18
Ballots to Tally by Canvass Committee 20
ELECTION DAY CANVASS TOTAL % VOTE
157 166 52%
133 142 45%
8 9 3%
298 19 317
135 6 141 44%
164 14 178 55%
4 0 4 1%
303 20 323
101 7 108
16 17 16%
13 0 13 12%
279 16 295 99%
3 1 4 1%
282 17 299
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SCHOOL BOARD SEAT C

Amanda Schmabhl 274 15 289 98%
Write-ins 6 1 7 2%
280 16 296

CANVASS COMMITTEE SIGNATURES

l/
Shari Coleman % ///,,.._—-

Estkarlen Magdaong, Chairw
[}

Packet Page Number 220



CITY OF UNALASKA
General Municipal Election October 3, 2023
Ballot Reconciliation Statement

A. Number of Ballots Received 2000
Beginning Stub # 101
Ending Stub # 2100

B. Number of Voters and Ballots Issued

Signatures on Precinct Register 308
Questioned/challenged envelopes 7
Special Needs/PR ballot envelopes returned 1
Special Needs/PR ballot envelopes not returned 0
Spoiled ballots + 1

Total 317

C. Ballots Used

First unused stub # 418
Starting stub # - 101
Total 317

THE TOTALS IN SECTION B AND C MUST MATCH

CERTIFICATION

We, the undersigned election workers, certify to the best of our
knowledge, the ballot statement information is correct and that we
have disposed of the unused ballots as instructed.

i
Election Clerk: |
oréne Patmer
Election Clerk:
Shelly Blakel

Election Clerk:

THomas Ro{ifos /

Election Judge: (ﬂ- Iﬁfﬂ/[ﬁ@/ﬂ

Alicia :t\%lilar

Election Judge:

’ ANG A~
Estl(aflen I\@agdaor@
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City of Unalaska
Unalaska 2023
Tuesday, October 3, 2023

Tabulator Name
Unalaska City Hali

Tabulator 1D

1

Voting Location
Unalaska City Hall
Voting Location ID
1

Total Cast ;308
Total Voters ¢ 308

Ballot ID: 23, Rallot Name: 23
Ballots Cast ¢ 308

TOTALS for all Ballots
Total Cast ;308
Total Voters 1 308

City Council CC-B (1)

Thomas Bel.l : 167
Brenda Baker ;133
Write~in 3 8
Total Votes 1 298
City Council CC E (1)

Dennis M, Rebinson ;135
Anthony Longo ;164
Write-in i 4
Totat Votes : 303
School Board SB-B (1)

Write-in ¢ 101
Total Votes 101
School Board SB-E (1)

Trever Shaishniloff 1 278
Write-in : 3
Total Votes . 282
School Board SB-C (1)

Amanda Schmnahl i 274
Write-in : 6
Total Votes ¢ 280

Unit Serial: VAL22090069
Protective Counter: 819
Software Version: 5.5.2.1

Certification

WE, THE UNDERSLIGNED ELECTION OFFICIALS,
HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE ELECTION
WAS HELD IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LOCAL
AUTHORITY ELECTION ACT AND REGULATIONS OF
THIS JURISDICTIiON.

Pall closed
Tuesday Oct 3 20:11:53% 2023

City of Unalaska
Unalaska 2023
Tuesday, OctoLer 3, 2023

Tabulator Name
Absentee

Tabulator ID
2

Voting Location
Absentee

goting Location ID

Total Cast 20
Total Voters : 20

Ballot ID: 23, Rallot Name: 23
Ballots Cast r i 20

TOTALS for all Ballots
Total Cast ¢ 20
Total Voters ;20

City Council LC-B (1)

Thomas Bell : 9
Brenda Baker : 9
Write-in : 1
Total Votes : 19
City Council CC-E (1)

Dennis M. Robinson 3 6
Anthony Longo 14
Write-in : 0
Total Votes 20
School Board SB-B (1)

Write-in 7
Total Votes 7

School Board SB-E (1)

Trever Shaishnikoff ¢ 16
Write-in : il
Total Votes 17
School Board SB-C (1)

Amanda Schmahl ¢ 15
Write-in - 1
Total Votes : 16

Unit Model: ICP2? (1.4)
Unit Serial: VAL22090069
Protective Counter: 839
Software Version: 5.5.2.1

Certification

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED ELECTION OFFLCIALS,
HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE ELECTION
WAS HELD IN ACCURDANCE WITH THE LOCAL
AUTHORITY ELECTION ACT AND REGULATIONS OF
THIS JURISDICTION,

g

Inspector Signature

Inspector Signature

Pall closed
Friday Oct 6 10:14:06 z0p3 acket Page Number 222




CITY OF UNALASKA
UNALASKA, ALASKA

RESOLUTION 2023-41

A RESOLUTION OF THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL APPOINTING JUDGES AND CLERKS FOR THE
RUN-OFF ELECTION ON OCTOBER 30, 2023 AND JUDGES TO SERVE ON THE CANVASS COMMITTEE

WHEREAS, Unalaska City Code § 4.08.020(A) states that before each city election, the City Council shall
appoint three election judges to constitute the Election Board, one who is designated the Chair and may
appoint two election clerks; and

WHEREAS, Unalaska City Code § 4.04.050 states that wages for non-employee election judges and clerks
shall be established by resolution of the City Council; and

WHEREAS, Unalaska City Code § 4.08.020(B) states that the City Council will serve as a canvass committee,
or may appoint three judges to constitute the canvass committee, who will canvass all votes after the election
judges have completed their tally.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Unalaska City Council that the following persons are appointed
judges and clerks for the October 30, 2023 Run-off Election and shall attend at the Unalaska Precinct Polling
place, namely Unalaska City Hall, at 7:30 a.m. on October 30, 2023 and shall continue until polls close at 8:00
p.m. Thereafter, the judges and clerks shall count and check all votes cast against the poll listed in the manner
required by law:

ELECTION BOARD

Judges: Clerks:

Estkarlen Magdaong, Chair Shelly Blakeley
Alicia Aguilar M. Lynn Crane
Elizabeth Whitaker Lorene Palmer

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following persons are appointed as judges to constitute the Canvass
Committee, who shall meet on Friday, November 3, 2023, at 10:00 a.m., to canvass all votes after the election
judges have completed their tally:

CANVASS COMMITTEE JUDGES
Estkarlen Magdaong, Chair

Alicia Aguilar
Shari Coleman

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that non-employee election judges and clerks shall be paid twenty dollars ($20)
per hour.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on October 10, 2023.

Mayor Pro Tem

ATTEST:

Estkarlen P. Magdaong
City Clerk
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MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL

To: Mayor and City Council Members

From: Estkarlen P. Magdaong, City Clerk

Through: Marjie Veeder, Acting City Manager

Date: October 10, 2023

Re: Resolution 2023-41: Appointing Judges and Clerks for the Run-off Election on

October 30, 2023 and Judges to serve on the Canvass Committee

SUMMARY: City Code requires Council to appoint three judges and Council may appoint two
clerks to serve as the Election Board for the municipal election to be held on October 30, 2023;
and Council is to appoint three judges to serve as the Canvass Committee on November 3, 2023.
Resolution 2023-41 accomplishes these mandates.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: Council adopts a similar resolution for each local election; but
there is no previous Council action in relation to the Run-Off Election.

DISCUSSION: UCO 4.08.020 requires appointment of three judges and states council may
appoint two clerks to serve as the Election Board, and allows for the City Clerk to appoint
additional clerks should the need arise.

City Council is to act as the Canvass Committee or may appoint three judges to constitute the
Canvass Committee, which is the option typically taken. Traditionally, one Council member serves
on the Canvass Committee and Shari Coleman has agreed to serve in this capacity.

Additionally, Code states that Council determines the rate of pay for non-employee election
workers by resolution. Resolution 2023-41 sets the hourly rate of pay at $20 per hour. The City
Clerk feels this rate of pay is fair and reasonable, as it matches what the State of Alaska, Division
of Elections pay their election workers, and the Clerk’s Department budget contains sufficient
funds to cover the expense.

ALTERNATIVES: None.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Pay for non-employee election workers is included in the Clerk’s
Office FY24 budget.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends adoption of Resolution 2023-41.

PROPOSED MOTION: | move to adopt Resolution 2023-41.

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: The City Manager concurs with the Staff Recommendation.
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